PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM

SUBMIT PROPOSAL TO:
Cobb Cowsnty Purchasing Department
122 Waddell Street NE
Marietta, GA 30060

SEALED PROPOSAL #: 24-6800
Request for Proposals
Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies,
and Refated Products and Services
Cobb County Procurement Services Department

DELIVERY DEADLINE: January 25, 2024 BEFORE 12:00 P.M. (NOON) EST
(NO PROPOSALS WILLE BE ACCEPTED AFTER THIS DEADLINE).

Proposal Closing Date: January 25, 2024 @ 2:00 P.M. in the Cobb County Purchasing Department, 122 Waddell Street
NE, Marietta, Georgia, 30060.

BUSINESS NAME AND ADDRESS INFORMATION:
COMPANY NaMEe: HD Supply Facilities Maintenarce, Ltd.

CONTACT NAME: Bruce Reifsteck

COMPANY ADDRESS: 3400 Cumberland Blvd. SE, Atanta, GA 30339

E-MAIL ADDRESS: bruce reifsteck@hdsupply com

PHONE NUMBER;:_(267) 981-1066 FAX NUMBER:

NAME AND OFFICIAL TITLE OF OFFICER GUARANTEEING THIS QUOTATION:

Bruce Reifsteck o Vice President, Sales
PRINT/TYPE NAME TITLE
TELEPHONE; (267} 981-1066 FAX:

PROPOSER WILL INDICATE TIME PAYMENT DISCOQUNT: _Terms to be Net30

PROPOSER SHALL INDICATE MAXIMUM DELIVERY DATE {(UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED IN PROPOSAL

SPECIFICATIONS)
In stock ilems typically delivered within 1-2 werking days,

Bruge. Ruifstck

SIGNATURE OF OFFICER ABOVE: ocranss
{SIGNATURE)

Proposals received after the date and fime indicated will not be considered. Cobb County reserves the right to reject any
and all proposals, to waive informalities, 1o reject portions of the proposal, to waive technicalitics and to award contracts
in a manner consistent with the county and the laws governing the State of Georgia.

The enclosed {or attached) proposal is in response to Sealed Proposal Number 24-6800; is a firm offer, as defined by
section O.C.G.A. (8) 11-2-205 of the code of Georgia (Georgia laws 1962 pages 156-178), by the undersigned
proposer. This offer shall remain open for acceptance for a period of 90 calendar days from the proposal opening date,
as set forth in this invitation to propesal unless atherwise specified in the proposal documents.

NOTICE TO PROPOSERS - PROPOSAL QUOTES MUST INCLUDE INSIDE DELIVERY CHARGES



Cobb Counry...Expect the Bes:

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Sealed Proposal # 24-6800
Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies,
and Related Products and Services
Cobb County Procurement Services Department

Proposal Closing Date: January 25; 2024
February 22, 2024 per Addendum 2
Pre-Proposal Conference: January 9, 2024 @ 2:00 PM (E.S.T.)
Virtual (Via Cisco Webex)
Meeting Link:
Hps://cobboounty webex.com/gobbcounty/i.oh TMTID=ma1454 300be2f0913dcc05 0650670
Meeting Number (Access Code): 2319 607 1125
Meeting Password; YBywV49ppE4

Proposals Are Received in the Cobb County Purchasing Department
122 Waddell Street NE
Murietta, GA 30060

Before 12:00 P.M. (Noon) By the Proposal Clesing Date

Proposal Will Be Opened in the Cobb County Purchasing Department at 2:00 pm
122 Waddell Street NE
Marietta, GA 30060

VENDORS ARE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT THE ORIGINAL, 1 COPY,

AND 5 IDENTICAL ELECTRONIC COPIES ON FLASH DRIVE(S) OF PROPOSAL

(UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED [N PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS)

NAME: HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd.

ADDRESS: 3400 Cumberland Blvd. Atlanta, GA 30339

REPRESENTATIVE: Bruce Reifsteck

PHONE: (267) 981-1066 FAX:

E-MAIL bruce.reifstecki@hdsupply.com

NOTE: The Cobb Ceunty Purchasing Department wii not he responsible for the accuracy or cornpieteness of the content of any Cobb
County [nvitation o Bid or Request for Proposals or subsequent addenda thereto received from a source other than the Cobb County

Purchasing Department,



CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT & AGREEMENT

(EXHIBIT A)
This affidavit must be signed, notarized and submitted with ny bid requiring the performance of physical
ervices. If the affida aft f? f [
be disgquali

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned contractor verifies compliance with 0.C.G.A, §13-10-91, stating
affirmatively that the individual, firm or corparation which is contracting with Cobb County, Georgia, has registered with, is
authorized to use, and is participating in a federal work authorization program (an electronic verification of work authorization
program operated by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security or any equivalent federal work authorization program operated
by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly hired employees, pursuant to the Immigration
Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA)). The undersigned contractor further attests that it will continue to use the federai
Employment Eligibility Verification (EEV) work zuthorization program throughout the contract period.

The undersigned further agrees that should it employ or contract with any subcontractor(s} or should its subcontractor(s}
employ other subcontractor(s) for the physical performance of services pursuant to the contract with Cobb County, Georgia, the
contractor or subcontractor will:

{1) Notify the County within five business days of entering into a contract or agreement for hire with any subcontractor(s);

(2) Secure from any subcontractor(s) and/or their subcontractor(s) verification of compliance
with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 on the attached Subcontractor A ffidavit (EXHIBIT A-1) prior to the commencement of any work
under the contract/agreement;

H-Seeure-fiow a—subesmtractons-and/ortheir subeontractorts) Heompleted-bmmieration

t9(3) Provide the subcontractor(s) with legal notice that Cobb County, Georgia, reserves the right to dismiss, or require the
dismissal of, any contractor or subcontractor for failing to provide the affidavit and/or for failure to comply with the requirements
referenced in the affidavit:

244} Maintain records of such compliance and provide a copy of each such verification 1o Cobb
County, Georgia, &t the time the subcontractor(s) is retained to perform such services ot upon any request from Cobb County,
Georgia; and

t813) Maintain such records for a period of five (5) years.

46325 / 954 gq0 2/25 |20l

EEV (E-Verify) Program Number . EEV Program Date of Adthorization
or tbué s
Sorey flesser Ui Spply eeiy; Kl Wi lehangg, Lt
* Authorized Officer or Agent Contractor Busindss Name
[Contractor Name|
Som: _fosser 2/ % [ 1024
Printed Name Date ' ! '

SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME
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~ Effective 09-20-2013
) & kS -
s -Z‘:, 45““':- Q12
=< =; O O %z
= 32/ o 82
?l' ",', - %5
% e, ST S
f,‘ A A EE'E’O\}\\\\
W

119




SUBCONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT & AGREEMENT
(EXHIBIT A-1)

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned subcontractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, stating
affirmatively that the individual, firm or corporation which is engaged in the physical
performance of services on behalf of Cobb County, Georgia, has registered with, is authorized to use, and is participating in a
federal work authorization program (an electronic verification of work authorization program operated by the 11.S. Department
of Homeland Security or any equivalent federal work authorization program operated by the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security to verify information of newly hired employees, pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1936
(IRCA)). The undersigned contractor further attests that it will continue to use the federal Employment Eligibility Verification
(EEV} work authorization program throughout the contract pericd.

The undersigned further agrees that shouid it employ or contract with any subcontractor(s) or should its
subcontractor(s) employ cther subcontractor(s) for the physical performance of services pursuant to the contract with Cobb
County, Georgia, the undersigned subcontractor will:

(H Notify the County within five business days of entering into a contract or agreement for hire with any
subeontracton(s);

{2) Secure from any subcontractor(s} and/or their subcontractor(s) verification of compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-
10-9t on this Subcontractor Affidavit form (EXHIBIT A-1) prior to the commencement of any work under the
contract/agreemntent;

(3) Secure from any subcontractor(s) and/or their subcontractor(s) a completed Immigeation
Compliance Certification (EXHIBIT A-2) prior to the commencement of any work under the
contract/agreement;

{4) Provide the subeontractor(s} with legal notice that Cobb County, Georgia, reserves the right to dismiss, or
require the dismissal of, any contractor or subcontractor for failing to provide the affidavit and/or for failure to
comply with the requirements referenced in the affidavit:

(5) Maintain records of such compliance and provide a copy of each such verification to Cobb County, Georgia, ai
the time the subcontractor(s) is retained to perform such services or upon any request from Cobb County,
Georgia; and

(6) Matntain such records for a period of five (5) years.

EEV (E-Verify) Program Number EEV Program Date of Authorization
BY: Authorized Officer or Agent Subcontracior Business Name
[Subcontractor Name])

Printed Name Date

SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME
ONTHISTHE DAY OF L202

Notary Public Commiission Expires:

Effective 09-20-2013

[18



IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION
{Regquired to be completed by Contraciors and all Subcon tractors)
(EXHIBIT A-2)

I certify to the Cobb County Board of Commissioners that the following employees will be assigned to:

SEALED PROPOSAL #: 246800

(Project Name/Description)

\ B
I further certify to Cobb County, Georgia the following:

. The E-~Verify program was used to verify the employment eligibility of each of the above-listed employees
hired after the effective date of our contract to use the program;

. We have nol received a Final Nonconfirmation response from E-Verify for any of the employees listed.

L If we receive a Final Nonconfirmation response from E-Verify for any of the employees listed above, we wil
immediately terminate that employee's involvement with the project.

L] I'have confirmed that we have an -9 on file for every employee listed above and that te the best of my
knowledge alt the 1-95 are accurate.

. To the best of my knowledge and belief, all of the employees on the above list are legally authorized to work
in the United States.

» If any other employee is assigned to this Cobb County project, a certification will be provided for said

employee prior to the employee commencing work on the project.

To the best ef my knowledge and belief, the above certification is true, accurate and complete,

Sworn tfo hy: o Employer Name & Address:
ov it
%M Sema NesSel HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd.

inature of Officer
Sami Nassar 3400 Cumberland Blvd. SE
Printed Name/Title
2/119/2024 Atlanta, GA 30339
Date

SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME
ON THIS THE /4#DAY OF _&M}zm <

Notary Public
Commission Expires: &3/ Sy Sl es7
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BocuSign Envelope ID: 2ABES0DE-1230-4623-8762-E92B4BA4AEA

HD Supply's Response to Sealed Proposal # 24-8300 Mzintenance, Repair. Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies,
and Related Producis and Services

- SUPPLY.

HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, itd.
3400 Cumnberland Blvd SE
Atlanta, GA 30335-4435

February 22, 2024

Cobb County Purchasing Department
122 Waddell St NE
Marietta, Georgia 30080

Dear Cobb County Purchasing Department,

Cobb County Purchasing Department recently released a request for proposal (RFP), Sealed Proposal # 24-6800, for
Maintenance, Repair and Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies, and Related Products and Services on behalf of itself
and other government agencies through GevMVMT Purchasing Cooperative. HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Lid. (HD
Supply), a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of The Home Depot, inc., is pleased to offer the enclosed proposal in
response to this RFP specifically in the Category of Maintenance, Repair, Operating Suppiies (MRO) and Related
Products and Services in referance to page 2, Section 1.2 of the bid document and Praduct Categeries 1 through 12 as
described in RFP Section 6.2.

As detailed within this proposal, HD Supply is confident the Cobb County Purchasing Department and participating
GovMVMT rmembers will benefit from HD Supply's almost 50 years of experience in the industry, national distribution
footprint, exceptional service, vast assortment of high-quality products, implementation experience/support of other
nationwide coniractual pragrams and more. Additionally, GovMVMT members will directly gain from:

A compliant contract competitively solicited and publicly awarded

Markedly competitive discounts

A tiered rebate incentive program (detailed within the Pricing Section of this proposal)
Robust and customized online ordering site and web tgols

Timesaving, cost-effective precurement process

Professional fraining opticns

* 3 2 & 2 @

Enclosed please find the requested information in response o Sealed Proposal # 24-6800. We believe this proposal
represents how HD Suppily can maximize cost savings for you and the Participating Public Agencies of GovMVMT as wall
as demonstrates our intent to be your dependable, trusted, and experienced provider of quality products and services.

As an aftachment to this letter, HD Supply's Exceptions Document is included to communicate noted exceptions taken by
HD Supply to documents within the bid Package for discussion with Cobb County/GovMVMT if awarded ihis bid.

We welcome the opportunity for further discussion to demonstrate HD Supply's value-added contribution and commitment
to serving Cobb County, GovMVMT and Pariicipating Public Agencies.

Kind regards,
Bt Sighad hy;
Tute ReTetetk
Vice President, FM Vertical
HD Supply

rei Kk .com
(267) 981-1066

Gapynighl © HD Supply, Inc 2024, This dotumean contains proprietary and confidantial Information and (s net to be disseminated, published, or disirbuted withaut the EXNPrEes Wil ey
consent of HO Supply, In¢. All nghts reserved.




HD Supply’s Response to Sealed Proposal # 24-8800 Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies,
and Related Products and Services

- ' SUPPLY.
Executive Summary

The Cobb County, GA Purchasing Department has released Request for Proposals {RFP) #24-6800 for
Maintenance, Repair, Operating (MRO) Supplies, industrial Supplies, and Related Products and Services
on behaif of itself and other Government Agencies made available through the GovMVMT Purchasing
Cooperative. A primary desire is to enter into a Master Agreement with a Supplier(s) that combines the
aggregate purchasing volumes of Participating Public Agencies to achieve cost-effective pricing through a
competitive bid process,

HD Supply Farilities Maintenance, Ltd. (HD Supply), a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of The Home
Depot, is pleased to provide the enclosed affer to Cobb County. Our expertise and almost 50 years of
experience in the MRO industry, proficiency with similar size and scope cooperative agreements,
program saies and support teams with proven implementation and experience, product ordering and
fulfilment capabilities, and value-added services can provide Cobb County and GovMVMT Participating
Agencies with the products and services required within a competitively priced program.

HD Supply’s pricing proposal not only includes a competitive discount structure, by product category, but
also a tiered rebate incentive program {further described within the Pricing section of this proposal)
starting with Participating Public Agency annualized net purchases over $500,000.

History, Size, Scope, Expertise
- HDSupply's roots extend back to 1974
A whoily ewned indirect subsidiary of The Home Depot since 2021

- Serve 250,000+ customers nationwide

- National footprint supported by:
o 12,000 empioyees
© 180+ geographically-dispersed distribution points
© 2,000 company-owned and operated trucks providing in-stack product delivery typically

within 248 hours

- Extensive product offering with:
© 3,000+ Suppliers
© 100,000+ MRO-curated products, including HD Supply’s exclusive brands

Proven Rollout and Management of Similar Cooperative Agreement

- Implementation and oversight experience of national government and non-government
cooperative agreements

- Collaborative program kickoff, rollout and on-going program assessment with cooperative
leadership
Co-branded marketing material and program development experience

- Training plan/Toolki¢ creation with rollout and on-going support to national Sales and Customer
Support Teams

Copyright & HD Supply, Inc. 2024. This documant containa proprisfary and confiiential Information and is not to be dlyseminated, publshed, or distributed without
the express written conserd of HD Supply, Inc. AR rights reserved.




HD Supply's Response to Sealed Proposal # 24-6800 Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies,
and Related Products and Services

- Standard and Ad Hoc Reporting
- Customized program webhsite landing page

Sales and Customer Support
Executive Sales leadership cammitment
- 550+ experienced associates in roles of National Account Managers, Field Sales and Inside Sales
supporting public apencies
- Three Customer Care Centers {Santee, CA; New Braunfels, TX; Jacksonville, FL)
© Monday through Friday, 8 AM ta 5 PM in il time zones

o Dedicated Government Customer Care Center
o Order Assistance
o Produet Support
o Warranty Centar

Online Ordering/Order Fuffillment

- Ordering via extensive 24-hour online catalog/system, mobile app, or Customer Support Team

- Most stocked items delivered within 24-48 business hours of arder receipt

- Online Order Status system

= HDSupply order fulfilment quality assurance processes/programs

- Online resources, including “Favorite” Lists, real-time product availability, inveice printing and
payment services, resource pages, Safety Data Sheets, alerts and more

- Special Orders support

- Repair Parts shopping tool, My Repair Parts™

Services

Installation expertise
- Renovations services
- Custom products
= On-line and in-person training
- Preventative Maintenance programs
Inventory Management Solutions
- Sustainability and Green products and initiatives

HD Supply’s years of experience In the MRO industry, size and long-standing refationships with our
suppliers supports our ability to stay ahead of the curve regarding the products and services needed by
Public Agencies, as well as provides the foundation by which we offer what we believe is an extremely
competitive offer to Cobb County/GovMVMT. The enclosed bid details HD Supply’s determined effort to
provide Cobb County/GovMVYMT with a program we believe will greatly benefit your organization and
Participating Public entities.

We welcome the opportunity to support Cobb County and GovMyMT by praviding your members with
HD Supply’s high level of service, comprehensive catalog of products and services and competitive
pricing program.

Copyright © HD Suppfy, Inc. 2024 This documant contuins pripristary and confldentlal Infontation end = not to ba disserinated, publishen, or disinbutsd without
1he axpress writlan consent of HD Supply, Inc. Al rights raperyed,




Company Background/Profile
A. Legal name, address, phone and fax numbers, e-mail, Federal ID#, and website address,

Nzime: HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Lid.
Address: 3400 Cumberland Blvd SE, Atlanta, GA 30339
Phone: 1.800.431.3000

Fax: 800.476.5848

Email; customercare @hdsupply.com

FEIN: 52-2418852

Website Address: www.hdsupply. com

B. Date business was established under current name.

HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd. was founded in 1974, in December 2020, The Home
Depot, Inc. purchased HD Supply. HD Supply is now a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of
The Home Depot,

C. S5ize of Company including the total number of employees.

HD Supply is honored to serve over 250,000 customers naticnwide through the delivery of
MRO and industrial products and services, many of which fall within the Cobb County
GovMVMT categories in this RFP.

HD Supply is one of the nation’s largest distributors of janitorial, custodial, and MRQ
supplies, with 3,000+ suppliers and 100,000+ MRO-curated products. Our expansive offering
includes appliances, electrical, grounds/fandscaping, hardware, HVAC, janitorial/cleaning
supplies, tighting, lamps, ballasts, paints and sundries, plumbing, safety products,
tools/handheld & powered, among other categories. We have 12,000 associates and our
own distribution facilities (180+ geographically dispersed distribution points), trucks {2,000
company-owned and operated vehicles), and delivery drivers. Our associates, facilities and
vehicles are considered vital components of our customer value proposition, With these
significant assets, we typically provide delivery on stocked items throughout the continental
U.5. within 24 - 48 hours upon receipt of arders. Depending on the distribution site and our
custoimers’ specific location, we can also utilize UPS or an LTL {less than truckioad) carrier for
customers outside our normal delivery area or located in remote locations.

B. Type of ownership or fegal structure of business

On December 24, 2020, Home Depot acquired HD Supply Holdings, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, and its operating subsidiaries, including HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd,
{“Facilities Maintenance®). HD Supply is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of The Home
Depot.




E. Has the company ever failed to complete work for which a contract was issued? If yes, explain
the circumstances.

HD Supply has not failed to complete work on an {ssued contract.

F. Are there any civil or criminal actions pending against the firm or any key personnel related in
any way to contracting? If yes, explain in detail. Are there any current unresolved
disputes/allegations?

HD Supply is involved in civil litigation matters from time to time in the ordinary course of
business. Any publiciy available information can be found on the Securities and Exchange

Cormmission wehsite located at http:,’fwww.sec.gav/edgar,fsearchedgar/wehusers.htm.

G. Has the firm ever been disqualified from working for any public entity? If yes, explain the
circumstances.

HD Supply has never been disqualified fram working with any public entity.

H. If a Supplier requires additional agreements to he signed by a Participating Public Agency,
include a copy of the proposed agreement(s) as part of Supplier’s proposal.

HD Supply will require each Participating Public Agency to submit a written election notice to
HD Supply to use the Lead Public Agency’s Master Agreement with HD Supply.




Experience

Include a list of the five {5} most relevant or comparable contracts completed by your firm during the
past ten (10] years with 2 public entity. For each contract, provide the foflowing information.

a. Stope of services/contract description including dates of service.
b. Dollar value of contract,
o Assigned project personnel.
d. The contracting entity’s contact person, current phone number, and current e- mail addrass as
reference information.
e. Type of contract used, if any (e.g. Cooperative contract, State contract, individual contract)
f. Reason for termination/cancellation, if any.
Comparable Contracts
Customer | Maricopa County/OMNIA

Scope of Services/Contract description
including dates of service

Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, Industrial
Supplies and Related Praducts and Services, Contract
#26154, 2/1/17 through 12/31/26

Dollar Value of Contract

HD Supply considers this information confidential in naturg,

Assigned project personnel

Aaron [eyendecker

| Bruce Reifsteck

Louise Ritter
Scott Buliard

Contact Information

|

Aaron Leyendecker
Aarcm.Levendecker@hdsupplv.com

(469) 992-3212

Bruce Reifsteck

‘ bruce.reifsteck@hdsupply.com

(267) 981-1066

Louise Ritter
dorothy.ritter@hdsupply.com
{214) 448-7787

Scott Bullard
Scott.Bullard@hdsupply.com
(830) 500-0032

Type of Contract

Cooperative Agreement

Reason for termination/cancellation

This contract is an active until 12/31/2026

Customer ]

L

Fresno Unified School District




Scope of Services/Contract description
including dates of service

Cleaning Supplies, Equipment and Custodial Related
Products, Services and Solutions, Solicitation 22-07,
11/1/22 through 10/31/25

Dollar Value of Contract

HD Supply considers this information confidentiai in nature.

Assigned project personnel [ Becky Newell

Contact Information | Becky Newell
Rebecca.Newell@hdsupply.com
{856} 425-5286

Type of Confract N i Cooperative Agf;ement -

Reason for termination/cancellation

This contract is active until 10/31/2025

Customer

University of California Office of the President

Scope of Services/Contract description
including dates of service

Janitorial Sanitary Supply, Contract 2020002299, 6/1/20
through 5/31/25

Dallar Value of Contract HD Shpply considers this information confidential in nature.
Assigned project personnel Becky Neweil
Contact Information Becky Newell

Type of Contract

Statewide Agreerﬁent

Rebecca.Newell@hdsupply.com
(B56) 425-5286

Reason for termination/cancellation

This contract is active until 5/31/2025

Customer

Portland Public Schools

Scope of Services/Contract description
inciuding dates of service

lan/San - Material Only

Dollar Value of Contract

HD Siﬁply considers this information confidential in nature.

Assigned project personnel | Kelly Teilegen
Contact Information Kelly Teliegen

kelly.tellegen@hdsupply.com
{503) 317-7568

Type of Contract

Siand-A!one Agreement - Systemwide Contract

Reason for termination/canceliation

This contract is still actjve,

Customer State of Georgia

Scope of Services/Contract description Maintenance, Repair, and Qperations

including dates of service

Dollar Value of Contract Hﬁ:ﬁy considers this information confidential in nature.




Assigned project personnel

Aaron Leyendecker
Louise Ritter
Steve Swann

Contact Information

Aaron Levendecker
Aaron.Leyendecker@hdsupply.com
(469) 992-3212

Louise Ritter
dorgthy.ritter@hdsupply.com
(214) 448-7787

Steven Swann
harold.swann@hdsupply.com
(850} 743-9079

Type of Contract

Statewice Contract

Reason for termination/cancellation

| This contract is active until 3/31/2025




Product Information/Service Capability

2. Provide detailed catalogs, descriptive literature, and/or a website address that jists all
products and services, and associated items, that can be provided by Proposer under this
contract.

AE products and services including detailed catalogs and descriptive literature can be found
on HD Supply’s online ordering website at https://hdsupplysolutions.com/.

b. Provide detailed information on service capability and the availabiity of service centers for
maintenance and repairs on a national fevel. Indicate how many authorized service centers
will be available for each state. Will pick up and delivery services be available for service of
large eguipment items?

HD Supply maintains a workforce of 12,000 associates and 180+ distribution facilities /
geographically dispersed distribution points, 2,000 company-owned trucks and operated
vehicles, and deiivery drivers. If the customer is located near one of our distribution centers,
they can request our guick pick will-call service on most orders. Phone in orders between 8
AM and & PM lecal time can be picked up one hour later. Will-Call Pickup is not available for
online orders,

HD Supply offers 2 preventative maintenance on HVAC as well as fabrication services for
doors, re-keying, cabinets, drawer fronts, countertops, window covering & blinds, screens,
mirrors & glasses, and acrylic barriers. As part of our preventative maintenance services, we
affer relfiable labor services from licenses and insured contractors. Customer can choose
from easy-to understand preventative maintenance packages to ensure the best value, HD
Supply uses a data-based approach to identify units that are likely to cause prohlerns and
recommend solutions. HD Supply is also able to offer renovation services. From installation
to renovations, cur team is built to serve our customers utilizing our vast national network of
fully vetted contractors with expert advice.

HD Supply does not offer rapalr services.

¢. Provide available payment terms and payment methods — purchase order, credit card
(Procurement card}, etc. If credit cards are accepted, may credit card payment({s) be made
online?

HD Supply accepts the following forms of payment for all order types: Visa, MasterCard,
American Express, Discover, HD Supply Account and Electronic Funds Transfer {EFT). Qur
customer service staff is able to accept payment via p-card (procurement card) over the
phone for all orders that are placed on account. In addition, cur e-commerce sites are
compietely integrated to our pricing and delivery platforms, allowing us to accept orders on




account, using major credit card payment methods (multipie cards) and p-card payment
methods.

d. Describe your company’s web portal/e-procurement capabilities,

HD Supply’s website is available 24 hours a day to an unlimited number of unique logins for a
customer. Qur thorough website offers online ordering and comprehensive account
management tools. It allows the customer to piace orders, research new products, review
order history, create a custom catalog, or track shipment. It will become your one-stop
resource on the web for managing your product purchases. It also includes easily accessible
information such as product details, specifications, related products, and SDS information (if
applicable).

Below is a list of some of the many tools available through our online site:

Online Ordering Order Tracking Online guote

SDS Information Custom Catalogs Purchase and Spending Reports
“Frequently purchased” POD Retrieval Digital Order Workflow
Customized Offering Options Electronic Invoicing Quick Order

in addition, real-time product availability can be viewed to easily identify the quantity of a
particular item currently stocked at a respective distribution center, Product pricing wili be
available for each item including list pricing and the discounted pricing for participating
agencies. The list price will be shown with a strike through, and the discounted price will be
tlearly listed in bold font directly below.

e. Describe your company’s Quality Assurance/Quality Control processes for tangible products,
online offerings, and customer service.

Quality assurance processes are in place throughout HD Supply’s organization and supply
chain. From the start, we maintain and nurture direct relationships with vendors to deliver
added value such as direct knowledge of sourcing and manufacturing practices, mitigated
risk of counterfeit products, access to manufacturer warranties, and more. Qur direct
relationships with the vendors, brands and manufacturers ensure our product end users that
they will receive authentic items from HD Supply.

HD Supply’s online Order Status system provides our customers with real-time order status
capabilities throughout the ordering pracess. Customers can get updates on:
e Preparing Order — Your items are being prepared for shipping.
» Out for Delivery — You can see tracking information from HD Supply and UPS delivery services by
selecting the carrier’s name under Shipping Detail.
* Delivered — Your items have been delivered and Proof of Delivery (POD) is available.
» 3" Party Shipment — Your items are shipped directly from a supplier.



During our order fulfiliment process, HD Supply uses Systems, Appiications and Product’s
{SAP)'s Warehouse Management (WM) and Extended Warehouse Management (EWM)
systems in our Distribution Centers (DCs) to provide order validation during processing. We
have quality controls in place to perform audits on order fulfiliment and have Customer
Experience teams in our larger DCs to monitor specific areas and provide feedback to DC
leaders for continuous coaching opportunities.

Regarding customer service, we have a highly technical call routing system within our
support centers that allows for automatic overflow transfers to the next availahle
representative, whether customers call the general Customer Service line or our dedicated
Government line. Calls may be monitored for training purposes, and ail Call Center
performance is measured daily on key metrics such as time to answer a call, time spent on
each cail, and the number of dropped calls. By monitoring these metrics closely, we maintain
high standards of service and ensure that we have an adequate number of representatives
available to assist customers.

HD Supply alse has an award-winning Voice of the Customer {VOC) program. We gather
feedback from customer calls, emails, sales representatives, customer surveys, and
anecdotal customer suggestions. Our team analyzes the data to identify areas where we are
performing highly or need improvement. We are always looking for better ways to serve our
customers. Our Customer Advocate team of process improvement professionals specializes
In Six Sigma to ensure improvement actions are implemented.

Allin all, we take a proactive approach to quality and customer satisfaction and strive to
design processes and deliver service on 2 level that enables us to avoid issues, challenges, or
complaints. Should any complaint, issue, or challenge arise, swift action wili be taken to
understand the issue so an agreed upon course of action that best suits alt parties involved
can be decided. With a wealth of resources dedicated to servicing this contract, we have the
bandwidth needed to respond quickly, with the needs of the customer and commitment to
the Master Agreement as the paramount focus. Additionally, we are continually refining our
approach by learning from any issues, challenges, or complaints that do arise, therefore
lessening or eliminating future occurrences.

f. Describe your company’s level of service as it relates to customer service, shipping, lead times,
warranties, returns, and order placement. if your company offers an online ordering system,
provide details regarding its availabllity and use.

Customer Service

HD Supply has three Customer Care Centers that can be reached at 1.800.431.3000 and a
specialized team within the Customer Care Center dedicated to Government customers
which can be reached at 1.877.610.6912. We have a highly technical call routing system that
allows for automatic overflow transfers to the next available representative, whether



customers call the general Customer Service line or the dedicated Government line. In
addition, our support centers are also home to other department teams such as Credit
Services, Account Services, Web Support, Praduct Support, eBusiness, and many others. By
having support centers in multiple locations and in each time zone across the US, we can
ensure reliable continued service to our customers, without service interruption, in the
event of an emergency if one of our locations is affected.

The three Customer Care Centers are located in: Santee, CA, New Braunfels, TX, and
Jacksonville, FL,

Customer Service Hours of Operation:
Monday - Friday

Pacific - 5:00am-5:00pm

Mountain - 6:00am-6:00pm

Central - 7:00am-7:00pm

Eastern - 8:00am-8:00pm

Shipping and Lead Times

With a fleet of 2,000 dedicated trucks and over 180 distribution pointes, we have the
capabifity to offer several easy and efficient ways to deliver our product. HD Supply has the
capacity to provide free, next-day delivery, Monday-Friday, to most areas of the US as well as
priority overnight shipping. If the customer is located near one of our distribution centers,
they will be able to request will-call pickup. This service is available by phone between 8 a.m.
and 4.p.m locaf time.

In addition, customers can take advantage of our in-unit delivery services. This service is of
ng cost with purchases of 4 or more major appliances. With this service, HD Supply delivers
appliances directly into units, uncrates and removes all packing materials, and hauls away
and recycles old appliances.

Warranty .
HD Supply does not provide any warranty for the goods it supplies but shall pass through any i

transferable manufacturer's standard warranties. Manufacture warranty terms cover
manufacturer defects. Issues pertaining to installation, maintenance, or damage are not
covered by warranty, Manufacturers will generally service or repair warranty items without
replacing the entire unit,

Returns

HD Supply has the ability to accept returned product in its original packaging up to 90 days
from the date of purchase. A return form can be requested to begin the return process. The
return will be processed within 24 business hours. After the return is processed, a Return
goods authorization {RGA) number will be assigned to the customer. This RGA number
allows the customer to ship the product back to HD Supply.

Order placement




Customers can easily place orders via the web at hdsupplysolutions.com, by email at
customercare @hdsupply.com, or phone 1,800.431.3000.

The online ordering system is available 24/7 utilizing our website and mobile application.
Our mobile app tools include Scan to Order, where you have the ability to quickly and easily
scan bin labels or printed catalog to place orders, as well as Image Search, where you can
take a photo of the product and the app will find ali related products for you.

g Describe your company’s sustainability efforts. This may include its support of “green”
intiatives, sustainability efforts, and/or other programs.

HD Supply is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of The Home Depot. In the words of Ted
Decker, CEQ and President of The Home Depot, “We know that when we invest in running a
responsible, sustainable company, we make our business stronger, more agile and mare
resilient”

The Home Depot's 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance {ESG) Report can be found at
the website below and addresses numerous aspects of our organization’s focus on Our
People, Operating Sustainably, and Strengthening Our Communities,

https://corporate.homedepot.com/sites/default/ﬁles/2023-
07/2023%zouome%zooepot%zoesG%20Report_vF.4*?.25.23%20%28compressed%29.pdf

More specific details on recycling, refurbishment and reduction of package waste can be
found at Circularity - Eco Options at The Home Depot,

Efforts to reduce The Home Depot’s carbon footprint, including the reduction of emissions,
are described at Protecting the Climate | The Home Depot.

HD Supply is also directly focused on positively affecting the environment with initiatives
that include:

- piloting 14 electric vehicles and charging abilities for the delivery fleet across 3markets {LA,
Atlanta and Sacramento) |

- assessing conversion to electric yard trucks at California DCs

- rolling out bailing machines at all large Hub DCs to facilitate recycling of corrugate boxes
and packages

- rolling out Engie {Energy Consolidator} in Q4 2022 to process all HD Supply utilities (Gas, |
Electric and Water) to gain single-point visibility into all our consumption for targeted
reduction activities



Furthermore, HD Supply’s product offerings help our customers to operate more sustainably
as well. We offer products and resources to assist customers with energy efficiency, water
conservation, indoor air quality, waste reduction, hazardous material disposal and rebates,
among other things.
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EXHIBIT A
QUESTIONNAIRE FOR NATIONAL CONSIDERATION

Suppliers are required to meet specific qualifications. Please respond to each qualification
statement on this questionnaire.

1.

L

Will the pricing for all Products and/or Services offered be equal to or better than any other
pricing options it offers to Participating Public Agencies nationally?
Yes No_ X

Does your company have the abitity to provide service to any Participating Public Agencies
in all 50 states?

Yes_X *No
{*If no, identify the states where you do not have the ability to provide service to Participating Agencies.)

Does your company have a national sales force, dealer network or distributor with the ability
to call on Participating Public Agencies in at feast 35 states?

Yes_ X *No
{*If no, identify the states where you have the ability to call on Participating Public Agencies.)

Will your company assign a dedicated Senior Managerment level Account Managet to support
the resulting GovMVMT contract?
Yes_ % No
Daes your company maintain records of your overall Participating Public Agencies” sales
that you can and will share with GovMVMT to monitor contract implementation progress?
Yes_X No

Does your company have the ability to provide electronic and ecammerce ordering and
billing?
Yes X No
Will the GovMVMT contract be your lead public offering to Participating Public Agencies?
Yes No_X

Check which applies for your company sales last year in the United States:
Sales between $0 - $25 Million

Sales greater than $25 Million to $50 Million
Sales greater than $50 Million to $100 Million
X __ Sales greater than $100 Million

submitied by:

Sami Nassar Senior Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer

{Printed Name) (Title)
an "’Jéhﬁlf:i‘r
Sovh (Lef§er 2/19/2024

7

= (Signature) (Date}
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EXHIBIT B
SUPPLIER RESPONSE

Supplier must provide the following information in order for the Lead Public Agency to determing

Supplier’s qualifications to extend the resulting Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies
thru GovMVMT,

A. National Commitments

1. Piease provide a written narrative of your understanding and acceptance of the Supplier
Representations and Covenants in Section 1 of this Attachment.

H

B. Company

1. Provide z brief history and description of Supplier, including Supplier's experience in
providing similar products and services.

Ni
the ! ipply

FLEAE

L

g

Provide the total number and location of salespersons employed by your company in the
United States.

Number of
Sales
Representatives | State
12 Alabama
9 Arlzona
33 California
18 Colorado
3 Connecticut
1 Delaware

Copyngit © HD Supply, Inc. 2024, This documem cardaing proprelary and confidential information and ie not to be diszeminated, publishea, or distribuled withsut tha
express written consent of HD Supply, Inc. AN rights reserved




HD Supply's Respanse to Seated Proposal # 24-6800
Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, industrial Supplies, and Ralated Products and Services

59 Florida

15 Georgia

g Hinois

9 Indiana

12 fowa

b Kansas

3 Kentucky

9 Louisfana

1 Maine

7 Maryland

17 Massachusetts
4 Michigan

12 Minnesota

1 Mississippi

6 Missouri

2 Mantana

10 Nebraska

Nevada

5 New Hampshire
21 New lersey

10 New York

14 North Carolina
12 Ohio

11 Cklahoma

10 Oregon

15 Pennsylvania
1 Rhode Island
18 South Carolina
6 Tennessee
55 Texas

13 Virginia
29 Washington

3 Wast Virginia
5 Wisconsin

1 Wyoming

Total: 574

3. Please provide a narrative of how these salespeople would be used to market the contract to
eligible agencies across the country. Please describe what you have in place today and your
future plans, if you were awarded the contract.

HD Supply has almost 600 members of ils national salesfor perienced in the sale ta and
support of public entities both directly and through iarge cooperative contracts. Upon award of the
GovMVMT contract, with the oversight and support of HD Supply’s Executive Sales leadership,

Copyright & HD Supply, Inc 2024 This decumert conlains preprielary and cordidantral (mformition and is not 10 e desaminsted, publfshad, ar diniibuted without the
exprass witten consant of HD Supply, Inc. AR rigihts raserved




HD Supply’s Response to Sealed Proposal # 24-6800

Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supglies, Industrial Supplies, and Relaled Products and Services
training and marketing collateral will be developed in partnership with GoVMYMT leadership to
ensure aur sales team is knowledgeable of the terms, conditions and benefits of this contract,
aggressively markelting the program and encouraging eligible Public Agencies in becoming
Participating Public Agencies of the GovMVMT Master Agreement. Qur Sales teams will also assist
with new account set-up, where applicable, and ensure alt Participating Public Agencies are tiad to
the GevMVMT cooperative contract to benefit from the discounted pricing and tiered rebate
structure of the agreement. HD Supply will ensure our Customer Care Centers are also trained on
the Master Agreement between GovMVMT and HD Supply to provide the support required by
each Agency, as needed,

4. Provide the number and location of support centers.

HD Supply has three Customer Care Centers which reside in Santee, Califarnia, New Braunfels,
Texas, and Jacksenville, Florida - each strategic ally situated ac aripus fime zone

Customer Care Center hours of operation are M nday through Friday 8am-5pm in all time zone
We have a highly technical call routing system that ailows far automatic overflow transfers to the
next available representative, whether customers call the general Custemer Service line or the
dedicated Government line. Calls may be menitored for training purposes, and all Call Center
performance is measured daily on key metrics such as time to answer a call, time spent o5 each
cali, and the number of dropped calls. By monitoring these metrics closely, we can maintain high
standards of service and ensure that we have enough representatives available to assist
customers.

In addition to housing our Customer Care teams, our support centers are also home to other
department teams such as Credit Services, Account Services, Web Support, Product Support,
eBusiness, and many others. By having support centers in multiple locations, we can ensure

reliable continued service to our customers, without service intes ruption, in the event of an

emergency if one of our locatians is affected

3. Provide company annual sales for the three previous fiscal years in the United States. Sales
reporting should be segmented into the following categories:

As a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of The Home Depot, HD Supply financials are reported as
part of earnings of The Home Depot, Inc.

SUPPLIER ANNUAL SALES IN THE UNITED STATES FOR 20, 20, AND

20___

SEGMENT 20 __SALES | 20__SALES 20___SALES
Cities -

Counties

K-12 (Public/Private)

Higher Education (Public/Private)

Siates

Other Public Sector and Nengrofits

Federa!

Private Sector

Tolal Supplier Sales

Capyright © HD Supply, Inc 2024, This dogusnsnl conlains proprietary and conmfdendial Information and |s not 1o be dissesmnated, published, ar distibiAzd wilhoy tha
expeass wiitlen cansent of HO Supply, lnge Al Hghis reserved.




HD Supply's Respanse lo Sealed Proposal & 24-6800
Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, tndustrial Supplies, end Related Products and Services

Customer Union County Housing Authority
Contact Susan Christophel
Information 386-496-2047
unioncohousing@windstream.net
Customer Los Angeles City HA
Contact Lilian Choy
Information 213-252-1851
Lilian.Choy@hacla.org
Customer Mercy Housing
Contact Robert Jacoby
Information 303.830.3305
l riacoby@mercyhousing.org
Customer Denver Housing Authority
Contact Wayne Taunton
information 720-832-3000
wtaunt@denverhousing.org
Customer Portland Public Schools
Contact Frank Leavitt
information fleavitt@pps.net
(503) 320-4162
Customer City of San Antonio
Contact Marilyn Timlake
Information marilyn.timlake@sanantonio.gov
(210) 207-6012
Customer University of California Office of the President
Contact Silvia Rivera Vasquez
Information silvia.riveravasquez@ucop.edu
(510) 987-9660

8. Describe any green or environmental initiatives or policies.

HO Supply is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of The Hom Depot. In the words of Ted Decker
CEQ and President of The Home Depot, "We know that when we invest in running a responsible
sustainable company, we make our business stronger, more agile and more resilient.’

The Home Depot’s 2023 Environmental, Social and Gaverrance (ESG) Report can be found at the
website below and addresses numerous aspects of our organization’s focus on Qur Peapile,
Operating Sustainably, and Strengthening Our Communities

Copyright © HD Supply, Inc 2024, This document containe proprietary and condidential Infonmetion and is not 10 be disseminaled, published, or aisifouled without the
axpress wrillen consant of HD Supply, Inc, AN rights ressryad
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https://carporate homedepot.com/sites/default/files/2023-
07!2023%20Home%20[}eput%lOESG%EORepon“vF.d_?.;!S 23%20%28compressed%29 pdf

More specific details on recycling, refurbishment and reduction of package waste can be found at
Circularity - Eco Options at The Home Depot

Efforts to reduce The Home Depot’s carbon footprint, including the reduction of emissicns, are
described at Prolecting the Climate | The Home Depot.

HOD Supply is also directly focused an positively affecting the environment with initiatives that
include

- piloting 14 electric vehicles and charging abilities for the deliver y fleet across 3 markets {LA,
Atlanta and Sacramento)

assessing conversion to electric yard trucks at Califarnia De

- rolfing out bailing machines at all large Hub DCs to facilitate recycling of corrugate boxes and
packages

rolling out Engie [Energy Consotidator} in Q4 2022 to process all HD Supply utilities (Gas, Electric
and Water) to gain single- paint visibility into ali our consumplion for targeted reduction activities

Furthermore, HD Supply’s product offerings help our customers to operate more sustainably as
well. We offer products and resources to assist customers with energy efficiency, water
conservation, indoor air quality, waste reduction, hazardous material disposal and rebates, ameng
other things.

Describe any diversity programs or partners Supplier does business with and how
Participating Public Agencies may use diverse partners through the Master Agreement.
Indicate how, if at all, pricing changes when using the diversity program. If there are any
diversity programs, provide a listing of diversity alliances and a copy of their certifications.

Providing opportunities for diverse businesses is part of our commitment to being a good
corporate citizen; it is also vital to our business objectives.

It is HD Supply’s to provide opportunities for small, minonty-owned, women-ocwned, and other
historically disadvantaged businesses to cempete in a fair and equal environment to supply the
high quality, competitively priced preducts and services required by our customers. HD Supply
understands the value a diverse supplier base has on our business, and we are constantly assessing
the market for certified minority- and women owned business enterprise (MWBE) vendor-partners
who offer value-added, quality and innovative products and services that are competitively pricad
and meet {he varied needs of our customers. Because our purchasing structure is aligned with
thousands of local markets and market segments, MWBE businesses are encouraged to research
the needs of MD Supply businesses and make their status known as part of sales presentations to
local purchasing cantacts

As a distributor, we are driven by the need 10 provide our customers with 1he high quality,
competitively priced, innovative praducts they demand. We are always looking for opportunities
ta do so by awarding business to suppliers with certified diversity status. We provide these

Copyright © HO Supply, Ine. 2024. This doruament contains proprietary and confidential Information and i net to ba dissamineled, published, or Sstriboled withaut 1he

EXpreds. wridten consent of HO Supply, Inc. AN ilghils resened.
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businesses the maximum practical opportunity to participate in our sourcing process, while
maintaining all our standard vendor and product selection criteria that allow us to fuifill our
customers’ requirements. HD Supply can provide a purchase history report reflecting purchases
that have been made from suppliers that are part of our diversity program as requested. We
monitor our purchasing activity with the following diversity classifications:

-  Disadvantaged Business Enferprise

= Hub-Zone Business

= Minority-Owned Business [African American, Asian-Pacific Island, Hispanic, Indian
Subcontinent, Native American, Alaska Native)

- Minorily Business Enterprise

- 5BA 8(a) Business

- Small Business (Hub-Zone small, Service-Disabled Veteran small, Veteran Owned small,
Women-Owned small, all other smalt)
Smali Disadvantaged Business

- Veteran-Owned Business (Disabled Veteran, Service-Disablad Veteran, Vietnam Veteran, othar
Veleran)

- Women-Owned Business

We encourage participation in locai, regional and national diversity trade fairs, seminars, and other
networking opportunities where we can expand opportunities to make our needs known and learn
about the capabilities that diverse suppliers can bring. HD Supply is a National Corporate Member
of the National Mingrity Suppiier Development Council (NMSDC) and the Women's Business
Enterprise National Councit (WBFNC) and uses the resources of those crganizations to hetp us
locate high quality certified MWBE vendor-partners. We also strive 1o create a culture of diversity
and inclusion which starts with making sure every associate feels part of the HD Supply family. We
offer resaurces to promote individual and collective growth and heip all associates achieve their
uitimate potential. HD Supply also partners with organizations including Hiring Our Heroes, Young
Women’s Club of America, and Association of Latino Professionals for America to help strengthen
diversity within our talent pipeline.

Copyrgnt © HD Supply, Inc 2024 'This gocumen contgins propristary and confident|sl Information and (s not 1o be dieseminated, published, or distributed without the
EXpress writlen consent of HD Supply, Inc. Al rights resarved,
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0. Indicate if Supplier holds any of the below certifications in any classified areas and include

il

proof of such certification in your response:
2. Minority Women Business Enterprise (MBE or WBE)
Yes No_X_

b. Smal} Business Enterprise {SBE) or Disadvantaged Business (DBE)
Yes NoX__

¢. Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)
Yes Neo_X

d. Historically Underutilized Business Zone Enterprise (HUBZone)
Yes No X

e. Veteran Business Enterprise (VBE)
Yes No X

f Service-Disabled Veteran®s Business Enterprise (SDVBE)
Yes Ne X

If you responded yes to any designations in a-f, please list certifying agency(ies):

Please describe any Affirmative Action Policy your company has in place.
HD Sup; il u 1 ] T Jop
2023 Home Depot ESG

C. Order Processing and Distribution

L

Describe your company s normal order processing procedure from point of customer contact
through delivery and billing.

Upon | ) abilit de prod ar

typically del thi L H
supply Mpany-own | tation

depending lelivery locatio produ ing sp produ re d hipped
the cu r direct| £a ir one of HD Supp L nie

customer pick up may be availahl;
p

HD Supply provic fully functio lir 1e tform th ke ut I'to place and track
orders, research products, review order h Lory, track shipme request returns, and pay invoices
orline. HD Supply is also able to conr to outside e-Procurement systems through electroni

data interchange (ED!}

Copyright © HD Supply, Inc. 2024 This documient contains propriatary and confidantial Information and is fiot 1o be dissaminated, published, er distributed without the
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HI Supply’s Response to Sealed Proposal # 24-6800

Maintenance, Repair, Operating Supplies, Industrial Supplies, and Relaled Products and Services
HD Supply offers state-cf-the-art e-commerce capabilities to our end-users. We understand that e-
commerce toofs are not one size fits all, so we have created a technology program that allows us
10 partner and grow with our customers as we develop and implement technology solutions to fit
their needs. We can quickly provide a solution because we have designed our web platform to be
scalable and flexible to manage the procurement process to meet customers’ unique
requirements. We can implement e-commerce solutions through:

¢ Online Crdering Website and mobile app (UPC scanning is supported via mobile app)

* eProintegrations with the industry’s leading spend management platforms - bath
Funchgut and Hosted catalog aptions

s [EDi Integrations

Through our online ardering site, end-users can implement time-saving tools and resources to help
streamline processes. Some of the many tools availabie include “Favorite” Lists, invoice printing,
safety data sheet (SDS) information, budgeting tools and alerts, customized offering options,
resource pages and more

Online ordering is available through our website 24 hours a day for an unlimited number of unigue
logins tor a custorner. Once logged into an account, users can easily search for product offerings by
product category and attributes, as well as view pricing of each item. Real-time product availability
infarmation can be viewed ta easily identify the quantity of a particular item.

HD Supply’s on-line ordering system supports in-depth functionality including those listed below.
Additional information on each of these capakilities can be provided upon request

* Finding the Right Product *  Procurement Controls
©  Search as you type - © User Roles
o Visual navigation o Order Workflow
o Lists and Bin Labels Required PO
Product Inbox
Recommendations eProturement punch-
Custom Catalog out
© Repair Parts * Spend Management - spend limits
Mobile Scan by order
o Video Search s Reporting
o Image Search © CLategory Purchase Report
* Easy Reordering Top Level Category Spend
»  Lists and Bin Labels o Top 10 tems Purchased
o Subscriptions o Purchaser Report
Frequently Purchased * Invoiting
© Mobile Scan o  BiliTrust
o Order History © Proof of Delivery

HD Supply offers Invoice Gateway, a free, secure electronic invoice system. Once enrolled, customers
can view, sort, and download invoices and statements with proaf of delivery from the fast 24 months.
Customers can link accounts, make payments online via electronic check, credit or debit card, schedule
future payments and view cpen balances

If needed, for products that can be returned, HD Supply provides an Online Return Form 1o kickoff and
manage the pracess.

Copyright £ HD Supply, Inc. 2024 This document contains proprielary and confidential information and j3 nol 1o be daseminated, publshed, or distribuled without the
exprass written consenl of HE Supply, Inc. All Hahts ressnved.
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2

In what formats do you accept orders {telephone, ecommerce, etc.)?

Customers may place orders via our online, 24-hour website at https://hdsupplysolutions.com, via
mobile device, by email at customercare @hdsupply.com and via toll-free phane number at
1.800.431.3000.

Please describe your single system or platform for ali phases of ordering, processing, delivery
and billing.
RO Supply’s enline platform supports each phase of the customer’s purchasing process. Custormers

can log into their account at https://hdsupplyvsolution.com to shap, compare and order products,

understand product availability, place orders, track shipments, view and pay invoices, and request
product return support.

Please state your normal payment terms and any quick-pay incentives available to
Participating Public Agencies.

HD Supply cffers Participating Public Agencies Net 10 payment terms under the GovMVYMT Master
Agreement. Quick pay incentives are not affered within this bid

State which forms of ordering allow the use of 2 procurement card and the accepted banking
{credit card) affiliation.

Our customer service staff can accept payment via p-card over the phone for all orders that are
placed on the customer’s account, In addition, our e-commerce sites are also completely
integrated into our pricing and delivery platforms, which allows HD Supply to accept the P-Card as
well as all other payment forms.

Describe how your company proposes to distribute the Products and Services nationwide.

HD Supply will distribute the products and services reguired by participating public agencies
utilizing our national footprint supported by 12,000+ associates, our own distribution facilities
{180+ geographically dispersed distribution points), trucks {2,000 company-owned and operated
vehicles), and delivery drivers. Depending on the distribution site and our customers’ specific
lacation, we can also utilize UPS or an LTL (less than truckload) carrier for customers cutside our
normal delivery area or located in remote locations. For special orders and nonstock product
shipments may be made directly by the manufacturer. HD Supply will alsg utilize our natianal
network of approved contractors for the rendering of specific services

Identify all other companies that will be involved in the processing, handling or shipping of
the Products and Services to the end user.

wWith HD Supply’s national footprint of 100+ distribution centers, 2,000 company-owned vehicles,
and 12,000 associates, we will handle all processing, handling, and shipping of products to tha end
user except in those cases where a third-party transportation provider may be used due to
location of the end user, product is drop-shipped directly from the manufacturer or an
extraordinary circumstance. With regards to installation/renovation services that may be provided
by HD Supply, we utilize a nationwide netwark of specialized contractors ta support these efforts,

Copyight © HD Supply, Inc 2024 Thil docement comtaing proprietary and confidential information and i nal to ba diasemingted, puhlished, or distibuled who the
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8

10.

Describe how Participating Public Agencies are ensured they will receive the Master
Agreement pricing with your company's distribution channels, such as direct ordering,
retail or in-store locations, distributors, etc. Describe how Participating Public Agencies
verify and audit pricing to ensure its compliance with the Master Agreement.

Upan award of this apportunity, HD Supply will immediately begin the configuration of a custom
landing page for GovMVMT. This landing page will provide Public Agencies with details about the
Master Agreement between GovMVMT and HD Supply and provide answers to questions on how
1o become a Participating Public Agency, including the execution of a Master Intergovernmental
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with GovMVYMT and the submi 510N of a written election
notice to HD Supply to use the Lead Public Agency's Master Agreement

Upon becoming a Participating Public Agency under this agreement, HD Supply will align current
customers and/or set-up new customer accounts under the program. As custamers log in to make
purchases, they will automatically see the list price of each item they are interested in purc hasing,
as well as the price they will pay under the GovMVMT contract.

As the enciosed bid is based on static line-item discounts for the life of the cantract, pricing will
only change as the list price of an item changes. The discount will remain the same based on the
type of preduct purchased. Customer invoices will provide the discount applied to each item
purchased,

Provide the number, size and location of your company s distribution facilities, warehouses,
and retail network, as applicable,

HD Supply is one of the nation’s largest distributors of janitorial, custodial, and MRO supplies, with
3.000+ suppliers and 100,000+ MRO-curated products. Cur expansive offering includes products in
lanitorial Supplies, Fasteners, Material Handling, Plumbing, Power Sources, Landscaping and
Outdoor Supplies/Equipment, Lamps and Lighting, HVAC, Hand Tools, Power Tools, Electrical,
Paint, Security, and Safety, among other categories. We have 12,000 associates and our own
distribution facilities (180+ geographically dispersed distribution points), trucks {2,000 company-
owned and operated vehicles), and delivery drivers. Our associates, facilities and vehicles are
considered vital components of our customer value proposition. With these significant assets, we
typically pravide delivery on stocked items throughout the continental U.S. within 24 - 48 hours
upon receipt of orders. Depending on the distribution site and our customers’ specific location, we
can also utilize UPS or an LTL (less than truckload) carrier for customers outside our normal
delivery area or Incated in remote locations. HD Supply daes not operate retatl location

Describe your ability to provide customized teports (i.e. commadity histories, purchase
histories by department, etc.) for each Participating Public Agency.

HD Supply tracks and maintains numerous data elements across multiple systems.

Below is a list of sample reports, all of which are available withaut charge, along with a brief
description of the repart. HD Supply can supply these reports in various formats, including both
summarized and detailed versions, for Participating Public Agencies under the Master Agreement
All reports are available at any requested account structure fevel based on account set up.
Frequency is determined mutually between the customer and HD Supply. Most are typically
requested monthly, quarterly, or annually in accordance with either the customer’s fiscal year or
by calendar year. This list includes gur most requested report types. Other custom reports may be
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available upon request,
90 Day Purchase Summary - This report provides a snapshot of spend occurring within the most

recent 30-day period. A monthly summary is provided as well as priar year, current year-to-date,
prior year year-to-date and projected spending.

Average Order Size (AQS) Reporting ~ This report displays the average order size at any desired
account structure level within a specific date range.

Product Purchase Regort {PPR] - This report details purchases made at any account structure level.
Reports can be customized to show product category (e g. HVAC), sub-categery {e.g. Air Filters)
and part level as well as any specified date range with PO delail, invoice detail, etc.

ideallygreensSM PPR ~ This report shows purchase detail af al) identified sustainability praducts
from our ideallygreensSM selection of products. Reparts can be customized to show product
category (e.g. HVAC), sub-category {e.g. Air Filters) and part level as well as any specified date
range with PO detail, invoice number detail etc

Product Category Purchase Report - This report shows purchase detail summarized at the product
Calegory level,

Property List Report - This repert displays the property/facility profile detail at any account
structure level. This report wouid typically show Customer ID, Name of Customer, Address, Phone
Number, Fax Number, Email, Purchaser Names, atc

Service Performance Summary Report - This report can be generated only at the highest leve) of
any given account structure. It is based on the HO Supply fiscal year, defined as February through
January. The report provides an overview of active accounts, meaning only accounts with sales
activity within the defined timeframe. Performance metrics are displayed for spend ordering
characteristics and HD Supply performante of operational metrics such as il rate and delivery,

Waterline Report — This report provides an analysis of accounts performing at or below the
average spend rate amongst their account structure, The walerhne is highly detaiied providing
infermation on customer account information, first sale date information, credit representalive,
credit limit data, terms of payment, master service agreement (MSA), company type, sales
representative information, units, prior year sales, year-to-date sales, current year year-to-date
sales, year-to-dae sales growth +/-, projected purchases, projected spend per unit and sales
growth +/-

Aging Summary - This report provides a summary of outstanding invoices of a specific customer
with HD Supply and dispiays their outstanding credit that a customer holds. This reportis in
summary format and contains the customer na me, account number, invaice number, invaice date,
age of invoice, amount, and purchase order.

Customer Credit Detail - The function of this report is to display the customer’s outstanding credit
with HD Supply.

Custom Reparts — Custom reporls can be generated upon request and can include purchasing at
any account structure level far a specific time period. HD Supply representatives will be happy to
assist if you have a request for a custom report.
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11. Describe your company’s ecommerce capabilities:

2. Include details about your company's ability to create punch out sites and accept orders
electronically.

b. Provide detail on your company’s ability to inlegrate with a Public Agency’s
ERP/purchasing system. Please include some details about the resources you have in
place to support these integrations.

O g t

D. Sales and Marketing

1. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement
describing the strategy to immediately implement the Master Agreement as Supplier’s
preferred go-to market strategy for Public Agencies to Supplier's teams nationwide,
including, but not limited to:

a. Executive leadership endorsement and sponsorship of the award as the Supplier's go-to-
market strategy within the first 10 days.

b. Training and education of Supplier's national sales force with participation from the
Supplier’s executive leadership, along with the GovMVMT team within the first 90 days,

Up d GovMVMT bid, HD Supply wili diate! to motion the below
Impl 1 ted
{ d
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HD Supply’s Proposed Project Team

Bruce
Reifsteck
VE, Government Housing
30 years Government SofesMAD expenence
Aaron Skip Cooke Scott Bullard
Levendecker
Dhrector, National Accounts DIrBeLer, Sirakeght M cmunis arectes, Nalowid Accounts
23 yrars Government Soles/ A0 years Covernmeat Sahes/ 13 yeors Gowerarient Sefes/
MAD experience MAD reperence MAO expenence

550+ National Account Mapagers, Field Representatives, Inside Sales Managers

P—— . —— ———

Supporting *  Salas Suppert ¢ Markating « Legal
Teams * Customar Care + Credit/account Services * Contracts/Compflance

implementation Plan for GOVMVYMT Contract

Days 1-30 Days 30 - 90 On-Going
- Nickolf Meetingls] it GOVIMVT keggershin 1 collaboy s on Defining o GITYMNDTT dusirad reporting s this Meatingsireviews uih GOVMVMT leadership to discuss
= progrm ohisctra, layout and logrstic plans, development, as required, of reports. ML Ok oo SECTI
= marketing collateral, alc,
g wmmperhmmlmhﬂmmHDM,
8 Cobb Cauinty and GOVMYMT
1
& |_ mmmuaimmmmmm@.mmrmmummu-um.y _I
o =
< Bl Sharm process on how (5 1) enter inta  MICPA walh GOVMYMNT and 2) provide wrktlan election notice o HO Supply |
8 = T
Eﬂ;ﬂ Educate customer on HD Supply products, services and other off B Huding ordering and T Support ’
el Ongoing support of Customer, a5 needed,/desired
Etvmnal press release and d iy of ketng coll "
MWHMIthDmm«mnmrmammﬂmAHumm
Training of HD Supply Contract Admins, Seles/Account Trams aned Customer Suppert Center stalf on GOVIMVMT Ag T St ke condit Bjertves, cte
E Amm-uplrummm]wﬁnmmmmumfqmr{fwummmhmmmxmllweumdm;&wuumﬁ:rmm
E Conliguration of GOVMVMT hding tits on hdsupphysolutions. com
g Operationalize Participating Agency access ko defined catalog/proing, upon execution of MICPA and HD Supply election notics
Ore-oing Cmomar Suppart Conber support 1o sech
COVMYRIT Pacticipating Agency, &5 meeded
Timaly reporting, il required, to meet curtomer Meguitemants
linkernai swds o ensure on-going i
L & HE Supply's processing/payment of admin fees and rebates
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Provide a detailed 90-day pian beginning from award date of the Master Agreement
describing the strategy to market the Master Agreement to current Participating Public
Agencies, existing Public Ageney customers of Supplier, as well as to prospective Public
Agencies nationwide immediately upon award, including, but not limited to:

2. Creation and distribution of a co-branded press release to trade publications.

b. Announcement, Master Agreement details and contact information published on the

Provider’s website within the first 90 days.

¢. Commitment to attendance and participation with GovMVMT at national (i.e. NIGP
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Annual Forum, etc.), regional (i.e. Regional NIGP Chapter meetings, Regional Sumumits,
eic.) and provider-specific trade shows, conferences and meetings throughout the term of
the Master Agreement.

d. Commitment to attend, exhibit and participate at the NIGP Annual Forum in an area
reserved by GovMVMT for partner providers. Booth space wiil be purchased and staffed
by Supplier.

¢. Design and publication of national and regional advertising in trade publications
throughout the termn of the Master Agreement,

f. Ongeing marketing and promotion of the Master Agreement throughout its term (case
studies, collateral pieces, presentations, promotions. etc.)

g- Dedicated GovMVMT internet web-based homepage on Supplier’s website with:

GovMVMT Partners standard logoe;

Copy of original Request for Proposal, including al! addenda:

Copy of Master Agreement all amendments between Lead Public Agency and
Supplier;

Marketing Materials;

Electronic link to GovMVMT website including the onfine registration page;
A dedicated toll-free number and email address for GovMVMT.

3. Describe how Provider will transition any existing Public Agency customers’ accounts to the
Master Agreement available nationally through GovMVMT. Include a list of current
cooperative contracts (regional and national) Supplier holds and deseribe how the Master
Agreement will be positioned among the other cooperative agreerments.

4. Acknowledge Supplier agrees to provide its logo(s) to GovMVMT and agrees to provide
permission for reproduction of such logo in marketing communications and promotions,
Acknowledge that use of GovMVMT logo will require permission for reproduction as well,

HD Supp hi

5. Confirm Supplier will be proactive in direct sales of Supplier’s Products and Services to
Public Agencies nationwide and the timely follow up to leads established by GovMVMT. All
sales materials are to use the GovMVMT logo. At a minimum, the Supplier’s sales initiatives
should communicate:
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a. Master Agreement was competitively solicited and publicly awarded by a Lead Public
Agency

¢. No cost to participate
d. Non-exclusive

H[ ..prl. l”. 1 +h e I

6. Confirm Supplier will train its national sales force on the Master Agreement. Ata minimum,
sales training should include:

Key features of Master Agreernent

Working knowledge of the solicitation process

¢ Awareness of the range of Public Agencies that can utilize the Master Agreement through
GovMVMT

d. Knowiedge of benefits of the use of cooperative cantract

o

HD Supg
th\. il ;E e ' ! aAr { -J‘

7. Provide the name, title, email and phone number for the person(s) who will be responsible

for:
Exeq T
o ®*  Hayl
Wi ident, Fl hayl eti ) hd )
by reifstec)
! E
h * D
»
{ B
Ol vl . (&30
{:
®» Bg !
a
Dur dl
t.Bull {
|&30) 50 P,
I v:
. _ & t
Director, Nat . 1-800-79¢
Skip.Cooka @ hd ollechions@hdsupply.com
f919] 612-3
2 antract
. Sales Support ®  laura Houstor
®  Brian Bailey Director, Cantract/Bids
Supervisor, Custamers Solutions Laura.hguston@hdsupply.com
Brian.Bailey@hdsupply com 404-702-307

(B58) B31-2154
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8

10

Describe how Supplier’s national sales force is structured, including contact information for
the highest level executive responsible for the sales tearn.

HD Supply’s national salesforce includes our National Account Team, Field Representatives and
fnside Sales Managers, all of whom are trained and responsible for engaging custamers directly
regarding HD Supply's offerings, including cooperative agreements and the benefits of these
agreements. HO Supply also has a large Customer Care Team which will be educatad on the
GOVYMVMT award to provide value-added support to each customer

Our highest-level executives respansible for the Sales Team associated with public agencies are:

Sheila Schnellenberger
Chief Sales Officer
Sheila.Schnellenberger@hdsupply.com

Bruce Reifsteck

Vice President, Government Housing
Bruce.Reifsteck@hdsupply.com
267.981.1066

Explain how your company’s sales team will work with the GovMVMT team 10 implement.
grow and service the national program.

Lpon award of this opportunity, HD Supply will put into action several key activities to partner
with GOVMVMT and support and grow the program including, but not limited to

- aKickofl Meeting with GOVMYMT ieadership to collaborate on the program’s objectives,
communications plan, logistical strategy and more
training of HD Supply Sales and Customer Support teams on the Agreement

- defining of GOVMVYMT desired reporting and creation of required report ing

- on-going meetings to review program objectives and success metrics with GOVMVMT
leadership, as well as define any new plans for additional marketing eflorts
provide an annual contract performance review between Cobb County, GCVMVYMT and HD

Supply

Explain how your company will manage the overall national program throughaout the term of
the Master Agreement, including ongoing coordination of marketing and sales efforts. timely
new Participating Public Agency account set-up, timely contract administration, etc.

initial kickoff activities may include a joint press release with Cabb County and GOVMVMT,
marketing material to be shared with GOVMVMT eligible members, and specific contact
information for customer inquiries

Akin to HD Supply’s executicn of similar large, national multi-customer contracts, upon award of
the Cobb County GOVMYMT MRO and Institutional opportunity HD Supply’s Sales, Accounts,
Lontracts and Legal teams will partner with eligible public entities interested i entering intc a
Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement {MICPA} under 1he Cabb County
GOVMVMT contract. HD Supply has proven processes in place to quickly initiate and support these
activities while ensuring Participating Agencies receive the individual support they require.
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Upon HD Supply’s receipt of a written election notice from a GOVMYMT Participating Agency, the
rmplementation phase wil include the creation of an online account for the Agency. Customers
will receive exceptional service through our National Account Team, Fieid Representatives, and/or
Inside Sales Managers. HD Supply’s Customer Care Team will be educated on the GOVMVYMT
award, as well as appropriate conditions of the agreement, to provide value-added support to
each customer.,

HD Supply’s extensive national footprint, delivery capabilities and product mix will be immediately
avaifable 10 support the specific needs of each Participating Agency. On-going account support will
include collaboration between HD Supply and Participating Agencies to meet any Agency-specific
required reporting needs and program objectives.

We will maintain on-going Business Reviews with GOVMVYMT to review program objectives and
success metrics and discuss any additional marketing activities that may be needed

HD Supply has a full sulte of trained sales and customer care teams to provide exceptional
customer service to GOVMVYMT members and eligibie entities. in sole support of Government
custemers, this includes a dedicated Customer Care Team, as well as over 550 associates in roles of
National Account Managers, Field Sales and Inside Sales nalionwide exclusively in support of and
focused on Government accounts,

Cur facility maintenance experts are available to assist with product selection, order assistance,
product training and more. Each representative has access to the Participating Agency’s account
information to support their ahility 10 assist them

Specifically, cur dedicated Government Customer Care Center is staffed with support agents
experienced with State, Federal and Local government entities and will be akle to address all
fuestions, concerns, and interactions with partic Ipating state accounts. This will be a tailored
response with the use of the available account information in our customer relationship
management {CAM) platform.

HD Supply will also configure a GOVMVMT landing page to provide key information, contacts and
links for ali interested Public Agencies

We understand and commit 1o training HD Supply's salesfarce on how to present the GOVMVYMT
Master Agreement 1o eligible entities and will work diligently to ensure all HD Supply sales
representatives are trained on the benefits of the program, beyond just offering competitive
pricing to participating entities, An updated toolbox will be made availa ble to our entire sales team
with all documents, co-branded marketing material and additional infarmation to effectively
market and support the Master Agreement nationally.
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1. While it is anticipated many Public Agencies will be able to utilize the Master Agreement

without further formal solicitation, there may be circumstances where Public Agencies will
issue their own solicitations. The following options are available when responding 1o a
solicitation for Products covered under the Master Agreement. Describe your company’s
strategies under these options when responding to a solicitation.

I I &

2. Respond with Master Agreement pricing (Contract Sales reported to GovMVMT).

b. If competitive conditions require pricing lower than the standard Master
Agreement not- to-exceed pricing, Supplier may respond with lower
pricing through the Master Agreement, If Supplier is awarded the
Contract, the sales are reported as contract sales to GovMVMT under the
Master Agreement,

c. Respond with pricing higher than Master Agreement online in the
unlikely event that the Public Agency refuses to utilize Master
Agreement (Contract sales are not reported to GovMVMT).

d. [faiternative or multiple proposals are permitted, respond with pricing higher than
Master Agreement, and include Master Agreement as the alternate or additional
propasal.

12 Describe your company s sales goals for this Contract if awarded the Master Agreement,

including targeted dollar volume by vear:
$ {00 in year cne

$§ _ 00inyeartwo

.00 in year three

E. Additional Information

L

Please use this opportunity to describe any other offerings your organization can provide that
you feel will provide additional value and benefit to a Participating Public Agency.

Installation/Rencovation ice

The HD Supply R tigy e fi g ¥ ingle-sou plier. W
specialize in housing authority, student housing and mili ary nousing, but our experience extend
to the unigu | ariet nt entities. We provide experie roguct
tandardization solutions, p alized supp ol fl to meet the sg faur
custemers, Our ations 1t partn re illy vetted and chosen and provid
the ability t mply with the Davis-P L prevailin dge provisicns, as necessar

Woe can also provide assistance with uilding your sustainability plan and can : inport ¢ met

with utility rebates and free lighting audits ta ensure envir nmentally preferable government
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renavations. Additionally, with aur recent acquisition of Redi Carpet, HD Suppiy furthers our
renovation capabilities in the flooring space. Installation and Renovartion services are quoted hy
project and is covered under Custom Labor and will be priced in accordance with RS Means. Pricing
represents labor only for task and material is priced separately in accordance with this RFP
response.

Warehouse Management Solutions.

HD Supply offers 2 suite of tools 10 optimize the management of inventary for organizations. These
sofutions are designed to help improve inventory visibility for end-users, reduce product shrinkage,
increase productivity, enhance product sta ndardization, reduce carrying costs and Mmanage overall

casts

HD Supply Inventory Solutions offered include:

- 3upply Ware - Cloud based inventory management/replenishment at the Location/Truck/SKU
level via App

- PPl {Pre-positioned Inventory) - Product consignment at a customer’s location, audited
quarterly

- SMP (Shop Management Program) - Design and implementation of MRO products at a
customer’s location to include sheiving, bins and labels
VMI (Vendor Managed Inventory) - Elite customer partnerships where HD Supply has assets
and a full-time associate on site at a customer's location

The HD Supply Inventory Solutions Team is manned by Project Managers, an in-house Support
Team, Field Services and Cuslomer onsite team members experienced in the implementation and
mdnagement of inventory solutions

Disaster Recovery Plans and Services.

HD Supply understands that emergencies happen, and we have a Disaster Recovery plan and team
in ptace and prepared for such events, Qur Disaster Recovery playbook inciudes detaifed plans for
ensuring our associates are safe and accounted for and our distribution centers and transportation
fleet is operational to support our ability to serve our tustomers. Additional features include:

- Backup/redundant systems, functions, distribution faoilities, and Customer Care teams are
basic elements of our disaster recovery elforts, as well as relationships with preferred vendars
that can provide products when necessary.

- {Callcenters located in muitiple regions throughout the United States so that in the event of an
emergency, if one of our locations is affected, we can continue to seamlessly serve our
customers with little Lo no service interruption.

- Analional footprint that provides systermn redundancies throughout our network, along with
distribution center backup for product that may be temporarily out of stock in the local DC.

- Pre-planning activities to prepare for potential disasters, including the stocking of emergency
supplies in areas that may be affected by a disaster.

- Organizational-wide communication plan to ensure alt aspects of the business are operating as
one - with focus on meeting our customer’s needs through Sates Team updates on facilities
and order status and movement of products from less impacted areas to more impacted
regions. This includes a website specifically for communicaling with our custonters on the
status of our network

These safeguards are in place to ensure your orders are delivered when you need them and have
allowed us to continue to service the entire country even when & portion of the country is affected

by disaster.

Copyright © HD Supply, Ine. 2024, This document containa proprietacy and confident s infermation and is not fo be disasminated, published, or distibuted without tha
express writlen conasnt of HO Supply, Inc. Al rights regerved.




EXHIBIT F
FEDERAL FUNDS CONTRACT PROVISIONS

Participating Public Agencies may choose to utilize federal finds to purchase under the Master

Agreement. The Padicipating Public Agency must notify the Contractor in yriting each time the
Pardicipation Public Agency utiliz lcral_funds. This Exhibit includes language that meets the

requirements of Appendix I to the Federal Uniform Guidance. Complete this Exhibit F and submit
as part of your response.

DEFINITIONS

Contract: A legal instrument by which a Federal funding award recipient or subrecipient purchases
property or services needed to carry out the project or program under a federal award. A contract, for
the purposes of this Exhibit. does not mean a federal award or subaward. The term “Contract™ is
interchangeable with the term “Master Agreement.”

Contractor: Contractor means an entity that receives a contract. The term “Contractor” is
interchangeable with the term “Supplier.™

Cooperative agreement: A legal instrument of financial assistance between a federal awarding
agency or pass-through entity and a non-Federal entity. that is consistent with 31 U.8.C. 6302-6305.

Federal awarding agency: The federal agency that provides a federal award directly to & non-
Federal entity (NFE).

Federal award: The financial assistance that an NFE receives either directly from a federal awarding
agency ot indirectly from a pass-through entity. In this Exhibit, the term is used interchangeable with
“Federal awarding agency™, “grant”, and “financial assistance.”

Non-Federal Entity (NFE): A state. local government, Indian Tribe, Institution of Higher
Education, or eligible private nonprofit organization that carries out a federal award as a recipient or
subrecipient.

Recipient: An NFE that receives a federal award directly from a federal awarding agency to carry
out an activity under a federal program. The term recipient does not include subrecipients. A recipient
is responsible for administering the federal award in accordance with applicable federal laws.
Examples of recipients include state, local governments. Indian tribe, or territorial governments.

Pass-through entity: A recipient that provides a subaward to a subrecipient to carry out part of a
federal program is known as the pass-through entity. Pass-through entities are responsible for
processing subawards to subrecipients and ensuring subrecipient compliance with the terms and
conditions of the Federal funding award agreement.

Simplified Acquisition Threshold (SAT): Simplified acquisition threshold means the dollar zmount
below which an NFE may purchase property or services using small purchase methods. NFEs adopt
smell purchase procedures to expedite the purchase of items costing less than the simplified
acquisition threshold. The federal SAT is set by the FAR at 48 CFR Subpart 2.1 (Definitions) and in
accordance with 41 U.8.C. 1908. As of June 2018, the federal SAT is $250.000 but is periodically
adjusted for inflation.

N
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Subaward: An award provided by a pass-through entity to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to carry
out a part of federal award received by the pass-through entity. 1t does not include payments to a
Contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a federal program. A subaward may
be provided through any form of legal agreement, including an agreement that the pass-through entity
considers a Contract.

Subrecipient: An NFE that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a
federal program but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such program.

Uniform Guidance: The series of regulations found at 2 CFR Part 200 that establishes Uniform
Adminisirative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for federal awards to NFEs.
The Uniform Rules are referred to by several names throughout this Exhibit. Some of the names
include standards, requirements, rules, and regulations.

58




EXHIBIT F
FEDERAL FUNDS CONTRACT PROVISIONS

The following certifications and provisions may be required and apply with i a Participating Public
Agency spends federal funds for any purchase resulting from this procurement process. Pursuantio

AgeﬂHﬁ_ﬂmuﬂﬁﬂHﬂHlﬁHmﬁ%geﬂﬁm and-Subeontractors-shall-contain-the
PEOCHr e H-provisionsof A poandi 9 east00 a5 annlieak

e-_Upon prior wrilten notice (o

Contractor that the Parti ipating Public Agency intends to utilize federal funds. Contractor agrees to
include the following Appendix [ 1o CFR 200 into all such contracts, including small purchases, as
applicable.

AEREENDIX IT TO 2 CFR 200

. Remedies. Contracts for more than the federal simplified acquisition threshold (SAT), the dollar
amount below which a Non-Federal Entity (“NFE™) may purchase property or services using
small purchase methods, currently set at $250,000 for procurements made on or afier June 20,
2018, must address administrative, contractual. or legal remedies in instances where contractors
violate or breach contract terms, and must provide for sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

Pursuant to this Federal Rule, 1, Remedies, above, when a Participating Public Agency spends
Jederal funds, the Participating Public Agency reserves all rights and privileges under the
applicable laws and regulations with respect to this procurement in the event of breach of
contract by either party.

LH. agrees

(Initial of Supplier's Authorized Representative)

[

Termination for Cause and Convenience. Contracts for cause and for convenience by the
grantee or subgrantee, including the manner by which it will be carried out and the basis for
seftlement. This applies to contracts that are more than $10.000.

Pursuant io this Federal Rule, 2. Termination Jor Cause and Convenience above. when a
FPariicipating Public Agency spends federal funds. the FParticipating Public Agency reserves the
right 1o immediately terminate any agreemenmt in excess of §10.000 resulting from this
procurement process in the event of o breach or defawit of the agreement by Supplier or for
converience as detailed in the terms of the contract.

L"! agrees
({nitial of Supplier's Authorized Representative;

3. Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract™ must include the
equal opportunity clause found in 2 CFR. Part 200.

Pursuant to this Federal Rule, 3, Fqual Emplovment Opportunity above, when a Participating
Public Agency spends federal funds on any federally assisted construction contract, the equc!
opportunify clause is incorporated by reference herein.

| agrees
(Initial of Supplier s Authorized Representative)
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EXHIBITF
FEDERAL FUNDS CONTRACT PROVISIONS

4. Davis-Bacon Act. When required by the federal program legislation, prime construction
contracts over $2,000 awarded by NFEs must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-
Bacon Act. In accordance with the statute, contractors must pay wages to {aborers and mechanics at a rate
not less than the prevailing wages specified in the Secretary of Labor’s wage determination. Additionally,
contractors are required to pay wages at least once per week. The NFE must place a copy of the
Department of Labor's current prevailing wage determination in each solicitation. Contracts or
subcontracts must be awarded on the condition that the prevailing wage determination is accepted. The
NFE must report all suspected or reported viclations to the federal awarding agency. The contracts must
also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act for all contracts subject
to the Davis-Bacon Act. According to 29 CFR § 5.5(a)(3). the regulatory requirements for the Copeland
“Anti-Kickback™ Act are incorporated by reference into the required contract provision, so a separate
contract provision is not necessary. The NFE must and hereby includes the provisions at 29 CFR §
3.5(a) 1~(10) in full into all applicable contracts and all applicable contractors must include their
provisions in full in any subcontracts.

Pursuant to Federal Rule, 4, Davis-Bacon Act above, when a Participating Public Agency spends
Jederal funds during the 1erm of the award for all contracts and subcomtracty Jor construction or
repair, Supplier will be in compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions,

LM agrees

(Initial of Supplier's Authorized Representative)

5. Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act, The Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act prohibiis workers on
construction contracts from giving up wages that they are owed. This Act prohibits each
contractor and subcontractor from any form of persuading a person employed in construction,
completion, or repair of public wark to give up aity part of their rightful compensation. The NFE
must repart all suspected or reported violations of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act the Federai
awarding agency. The contractor shail comply with |8 U.S.C § 874,40 U.S.C § 3145, and the
requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 as may be applicabie, which are incorporated by reference into
this contract. The contractor or subcontractor shafl insert in any subcontracts the clause above
and such other clauses as the Federal funding agreement instructions require, and also a clause
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subconiracts. The prime
contractor shall be responsible for campliance by any subconiractor or lower tier subcontractor
with all of these contract clauses. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for
termination of the contract. and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in
29CFR §5.12.

Fursuant io Federal Rule, 5 Copeland *Anti-Kickback" Act, when a Participoting Public
Agency spends federal funds during the ferm of the award Jor all contracts and subcontracis for
consiruction and repair, Supplier will be in compliance with all applicable Copeland “Anti-
Kickback” Act provisions.

LH agrees
(Initial of Supplier's Authorized Representative)
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EXHIBIT F
FEDERAL FUNDS CONTRACT PROVISIONS

provided by the Federal awarding agency. Violations must be reported to Federal awarding
agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Pursuant to Federal Rule, 8, Clean Air Act ond Federal Water Pollution Control Act above, when

Jederal funds are spent by Participating Public Agency, the Supplier certifies that during the term

of an qward for all contracts by Participating Public Agency resulting from this procurement
process, the Supplier agrees to comply with all applicable requirements as referenced in this
Federal Rule.

LH agrees

(Initial of Supplier s Authorized Representative)

Debarment and Suspension. For all contracts and subcontracts {(see 2 CFR § 180.220), an award
must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award
Management (SAM). SAM Exclusions is the list maintained by the General Services
Administration that contains the names of parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded, or declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive
Order 12549.

Pursuant to Federal Rule, 9. Debarment and Suspension above, when Jederal funds are spent by
Farticipating Public Agency, the Supplier certifies that during the tevm of the award for all
contracts by Participating Public Agency resulting from this procurement process, the Supplier
certifies that none of its principals or its affiliates are debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded, or ineligible from participation by any federal deparitment or agency. If at am time
during the term of the award the Supplier or its principals or affiliaies become debarved
suspended, or otherwise excluded, or ineligible by am federal department or agency, the
Supplier will notify the Participating Public Agency.

LM agrees

(tnitial of Supplier's Authorized Represeniative)

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, Contractors that apply or bid for an award of more than
$100,000 must file the required certification, Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not
and has not used federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influgncing or
attempting to influence an employee of a federal agency. a Member of Congress, an employee of
Congress, or an empioyee of a Member of Congress in connection with receiving any federal
contract. grant, or other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier must also disclose any
lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award.
Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the recipient who in tum will forward the
certification(s) to the federal awarding agency.

Pursuant fo Federal Rule, 10, Byrd Anti-Lobbying above, when Jederal funds are expended by
Farticipating Public Agency. the Supplier certifies that during the term and afier the awarded
ferm of an award for ail conivacts by Participaing Public Agency resulting from this
procurement process, the Supplier certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable provisions
of the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. The undersigned further certifies:




EXHIBIT F
FEDERAL FUNDS CONTRACT PROVISIONS

manufacturing processes, form the initial melting stage through the application of coatings,
occurred in the United States. Manufactured products mean items and construction materials
composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-
based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as conerete: glass, including
optical {fiber; and lumber.

Pursuant o Federal Rule, 13, Domestic Preferences for Procurements above, when federal funds
are spent by Participating Public Agency, the Supplier certifies that during the term of an award
Jor all contracts by Participating Public Agency resulting from this procurement process, the
Supplier certifies that is will comply with this Domestic Preference for Procurements.

Lif agrees

{Initial of Supplier's Authorized Representative)

Supplier agrees to esmply-use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure compliance with
all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as applicable. It is further
acknowledged that Seppier certifies compliance with all provisions, laws, acts, regulations,
ete. as specifically noted above.

Company Name: HD Supply Facilities Maintenance, Ltd.

Address, City. State. Zip Code: 3400 Cumberland Blvd. SE
Atlanta, GA 30339

Phone: (770) 8529056

Fax;
Printed Name of Authorized Signer:_Sami Nassar

Email address of Authorized Signer:_Sami.nassac@hdsupply.com
hglnu-n&m(
Signature of Authorized Signer: % M M e, N
o [ e

Date: 2/19/2024




EXHIBIT G
NEW JERSEY BUSINESS COMPLIANCE

Suppliers intending to de business in the State of New Jersey must comply with policies and
procedures required by New Jersey statntes. All Suppliers submitting proposals must complete the
following forms to meet the requirements of doing business in this state.

All forms in this Exhibit should be submitted as a part of your proposal response. Failure to comply
will affect the ability to promote the Master Agreement in the State of New Jersey.

Checklist of Documents Required

INCLUDED

IN ATTACHMENT
PROPOSAL

Attachment 1 | Ownership Disclosure Form

Attachment 2 | Non-Collusion Affidavit

Aftachment 3 | Affirmative Action Affidavit

Aftachment 4 | Political Contribution Disclasure Form

Attachment § | Stockholder Disclosure Certification

Certification of Non-Involvement in Prohibited
Attachment 6 Activities in lran

Attachment 7 | New Jersey Business Registration Certification

New Jersey suppliers are required to comply with the following New Jersey statutes when
applicable:

(1) All anti-discrimination laws, including those contained in N.J.§.A. 10:2-1 through N.J.§. A,
10:2-14, N.J.S A, 10:5-1, and N.J.S.A. 10:5-3] through 10:5-38;

{2) Prevailing Wage Act, N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.26, for al! contracts within the contemplation of
the Act;

(3) Public Works Contractor Registration Act, N.J.S.A. 34:1 1-56.26; and

(4) Bid and Performance Security, as required by the applicable municipal or state statutes.
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Fiscal 2022 was another record year for The Home
Depol. We grew our sales by over $6 billion on top of
the mare than 340 bilfion of sales growth we delivered
over the prior two-year period. Even more impressive
is that we achieved these results while successfully
navigating & number of challenges, including persistent
inflation, ongeing global supply chain disruptions, and
a tight labor market.

During fiscal 2022, total sales grew 4,1 percent o
$157.4 billion, compared to fiscal 2021, Fiscal 2002
comparable sales growth was 3.1 percent for the
total company and 2.9 percent in the U.S. Our fiscal
2022 net earnings were $17.1 hillion, and eamings psar
diluted share increased 7.5 percent to $16.69.

This performance was enabled by our associates and
supplier partners, as well as investments we have
made in our peuple, stores, digital platfiorms. supply
chain, technology, and other strategic priorities.

While change is constant in our business, our stratagic
priorties remain the same: deliver the best cusfomer
experience in home impravernent and extend our low-
cost provider position. Our cbhiectives to grow market

share and deliver exceptional shareholder value also
remain unchanged. Fiscal 2022 marked another year
of important progress in support of these priarities and
objectives,

Thraughout fiscal 2022, we continued to reduce friction
for our customers and improve the interconnectad
experience. Sales leveraging our digital platforms
increased aver 7 percent versus prior year, and we
continue 1o see record downloads, fraffic, and sales via
cur mobile app. This growlh is attributable to saveral
erbancements, including an improved online experience
for our Pro loyalty program, the seamiess connectivity
we have provided for our military program, and the
launch of our new store mede feature, which makes
navigating the store and interacting with products much
easier, These enhancements translate to less friction for
our customers, as they navigate the digital world and
connect to the physical world.

We also drove produrctivity within the four walis of our
store through mukltipie intiatives, Our “Get Stores Right™,
or “GSR”, space aptimization inltiative has optimized
our selling square foolage on a store-by-store basis for
hundreds of stores, resulting in a better associate and
tustomer experience,

We are plessed with the continued build out of our
enhanced supply chain network, reaching an important
milestone in fiscal 2022, as we now have all our
apphance delivery volume managed through our Market
Deiivery Operations. Controlling the appliance dedivery
experience end-to-end has helped 1o reduce complexity
and drive meaningful improvements in customer
satisfaction.

While all our investments have strengthened the
business and positioned us to grow share and deliver
exceplional value over the long term, we balieve that
the most impartant investrment we can make is in

our people. We know that our associates are our key
differentiator, and they zre essential in helping us sustain
an excellent customer experience. As a result, we
recently announced that we will invast approximately
§1 billion in annualized compensation for our frontline,
hourly associates begirning in the first quarter of

fiscal 2023, We believe this investment will position us
favorably in the market, allowing us not only 1o attract
the most qualified talent, but also retain the exceptional
associate base that is already in place. This is just one
companent of the asseciate investment story,




To provide the best customer experience in home
improvement, we must focus on cultivating the

best associate experience in retail. This maeans not
only investing in competitive wages and benefits,
but also providing tocls, training and development
opportunities that make working at The Home Dapot
ant enjoyanle and rewarding experience. This year

we took steps to better align our store [eadership
structure to deliver axcellent customer service, take
care of our pecple, and build strang relationships.
We created new management positions focusad
entirely on the customer experience, increasing the
rurnber of managers on the flcor at any given time
and freeing up time for other store leaders to devots to
associate training and development. The net result of
these actions is an improved custamer and associate
expenence, while also creating new career paths and
developiment epportunities for associates.

We also remain focused on leveraging new tools
and technology in stores to reduce complexity

for associates and improve customer service. In
fiscal 2022, we upgraded our in-store network and
introduced the next generation of in-store mabile
devices, known as hdPhones. For the first time ever,
every associate un the floor will haye an hdPhone in
their hands with enhanced communication features,
tocls, and training capabilities. With the deployment
of empowering, productivity-driving apps and other
featurss, these new hdPhones make it easfer for
associates to serve customers and helps them
prioritize tasks more effectively.

In addition to our associates, the tenure and
strength of our refationships with our suppiier and
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transportation partners have also been keys to our
success, Throughout the last few years, our respective
teams have worked tirelessly to fiow product to
distribution centers and stores as quickly and efficiently
as possible, And despite inflation and constrained
global supply chain conditions, our partrers continue to
work collaboratively with us to deliver on our promise
1o be the product authority in homa improvement

by investing to drive innovation and value for oyr
customers.

| could not be more pieased with the resilience

and strength that our associates have continued te
demanstrate, and | want to thank them and our supplier
partners for their hard work and dedication to serving
our customers and communities,

As we look to fiscal 2023, we anticipate continuad
macroeconomic uhoertainty, but believe we have the
tools, team, and experience to effectively manage in any
environment. We will continue to leverage our distinct
competitive advantages to capitalize an compelling
long-term growth opportunities in our space. The
investrments we have made and wili cortinue to make in
differentiated capabilities throughout the business will
deliver a value proposition that we believe is unigue in
hame improvement, allowing us to grow faster than the
market and deliver shareholder value,

ot by

Ted Decker
March 18, 2023
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Certain statements contained herein, as well as in other filings we make with the SEC and other written and aral
information we release, regarding our performance or other events or develapments in the future constitute
“forward-looking statemenis” as defined in the Private Securities Liligation Reform Act of 1895, Forward-tooking
statements may relate to, among cther things, the demand fer our products and services; net sales growth:
comparable sales; the effects of competition; our brand and reputation; implementation of store, interconnected
retail, supply chain and lechnology initiatives: inventory and in-stock positions; the state of the economy; the state of
the housing and home impravement markets; the stale of the credit markets, including mortgages, home equity
foans, and consumer credit; the impact of tariffs; issues related to the payment methods we accept; demand for
credit offerings; management of relationships with our associates, potential associates, suppliers and service
providers; cost and availability of labor; costs of fuet and other energy sources; intemational trade disputes, natural
disasters, climale change, public heallh issues (including the conlinuing impacts of the COVID-12 pandemic and the
related recavery), cybersecurity events, military conflicls or acts of war, supply chain disruptions, and cther business
interruptions that could compromise data privacy or disrupt operation of our stores, distribution centers and other
facilities, our ability to aperate or access communications, financial or banking systems, or supply or delivery of, or
demand for, our products or services; our ability to address expeclaticns regarding ESG matters and meet ESG
goals; continuation or suspension of share repurchases; net eamings performance; earnings per share:; dividend
targets; capital ailocation and expenditures; liquidity; return on invested capital; expense leverage; changes in
interest rates; changes in foreign currency exchange rates; commodity or other price inflation and deflation; our
abilify to issue debt on terms and at rates acceptable to us; the impact and expected cuicome of investigations,
inguilries, claims, and litigafion, including compliance with reiated settiements; the challenges of international
operafions; the adequacy of insurance coverage; the effect of accounting charges; the effect of adapting certain
accounting standards; the impact of legal and regulatory changes, including changes to tax laws and regulations;
store openings and closures; financial cutlook; and the impact of acquired companies on our organization and the
ahility to recognize the anticipated benefits of any acquisitions.

Forward-looking staterments are based on currently available information and our current assumptions, expectations
and projections about future events. You should not rely on aur forward-looking statements. These statements are
not guarantees of future performance and are subject to future events, risks and uncertainties — many of which are
beyond our control, dependent on the actions of third parties, or currently unknown to us — as well as potentizly
inaccurate assumptions that could cause actual resuits to differ materially from our histerical experiance and our
expectations and projections. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those described in Part b
ltem 1A, Risk Factors, and elsewhere in this report and also as may be described from time to time in future reports
we file with the SEC. You should read such information in onjunction with our consalidated financial staterments
and related notes and Part || llem 7. Management's Discussion and 2 nalysis of Financial ( iition and Results of
alions in this report. There also may be other factors that we cannot anticipate or that are nol described hereir,
generally because we do rot currently perceive them to be material. Such faclors could cause results ta differ
materially from our expeclations. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we do
not undertake to update these statemenis other than as required by law. You are advised, however, 1o review any
further disclosures we make on related subjects in our filings with the SEC and in our other public statements,

il -




INTRODUCTIGN

The Home Depot, Inc. is the world's largest home improverment retailer hased on net sales for fiscal 2022. We offer
our customers a wide assoriment of building materials, home improvement products, lawn and garden products,
decor praducts, and faciities maintenance, repair and cperations products. We also provide a number of services,
including home improvernent instaliation services and toal and equipment rental. As of the end of fiscal 2022, we
operaled 2,322 stores located throughout the U.S, {including the Commonwealth of Puerio Rico and the territories
of the U.S. Virgin Islands and Guam), Canada, and Mexica. The Home Depot storas average approximatedy
104,000 square feet of enclosed space, with approximately 24,000 additional square feet of outside garden area.
We also maintain a network of distribution and fuffillment centers, as weil as a number of e-commerce websiles in
the U.S., Canada and Mexico. When we refer to “The Home Dapct," the “Company.” "we," “us” or "our” in this report,
we are referring to The Home Depaot, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The Home Depot, Inc. is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated in 1978, Gur Store Support Center
(corporate headquarters) is located at 2455 Faces Ferry Road, Atlanta, Georgia 30339, Our telephone number at
that address Is (770) 433-8211,

OUR BUSINESS

The retail landscape has changed rapidly over the past several years, with customer expectations constantly
evolving. In fiscal 2022, we continued to operate with agikity to meet the challenges created by a fluid domestic and
global business environment, including supply chain disruptions, tight labor market conditions, and angoing
imflationary pressures, Our ability fo operate successfully and meet the needs of our customers was due in
significant part to our investments over the past several yvears aimed at creating an interconnected, frictionless
shopping experience that enables our customers to seamlessly blend the digilai and physical worlds, Going forward,
we will leverage the momentum of these invesiments and continue to invest in cur business in support of the
following goals:

*  Weintend to provide the best cusiomer experience in home improvement;
*  Weintend to extand our position as the low-cost pravider in home improvemnenrt; and
*  We intend to be the most efficient investor of capital in home improvemant.

We believe that these goals will help us grow faster than the market and deliver value 1o our shareholders. We are
steadfast in this commitment, while also recognizing that exercising corporate respensibility and being informed by
the needs of our other stakeholders, including our customers, associales, supplier partners, and communities,
creales value for all stakehoiders, including our shareholders.

We deliver on our objective to creats shareholder value through our disciplined approach to capital allacation. Qur
capital allocation principies are as follows:

- First, we intend to reinvest in our business to drive growth faster than ths market.

« Secend, after meeting the needs of the business, we look to pay & quarterly dividend, which we intend to
increase as we grow eamings.

+  Third, after reirvesting in our business and paying our dividend, we intend 1o return excess cash to cur
shareholders through share repurchases.

In fiscal 2022, we invested $3.1 hillion in capital expenditures to suppert cur business, advance our goals, and
cortinue to build an interconnected customer experisnce. We also facused on driving productivity throughout the
business to Jower cur costs. The cambination of reinvesting in the business to drive higher sales and supporting
productivity to lower costs creates what we refer to as a virtuous cycle, which has allowed us to improve the
customer experience, increase our competitiveness in the market, and deliver shareholder valus.

In fiscal 2022, we returned over $14 biflion to shareholders in the form of cash dividends and share repurchases.
QOur capital allocation is discussed further in Part |1 llem 7 Management s Qiscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations




We serve two primary customer groups — consumers (including both DIY and DIFM customers) and professional
customers — and have developed varying approaches to meet their diverse needs:

BIY Customers

These customers are typically homeowners who purchase products and complete their awn projects and
instailations. Our associates assist these customers both i our stores and through cnline resources and cther
media designed to provide product and preject knowledge. We also offer a variety of clinics and workshops beih to
share this knowledge and ta build an emotional connsction with our DIY customers.

Professional Customers {or “Pros™)

These customers are primarily professional renqvatorsiremodelers, general confractors, maintenance professionals,
handymen, property managers, buifding service contractors and specialty tradespeople, such as electricians,
plumbers and painters, These customers build, renovate, remodel, repair, and maintain residential properties,
muttifamily properties, hospitality properties, and commercial facilities, including education, healthcare, government,
institutional, and office buildings.

We have a number of initiativas designed to drive growth with our Pros, including a customized online experience, g
dedicated saies force, an extensive delivery network, our Fro Xtra loyalty program, enhanced credit offerings, and
inventary management pragrams. Building on our historical strength as a destination for urgend purchase needs, we
are investing in capabilities that will help us better serve our Pros’ planned purchase needs (in-store or via our
dedicated sales team), including our expanded supply chain capabiiities and advance erdering through our
interconnected digital platforms. We believe that focusing on meeting the Pros’ planned purchase needs, particularly
for larger renovator/remodeler Pros, will help us drive growth and deliver value to our sharehelders.

We extended our reach in the MRO marketplace with our fiscal 2020 acquisition of HD Supply, a leading national
distributor and provider of MRQ praducts and related value-added services o multifamily, hospitality, hezlthcars,
and govemment hausing facilities, amang others, and in fiscal 2021 we integrated our legacy Interine Brands
business into HD Supply. Our MRO operations use a distribuiion cenler-based modef that salls products primarily
thrauigh a professional sales foree and through e-commerce platforms and print catalogs,

We recognize the great vatue our Pras provide to their clients, and we strive to make their jobs easier and help them
grow their businesses. We belisve that investments aimed at deepening our refationships with our Pros are yielding
increased engagement and will continue to translate into incremental sales to these custamers.

DIFM Customers

Intersecting our DIY customers and our Pros are our DIFM customers. These customers are typically homeowners
who use Pros to complete their project or installation. Currently, we offer installation services in a varisty of
categeries, such as floaring, water healers, bath, garage doors, cabinets, cabinet makeavers, courdertops, sheds,
furnaces and cenfraf air systems, and windows. DIFM custorners can purchase these services in our stores, enlins,
or irt their homes through in-home consultations. In addition to serving our DIFM customer needs, we believe our
focus on the Pros who perform services for these custorners helps us drive higher product sales.

A typical The Home Depet store stocks approximately 30,000 to 40,000 items during the year, including both
national brand name and proprietary products. Our online product offarings complement our stores by sening as an
extended aiste, and we offer a significantly broader product assortment through our websites and mabile
applications, including hormedepot.com, aur primary website; homedepot.ca and homedepot.com.mx, our websites
in Canada and Mexicg: hdsupply.com, cur website for our MRO products and related services; blinds.com, our
online site for custom window coverings: and thecompanysiore.com, our online site featuring textiles and décor
products.

We believe our merchandising organization is & key competitive advantage, delivering product innovation,
assortment and value, which reinforcss our position as the product authority in home improvement. In fiscal 2022,
we confinued to invest in merchandising resets in our stores 1o refine assonments, optimize space preduchivity,
introduce innovative new praduets to our customers, and imprave vigual merchandising to drive a betier shopping
experience. At the same time, we remain focused an offering everyday values in aur stores and oniine. To help our
merchandising organization keep pace with changing customer expectations and increasing desire for innovation,
localization, and personalization, we are cantinuing ta invest in tools to better leverage our data and drive a deeper
level of collaboration with aur supplier partners. As a result, we have continued to focus on enhanced
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merchandising fnformatien technology tools to help us: (1} build an intsrconnecied shopping experience that is
tailored to our custemers' shopping intent and Jocation: {2} provide the best value in the markst; and (3 optimize cur
product assortments. Cur merchandising team leverages technclogy and works closely with our inventary and
supply chain teams, a5 well as our supplier pariners, 1o manage our assartments, drive innovation, and adjust
inventory levels to respond fo fluctuations in demand, which heiped us navigate the challenges of continuing glebal
supply chain disruption in fiscal 2022. As cost pressures have risen in several product categories in the current
environment, our tools have heiped our merchandising, finance and data analytics feams as they work with our
supplier partners to manage these pressures.

To complement our merchandising effaris, we offer a number of services for our customers, induding instailation
services for our DIY and DIFM customers, as noted abave. We alsg provide 100l and equipment rentals at focations
across the U.5. and Canads, providing value and convenience for both Fros and consumers. To improve the
customer experience and cortinue to grow this differentiated service offering, we are continuing to invest in more
locations (including piloting rental locations in Mexico), more tools, and better technology.

Sourcing and Quality Assurance

We maintain a global sourcing program to obtain high-quality and innovative praducis directly from manufacturers in
the U.8. and around the world. During fiscal 2022, in addition to our U.S, sourcing oparations, we raintained
sourcing offices in Mexico, Canada, China, India, Vietnam and Eurape. To ensure that suppliers adhere to our high
standards of secial and environmental responsibllity, we also have a global responsidle sourcing program. Under
our supplier contracts, cur suppliers are obligated to ensure that their products comply with applicable international,
federal, state and local laws. These contracts also require compliance with our responsible sourcing standards,
which cover a variety of expectations across multiple areas of social compliance, including supply chain
transparency, comphiance with local laws, health and safety, environmental taws and regulations, compensatior,
hours of work, and prohibitions an child and forced fabor. To drive accountabifity with our suppliers, our standard
supplier buying agreement includes a faciory audit right refated to these standards, and we conduct factory audits
and compliance visits with non-Canada and non-U.S. suppliers of private branded and direct import products. Our
2022 Responsible Sourcing Repont, available on aur websile at htips:ifcorporate.homedepot.com under
“Responsibility > Sourcing Respansibly,” provides more information about this program. In addition, we have both
quality assurance and engineering resources dedicated to establishing criteria and overseeing campliance with
safety, quakity and performance standards for our private branded products.,

Intellectual Property

Our business has one of the most reccgnized brands in North America, As a result, we believe that The Home
Depot® trademark has significant value and is an important factor in the marketing of our products, e-commerce,
stores and business. We have registered or applied for registration of trademarks, service marks, copyrights and
internet domaln names, both domestically and internationally, for use in our business, including our .proprietary
brands such as HDX®, Husky®, Hampton Bay®, Home Decorators Collection®. Glacier Bay®, Vigoro®, Everbitt® and
lifeproof®. The duration of trademark registralions varies from country 1o country. However, trademarks are
generally valid and may be renewed indefinitely as long as they are in use and/or their registrations are properly
maintained,

We also maintain patent parifolios relating to our business operations, retail services, and products, and we seek to
patent or otherwise protect innovations we incorporate inlo cur business, Patents generally have a ferm of twenty
years from the date they are filed. As aur patent portfolic has been built over time, the remaining terms of the
individual patents across our patent portfalic vary. Although cur patents have value, no single patent is essentia! io
our business. We confinuously assess our merchandising departments and product lines for opporiunities to expand
the assoriment of products offered within Tha Home Depot's portfolio of proprietary and exclusive brands.

Qur industry is highly compefitive, very fragmented, and evolving, As a result, we face competition for customers for
our products and services from a varlely of retailers, suppliers, service providers, and distributors and
manufacturers that sell products directly to their respective customer bases. These competitors range from
traditional brick-and-mortar, 1o multichannel, to exclusively oniine, and they include a number of other home
improvement retailers; electrical, Plumbing and building materials supply houses: and lumber yards, With respect to
some products and services, we also compete with speciaity design stores, showrooms, discount stores, local,
regional and national hardware slores, paint stores, specialty and rmass digital retailers, warehouse clubs,
independent building supply stores, MRO distributors. home décor retailers, and other retailers, as well as with
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providers of home improvement services and tool and equipment rental. The internet facilitates competitive entry,
price transparency, and comparison shopping, increasing the level of competition we face,

Both in-store and online, we compete primarily based on customer experience, price, quaiity, product availability
and assortment, and delivery options. We also compete based on store locatian and appearance, presentation of
merchandise, and ease of shopping experience, Qur Pros alsa lock for 3 dedicated sales team, competitive cradit
and pricing options, project planning tools, and product depth and job lot quantities, particularly for their planned
purchase needs. Furthermore, with respect io defivery options, customsrs are increasingly seeking faster and/or
guarantead delivery times, low-price or free shipping, andfor convenient pickup options. Qur ability to be competitive
on delivery and pickup fimes, options and costs depends on many factors, including the success of our supply chain
investments, described more fully under "Our Suppiy Chain” below.

Cur business is subject to seasonal influences. Generally, our highest volume of sales accurs in our second fiscal
quarter, as we move into the spring seasan in the regions in which we cperate.

We continue 1o enhance our capabilities to provide our cuslomers with a frictionless intercannected shopping
experience acrass our slores, onling, on the job sile, and in their homes, focusing on cantinued investments in our
website and mobile apps to enhance the digital customer experience.

Digital Experience

Enhancemsnts to aur digital properties are critical for aur increasingly interconnected customers, who often
research products online and chack available inventary bafore going into one of our stores to view the products in
person or talk to an associate and then malke their purchass in store or enline. Whiie in the store, customers may
alse go online to access ratings and reviews, compare prices, view our exiended assortment, and purchase
additional products. Our investrients in a truly interconnected experience are focused on bringing together the
power of our physical retsl! presence and the frictionless interaction of our digital capabilities.

A significant majority of the traffic in our digital channels is on mobile devices. Mobile cusiomers expect mare
simplicity and relevancy in their digital inleractions. As a result, we have made investments to our digital properties
to improve the overall presentation and ease of navigation for the user. We have also enhanced the “shopability” of
an online product by including more infarmation on the product's landing page. including relsted products and/or
parts of a coliection, as well as various fulfillment aptions. We believe our focus on improving search capabilities,
site functionality, category presentation, product content, speed to checkout, and enhanced fufillment oplions has
yielded higher traffic, better conversion and continued sales growth.

Further, we do not view the interconnecled shopping experience as a specific transaction: rather, we believe il
encampasses an entire jouney from inspiration and know-how, to purchase and fuliliment, 1o post-purchase care
and support. Customers expect more personalized messaging, so we ars cominuing to focus on connecting
marketing activities with the online and in-store experiences to create seamless engagement across channels. From
the inspirational point of the purchase journey to providing product know-haw, we continue to invest in the
infrastruciure and capabilities needed to deliver the most relevant marketing messages to our custorners based
upon what is important to therm today,

Store Experienca

Qur stores remain the hub of our business, and we continue 1o invest 1o improve the customer shopping experience
through easier navigation and increased convenience and speed of checkout. In fiscal 2022, we conlinued to
leverage the investments made in our stores over the past several years to operale effeclively and maet changing
customer expectations. These investments include wayfinding signage and store refresh packages; self-service
tockers, online order storage areas at frant entrances and curbside pickup to provide convenient pickup options for
anfine orders; electronic shelf label capabilities: and the re-design of front-end areas, including reconfigured servige
desks, improved layouts in checkout areas, and expanded and enhanced self-checkout opticns, To improve the
customer's experience in our stores, we have also empowered our customers with additional seli-help tools,
including mobile app-enabled store navigation. Our app provides store-specilic maps, which aliow customers 1
pinpoint the exact location of an item on their mabile devices. We believe these invesiments are driving higher
customer satisfaction scores, and we will continue to invest to impreve the customer experience going forward.

Investing in Associate Productivity. We continually strive o improve our store operations for our associates. Our

goal is to remave complexity and inafficient processes from the stores to allow our associates 1o focus on our

customers. To this end, we have confinued ta focus our efforts in such areas as optimizing product flow o decrease

the amount of time 2 store associate spends locating praduct and to imprave on-shelf product availability; creating a
[
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simpler order management system; expanding in-aisle, real-time mohile learming too's for our associates’ own
development and fo assist with customer questions; and using labor model tools to bettar align associate activity
with customer needs. For several years, our associales have used web-enabled handhefd devices to help them
more efficiently meet the needs of the business and serve customers. in fiscal 2022, we began rolling oui the next
generation of digital phanes to our stores, whith we call *hdPhones,” so that each associats will have a digital
device during their shift. The new devices offer enhanced functionality to allow associates to readily query inventory,
access applications that support customer service, and drive on-shelf availability of producl.

investing in Safety. We are committed to maintaining a safe shopping and working environment for our custorers
and associates. We empower trained EH&S associates to evafuate, develop, implement and enferce policies,
processes and programs on a Company-wide basis. Our EH&S policies are woven into our everyday operations
and are part of The Home Depot culture, Commoen program elements include daily store inspection checklists {by
department); routine fallow-up audils from our store-based safety team membaers and regional, district and stare
cperations field teams; equipment enhancements and preventiative maintenance programs to promote physical
safely, departmental merchandising safely standards; training and educafion programs for all assacistes, with
varying degress of training provided based on an associate's role and respansibilities; and awareness,
comrunication and recegnition programs designed to drive operalional awareness and an understanding of EH&S
maftters.

We continue to focus on building best-in-class competitive advantages in our supply chain to be respensive to our
customers' expectations for how, when and where they choose to recelve our preducts and services, As part of
enhancing the interconnected shopping experience, we continue to invest in expanding our supply chain network,
with the goal of achieving the fastest, most efficient and most reliable delivery capabilities in home improvement.
Our efforts are focused on ensuring product availability and increasing the speed and reliability of delivery for our
custarners while managing our costs. Qur supply chain investments have helped us o cperate effectively and meet
our customers’ needs throughout the challenging environmant over the past few years,

We centrally forecast and replenish the vast majority of our store products through sophisticated inventory
management syslems and utilize our network of distribution centers o sarve both our stores’ and customers' needs,
Oui supply chain includes multiple distribution center platforms in the U.S., Canada, and Mexico tailored to meet the
needs of our slores and customers based on types of praducts, focation, transpontation, and delivary requirements.
These platforms include rapid deployment centers, stocking distribulion centers, bulk distribution centers, and direct
fulfillment centers, among others. As part of the expansion of our supply chain, we have invested to further
automate and mechanize our rapid deployment center netwark to drive efficiency and faster mavement of product.

We are aiso continuing to expand aur fulfilment network, investing In a significant number of new fulfiliment facilities
to drive speed and reliability of delivery for our cusiomers and ta help us ultimately meet our goal of reaching 90%
of the U.S. papulation with same or next day delivery for extended home impravement product offerings, including
big and bulky products. These facililies include omni-channel fulfiliment centers, which deliver praduct directly to
custorners, and markel delivery operations, which function as local hubs te consclidate freight for dispatch to
customers for the final mile of delivery, with a focus on appliances. In fiscal 2022, we realized our goal to control
mare of our appliance delivery end-to-end and began managing ali of aur appliance delivery velurme through aur
rmarket delivery operations. We have also added flatbed distribution centers, which handle large items like lumber
and building materials that are transported on flaibed trucks. As of the and of fiscal 2022, we have cpened a number
of additional fulfiflment facilities, and we will continue to build out our fulfifiment network to suppart our business. Qur
network is designed to create a compelitive advantaga with unique, industry-teading capabilities for home
improvement needs for both Pros and consumers.

In addition 1o our distribution and fulfillment centers, we leverage our stores as a netwark of canvenient customer
pickup, return, and delivery fulfillment locations, Qur premium real estate footprint provides a distinct structural and
competitive advantage. For customers who shap online and wish to pick up or rgturm merchandise at, or have
merchandise delivered from, our stores, we have implemented four interconnecled retail programs: BOSS, BORIS,
BODFS, and BORIS. We also provide curbside pickup to complement cur BOFIS offerings, n addition 1o the self-
service lockers at the front entrance of many of our stores. We alse offer EXprass car and van delivery serviee that
cavers aver 80% of the U.S. population. For fiscal 2022, approximately 50% of our U.S. anline orders ware fulfilled
through a store. We also continue to focus an developing new capabilities to improve both efficiency and customer
experience in our store delivery program. Our strategic intent is to have a portfolio of efficlent, timely and refiable
sources and methods of delivery to choose from, optimizing order fulfillment and delivery based on customer needs,
inventory locations and available transportation opfichs.
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RPORATE RESPON f MD HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMEN"

We view environmental, social and governance matters through the lens of our business, with an understanding that
if we suppart our associates, our customers, our supplier partners, and the communities we serve, we also support
our business and create long-lerm value for our shareholders, As s resuit, we believe that ESG is fundamentally
embedded in our operations and cullure. We organize our efforts arcund three pillars: (1) Focus on Our People, {2)
Operate Sustainably, and (3) Strengthen Our Communities, Highlights of each of these pillars are st forth below.
For further information on our three pillars and other ESG-related matters, see our annual ESG Repor, available on
our website at htips:/corporate.homedepet. com/responsibifity.

Focus on Our People

Qur culture and our associates provide intangible and hard-ta-replicate competitive advantages, which have been
key to helping us navigate challenging market conditions. Qur associates are essential to providing the experience
and service that our cusliomars demand. To preserve and protect that customer experience, we focus on cultivating
a compelling associate experience, which we believe supporls our ability to atiract and relain our associates, This
includes investing in competitive wages and benefits while also providing the cullure, toals, training and
development apporiunities that make werking at The Home Depol an enjoyable and rewarding experience. These
actions are the foundation of our key tenets of putting customers first and takirg care of aur associates.

Culture and Values. The Home Depot has a strong commitment ta ethics and integrity, and we are a values- and
culture-ceniric business. Our commitment lo our care values drives cur approach to humean capital management,
Our culiure is based on our servant leadership philosophy represented by the inverted pyramid, which puts primary
imporlance on our customers and our associates by positicning them at the tap, with senior management at the
base in a suppart role. We bring our culture ta life through our core values, which serve as the foundation of our
business and as the guiding principles behind the decisions we make every day.

Qur values also guide cur efforts to create an environmant that will help us attract and retain skilled associates in
the competitive marketplace far talent. We empower our associates io deliver a superior customer experience by
living our values, and we pasition our asscciales to embady our core values by infegrating the importance of our
culture into ongoing development programs, performance management practices, and rewards programs. Leaders
participate in programs designed 1o build and strengthen cur culiure, such as training on leadership skills, cross-
functional eollaboration, inclusiveness, and associate engagement, and all associates receive annval fraining cn
uncanscious bias. Our core values are at the root of our human capital management programs.

Qur Workforce. At the end of fiscal 2022, we employed approximately 471,600 associates, of whom approximatsly
46,500 were salaried, with the remainder compensated on an hourly basis. Set forth below is the gecgraphic
makeup of our warkforce:

Geagraphic Localion Numbar of Associates % of Total Workforca
United States 418,900 B86.8%
Canada 34,500 7.3%
Mexica 17,800 3.8%
Other ¢V 300 0.1%

Total 471,600 _1 0%

(1) includes associgles in aur Sourcing organization jocated in China, Vietnam, fndig, Maly, Poland and Turkey.




Tabiy L

Talent Attraction and Development. As we attract and hire new associates, we strive o create a customer-like
sxperience for jobseekers as they progress through the steps of our recruiting process by focusing on speed and
personalization. We empioy targeted marketing practices through our careers website, which perscralizes the
user's experience based on jobsesker location and searching behavior. Jobseeksrs can aiso apply for roles from
anywhere using deskiop or mobile devices. Once a jobseeker has applied for a role and has been selected {o mave
forward in the recruiting process, we provide self-service by aflowing candidates {o schedule of reschedule pra-hire
activities directly from their mobile device. Lastly, we created a quick hiring process for candidates by leveraging
jcb-matching automation that maltches candidates to jobs that fit their needs.

We offer all of cur associates the opportunity te benefit from robust development oppertunities. Our Home Depat
University, or “HDU,” program, is a key part of this development, offering relevant content through multiple
platforms, including instructor-led classes, e-learning, mobile ieaming, and additional online resources. We invest in
ongoing growth and deveiopment by integrating our culture and values inta our performance management
practices, providing coaching through continuous leader Support, and ampowering cur associates to leam new skifis
at their own pace through mobile applications our associates can access at any time. We equip our leaders with the
teols they need to develop themselves and their teams through several programs designed fo help them lead
inclusively, empower their teams, and serve as mentors for our associates.

In fiscal 2022, we supparted both associate development and engagement by starting the year with a new store
ieadership struclure. We crealed new management positions in our stores focused on the custorner service
experience, increasing the number of managers on the floor at any given time. This new struclure frees up time for
other store leaders to devote to associate training and development. The result is an improved customer and
assoclate experience, while alsa providing new career paths for associates.

Associate Engagement. Associate engagement is the emational commitment associates have to The Home
Depot. Itis vital to our culture and to our success. We create an engeging workplace by continuously listening to
and acling on associate fesdback, We provide several pulse check surveys to associales throughout the year that
help us determine how emotionally connected those associates are io our customers, the Company, their jobs,
fellow associates, and leaders. In addition, cur annual Voice of the Associate survey, which includes all associates,
serves as our grimary means of gauging associates’ jevel of engagement within their roles. We use the feedback
from these surveys to hefp improve the averail associate experience. We also maintain a digilal associate
engagement platform that links associates with common interests and fuels connections o co-workers and
Company leaders. Additionaily, we have a number of programs {o recognize stores and individuzl associates for
exceptional customer service and demonstrating our core valves.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. Guided by our core values and grounded in our culture, we beligve that having a
diverse, equitable and inclusive Company is kay to our success. We are focused on building a workplace and retail
space lhat reflect the customers and communities we are proud to serve. We strive to maintain a Company where
our assoctates are valued and respected and feel 2 sense of beionging in the workplace, so that they can provide
the customer experience that supports our business. Our Office of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion supports our focus
on assoclate diversity, supplier diversity, and engagement with cur communities, Below is the fiscal 2022 diversity
data for our U.S. assuociates:

Race/Ethnicity Gender
Assaciite Population ¥a Minority % White % Undisclosad % Farmale % Male % Undisclosed
U.S. Workforce 48% 50% 2% 38% 62% 1%
U.S. Managers & Abave "/ 39% 60% 1% 35% 65% 0%
U.8. Officers 26% 73% 2% 29% B69% 2%

1) Does nolinclude officers.
Note: Ceartamn parcaniages may not sum fo totals dus o rounding.

As a Company, we have identified several pricrities designed to guide our efforis to enhance diversity, equity and
inclusion, We believe these associate-, supplier- and community-focused priorities will further enbiance cur
custormers’ exparience and make a sustainable difference within the workplace, marketplace, and community:
= Associata Engagement
¢ Increase diverse representation throughout our organization
< Create an environment where every associate fesls included and valued for who they are
= Promofe equal opportunity in recruitment, hiring, training, development and advancement
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*  Supplier Diversity
- Increase use of and spend with diverse suppliers
Develop diverse suppliers by providing mentorship and sharing resources

*  Community Engagement

Partner with organizations on programs designed to close the wealth gap
Support programs that advance education for alt

Cormpensation and Benefits. Consisient with our core values, we take care of our people by offering competitive
compensation and cemprenensive benefils programs. We continuously make wage investmenis to ensure our
compeansation packages reflect the evolving circumstances across our markets, and our profit-sharing program for
hourly associates provides semi-annual cash awards for performance against our business plan. We transitioned
from the enhanced pay ard benefils we pravided for our associates in fiscai 2020 to allsviate some of the
challenges presenied hy the COVID-19 pandemic to permanent compensation enhancements for our frontline,
hourly associates, which we have continuad to make since fiscal 2020, Our associates can take advantage of a
range of benefits, including heafthcare and wellness programs, vacation and leave of absence benefils including
parental leave and paid sick/personal time off, a 401 {k} malch, our ESPPs, personal finance education and advisory
servites, assistance programs to help with managing personal and work-fife challenges, family support programs,
and educational assistance.

Operate Sustainably

We have a long-standing and substantial commitment to suslainable business operations, understanding that if we
rmake our operations more efficient and sustainable, we can support both our business and the environment, This
philosophy extends from the products and services we offer to our customers; te our store construction,
mairtenance and operations: ta our supply chain and packaging initiatives: fo our ethical SOUTing pregram. As we
strive tc operale sustainably, we have focused on efforts that help protect the climate, reduce our environmental
impact, and sowce products responsibly, and we have set goals to drive progress in these areas.

Our 2022 ESG Report, available on our website at https.'ﬂcorporate.humedepot.comﬁrespnnsibl’lj!y, includes more
infarmation an our goals, as well as specific initfatives we have in place to help achieve these goals. Below are
highlights of our sustainability strategy.

Our Environmental Goals. We currently have several goals to help address climate impact and reduce gur
environmental footprint:

Year Announced Goal Goal Gate Statys

2018 Cleaning Products Chemical Reduction: Etiminate ceriain 2022 Complate )
added chemicals from residential hausehald cleaning products
sold in-store or online by the end of fiscal 2022

2018 Sclence-Based Carbon Emissions Targets: Reduce Scope 1 2030;2035  InProcess
and 2 carbon emissions by 2.1% per year, with the geal to
achieve a 40% reduction by the end of fiscal 2030 and a 50%
reduction by the end of fiscal 2035

2019 Recyclable Packaging: Exclude expzanded polystyreng foam 2023 In Procass
(EPS) and palyvinyt chloride {FVC} film from the packaging of
private-brand products we sell, replacing them with easier-to-
recycle materials by the end of fiscal 2023

2020 Renewable/Alternative Energy Sources: Produce aor procure, 2025 In Process
an an annual basis, 335 megawatts of renewable or alternative
energy by the end of fiscal 2025

2021 100% Renewable Electricty: Produce or pracura renewable 2030 In Process
electricily equivalent to the neads for all MHoma Depct facilities
woridwide by the end of fiscal 2030

(1) A de minimis number of supplisrs are st in the procass of raformulatng end franstianing thair product assoriment.

These goals follow the completion of a number of previously announced goals, including goals related to reducing
store electricity use, aliminating certain chemicals from products we sell, and helping customers reduce their
greenhouse gas emissions and water use and save on electricity costs.
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Qur Environmental Frograms and Initiatives. In order to progress against our goals, we have a number of
environmentally-focused programs and initiatives, including:

- Store Opsrations and Renewable/Ailarnative Energy. We have reduced store energy consumption through
initiatives such as LED lighting upgrades; installation of energy-efficient HYAC systems; participation in
dernand mitigation; on-sile aiternative or renewabla energy projects such as fuel cells and sciar panels; and
contracls with off-site wind and solar pewer providers. We have continued ta work toward our goal to
produce ar procure renewable elactricity equivalent to the electricity needs for ali Home Depot facilities by
the end of fiscal 2030, We have also continued our focus on saving water, impiementing smart irrigation
systems capable of reducing irmgation-related water Use in more than 500 U.S, slores,

* Product Offerings. Thraugh our Eco Actions™ program, we have helped our customers more easily identfy
products relaled to five areas: carbon emissions, circularily, responsible chemistry, sustzinabie forastry, and
water use. Under our Eco Actions program, we sell ENERGY STAR® ceriified appliances; WaterSense®-
labeled bath faucels, showerheads, asrators, loilets, and imigation conlrollers; LED light buibs; tankless
water heaters; and many other products. These products, through proper use, help our customers save
money on their utlity bills and reduce their environmental impact. Through Eco Actions, we also provide
customers with resources, such as project tutorials, to take individuzl action on environmental issues.

*  In-Store Recyciing Programs. 'We offer customer-facing recycling programs in the U.S., including in-store
recycling programs for compact flucrescent light hulbs, rechargeable batteries, and lead acid batteries.

= Chemical Strategy. We are committed to increasing our assortment of products that meet high
environmental standards, and we encourage our suppliers to invest in developing environmentally-
innovative products. We periodically evaluate our Chemical Strategy 1o ensure our approach and goals are
appropriate.

= Swuslainable Packaging. In addition ta our goal related to eliminating EPS and PVC from our private-brand
products, we are continuatly working with our suppiiers 1o find ways to make product packaging mere
recyclable or simply use less materials, such as through the reduction of single-use plastics.

*  Supply Chain Optimization. Through cur supply chain initiatives such as space sharing and optimization
technology, we are working to maximize our use of every mile to make our supply chain mare efficient. We
also utifize hydrogen fuef cell technology in a number of our forklifts to make our supply chain even more
environmentally responsible.

= CDP Padicipation. We are a long-standing participant in the annual CDP Climate Change reporting
process, CDP is an independent, intemational, not-for-profit organization providing a global system for
companties and cities to measure, disclose, manage, and share environmental information. in February
2023, we received a score of “B” from CDP. We have also announced that we plan to begin participating in
CDP’s Forests reporting process.

= Assessment of SBTi Goals. In fiscal 2021, we announcad plans to adopt, by the end of fiscal 2023, new
Science Based Targets Ilnitiative (SBTi) goals to reduce Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions in line with Paris
Agreement goals. Adoption of SBT: goals would buiid on our current science-hased goals to reduce Scope
1 and 2 carbon emissions by 2.1% per year, to achieve a 40% reduction by the end of fiscal 2030 and a
50% reduction by the end of fiscal 2035. In fiscal 2022, we conlinued to work en evaluating potential SBET;
goals.

Qver the past several years, our commitment to suslainable operations has resulted in a number of environmental
awards and recognitions. In 2022, we received the following awards: an EPA WaterSense® Partner of the Yaar
Award for our cornmitment to offering and promating water-efficient products; an EPA SmartWay High Performer
Award, which recognized us as an industry leader in impraving freight efficiency and environmantal performance; an
EPA Safer Choice Pariner of the Year Award, which recognizes achieverrent in products with safer chemicals that
furthers innovative source reduction; and an EPA ENERGY STAR® Pariner of the Year Award for our contribution to
promating energy efficiency.

Strengthen cur Communities

COne of aur core values is “Giving Back,” and we support our communities in a number of ways, The Home Depot
Foundation focuses on improving the homes and lives of U.S. velerans. assisting communities affected by natural
disasters, and training skilled tradespeople 1o fil the labar gap. The Company and The Home Depot Foundation are
partnering with industry leaders on iraining programs to train the nexi generation of skilled fradespeople and help
thern find careers in the home improvement industry through our Path to Pro program, which includes a new carear
networking site to connect skilled fradespeople fo industry Pros. Qur Team Depot associate volunieers also extend




the: mission of the Home Depat Foundation in communities across the country, donating thausands of volunteer
hours each year on a wide variety of projects.

We pariner with diverse suppliers and organizations to further support our diversity, equity and inclusion efforts, Ag
noted above, our Office of Diversity, Equity and Inclusicn pariners with community arganizations un programs
designed {o close the wealth gap and enhance educafion outcomes across underserved and undemepresented
cornmunities. To further advance diversity, equity and inclusian in our communities, we have a supplier diversity
pragram through which we provide supplier development and other resources to our diverse suppliers, and in fiscal
2021 we launched a Tier Il supplier diversity program that aims to drive more spending from aur direct suppliers to
diverse suppliers. in fiscal 2022, the Company joined the Billion Dollar Rourdtable Inc.. or BOR, a not-for-profit
organization that prometes supplier diversity excellence and best practices. The BDR consists of U.S.-based
corporations that spend $1.0 billion or mare annuaily with minority- and woman-owned suppliers. We are working to
cultivate a supplier base that creales iong-lasting growth and mutual business success, while reflecting the diversity
of our customers and strengthening the communities in which our customers and associates live,

Please ses our 2022 £SG Repart for additional infermation about our efforts 1o support the communities we serve,

As a company with both U.S. and intematicnal operations, we are subject lo the laws of the (.S, and fereign
jurisdictions in which we operate and the rules and regulations of various governing bodies, which may differ among
jurisdictions. Compliance with these laws, rules and regulations has not had, and is not sxpected 1o have, a material
effect on: our capital expenditures, results of operations, or competitive position as compared to pricr periods.

Our internet website is www.homedepot.com. We make available on the Investor Relations secticn of our website,
free of charge, our Annuai Reports to shareholders, Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterdy Reports on Eorm 10-
Q, Cuirent Reporis on Form 8-K, Proxy Statements, and Forms 3, 4 and 5, and amendments io these reports, as
soon as reasonably practicable after fifing such documents with, or furnishing such docurnents to, the SEC.

We include website addresses throughout this report for reference only. The information cortained on these
websites is not incorporated by reference into this report,

Our business, resulis of operations, and financial condition are subject to numerous risks and uncerainties, In
connection with any investment decision with respect lo our securities, you should carefully consider the following
risk facters, as well as the other information contained in this report and our other filings with the SEG. Additional
risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may aiso impair our business
operations. Should any of these risks materialize, our business, results of operations, financial candition and future
prospects could be negatively impacted, which in turn could affect the trading value of our securities. You should
read these Risk Factors in conjunction with Part 11 ltlem 7 Mar igement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Hhon and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements and related notes in ltem 8.

STRATEGIC RISKS

Strong competition could adversely affact prices and demand for our products and services and could
decrease our market share.

Our industry is highly competitive, highly fragmented. and evolving. As a resull, we face compstition for customers
for our products and services from a variety of retailers, suppliers, service providers, and distributors and
manufacturers that sell producls directly to their respective customer bases. These compaitors range from
traditional brick-ari-mortar, 1o multichannel, to exclusively onfine, and they include 2 number of other home
impravement retailers; etecirical, plumbing and building materials supply houses; and lumber yards. With respect to
some products and services, we alsa compets with specialty design stores, showrooms, discount stares, local,
regional and national hardware stores, paint stores, speciaity and mass digital retailers, warehouse clubs,
independent building supply stores, MRO distributers, home decor retailers, and other retailers, as well as with
providers of home improvement services and tool and equipment rentat. The intemnaet facilitates competitive entry,
price transparency, aind camparison shopping, increasing the level of compelition we face.

We compate primarily based on customer experience, price, quality, product availability and assortment, and
delivery options, both in-store and onfine. We also compete based on store incation and appearance, presentation
of merchandise, and ease of shapping experience. Our Pros also laok for 2 dedicaled sales team, competitive credit
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and pricing options, preject planning tools, and product depth and job lot quantities, particularly for their planned
purchase nesds. Furthermare, customers are increasingly shopping online and seeking faster and/or guaranteed
delivery times, low-price or free shipping, andfor convenient pickup optians. Our ability to be competitive on delivery
and pickup times, options and cosls depends on many factors, including leveraging the momentum of cur sirategic
investments in our supply chain and our interconnected retail capabilities to further enhance the customer shopping
experience. Failure to successfully manage these faclors and offer competitive delivery and pickup options could
negatively impact our profit margins and the demand for our products.

We use our marketing, advertising and promotionai programs ta drive customer traffic and compate mare effectively,
and we must regularly assess and adjust our efforls 1o address changes in the competitive landscape., Inlense
compslilive pressures from one ar more of our competitors, such as through aggressive promational pricing or
liquidaticn events, or our inability to adapt effactively and quickly to a changing competitive fandscape, cauld
adversely affect our prices, our margins, or demand for our products and services. If we are urable to timely and
apprapriately respond to these competitive pressures, including through the delivery of a superior interconnectad
customer experfence or through mainlenance of effective sales and marketing, advertising or promotional pregrams
leveraging both aur digital and physical platforms, cur market share and our financial performance could be
adversely affected. In addition, we are operating in a highly inflationary environment. If inflation increases beyond
our ability ta control our related costs, we may not be able to adjust prices to sufficiently offset the effect of the
various cost increases without negatively impacting consumer demand, or it may adversely affect our ability to
compete based on price,

We may not timely identify or eflectively respond to consumer needs, expectations or trends, which could
adversely affact our relationship with our customers, the demand for our products and services, and our
market share.

The success of our business depends in part on our ability to identify and respond promptly to evoiving trends in
demographics, shifts in consumer preferances, expectations and needs: and unexpected weather condiions, public
heaith issues (including pandemics and related impacts), natural disasters, or changes in the macroeconomic
environment that impact our customers, while also managing appropriate inventory levels in our stores and
distribution or fulfiliment centers and maintaining an excalient customer experience. |t is difficull to successfully
predict the products and services our customers will demand. As our customers expect a more personalized
experience, our ability to collect, use and protect relevant cusiomer data is important to our ability (o effactively meet
their expactations. Our ability tc collect and use that data, however, is subject to a number of external factors,
including the impact of legislation or regulations governing data privacy and security and customer expectations
around data collection and use. In addition, each of our primary customer groups has different needs and
expectations, many of which evolve as the demographics in & particular customer group changs. Gustomer
preferences and expectations related to sustainability of products and operations are also changing. if we do not
successiully differentiate the shopping experience to meet ihe individual needs and expeciations of or wilhin a
customer group, we may lose market share with respect ta those custormers,

Customer expectations about the methods by which they purchase and receive products or services are alsa
becoming more demanding. Customers routinely and increasingly use technology and a variety of electronic
devices and digital piatforms to rapidly compare products and prices, read product reviews, determine real-time
product availability, and purchase products, and new channels and tools to expand the customer experience appear
and change rapidly. Our Pros alsc look for additional capabilities, inciuding a dedicated sales team, compelitive
credit and pricing options, project planning lools, and product depth and Job lot quantities, particulary for their
planned purchase needs. Once products are purchased, customers seek aliemate options for delivery of those
products, including advance ordering through digital ptatforms for Pros, and they often expect quick, timely, and low-
price aor free delivery andfor convenient pickup opfions. We must continually anticipate and adapt fo these changes
in the shopping and purchasing process by continuing to adjust and enhance the online and in-stare customer
experiance as well as our defivery options. The coordinated operation of our netwark of physical stores, distribution
facilities, and online platforms is fundamantal to the success of our inferconnecied strategy. We cannot guarantee
that our current or future fulfilfment options will be maintained and implemented successfully or that we will be able
‘o meet custemer expectations on delivery or pickup times, options and cos’s. in addition, as our customers
continue Lo leverage our enhanced interconnected shopping and fulfilment aplions, a greater concentration of
cniine sales with direct fulfilment could resull in a reduction in the amount of traffic in our stores, which would, in
lurn, reduce the opportunities for cross-selling of merchandise that such traffic creates and couid reduce our overall
sales and adversely affect our financial performance. A greater conceniration of online sales with direct fulfiliment
could also resuft in higher costs for delivery, potentially impacting our profit margins.
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Faifure to provide a relevant or effective online custormner experience in a timely manner that keeps pace with
technological developments and dynamic customer expeclations; to maintain appropriate inventory; to provide quick
and low-price cr free delivery alternatives and convenient pickup oplians; lo differentiate the cusiomer experience
for our primey customer groups; to effectively implement an increasingly localized merchandising assortment: cr to
otherwise timely identify or respond to changing consumer preferences, expectations and harne improvement needs
could adversely affect our relationship with aur customers, the demard for our products and services, and our
market shars.

A positive brand and reputation are critical to our businass success, and, if our brand and reputation are
damaged, it could nagatively impact our relationships with our customers, current and potential associates,
suppliers, vendors, and shareholders, and, consedquently, our business and results of operaticns or the
price of our stock.

Cur brand and reputation are critical to attracting customers, current and potential associates, suppliers and
vendors to do business with us. We must continue 1o manage and protect our brand and reputation. Negative
incidents can erode trust and confidence quickly, and adverse publicity about us could damage our brand and
reputation; undermine our customers’ canfidence in us: reduce dermand for our products and services; affect aur
ability to recruit, engage, motivate and retain associales; attract regulatory scrutiny: and impact our relationships
with current and potential suppliers and vendors. Further, our actual or perceived position or lack of position on
social, environmental, govemnance, palitical, public policy, econcmic, geopalitical, or other sensitive issues, and any
perceived lack of transparency about those matters, could harm our reputation with cerlain groups. Customers zare
aiso increasingly using social media 1o provide feedback and informatian about our Comparny, including our
praducts and services, in a manner that can be quickly and broadly disseminated. Negalive sentiment about the
Company shared over social media, or misinformation from fraudulent accounts impersonating the Company, could
fmpact our brand and reputation, whether or not it Is based in fact.

The execution of initiatives to expand our supply chain and enhance the Interconnected shopping
experience could disrupt our operations in the near term, and these initiatives might not provide the
anticipated benefits or might fail.

We continue to invest in our interconnected retail strategy, including by making significant invesiments to expand
our supply chain. These investmeants are designed to streamline our cperations to allow our assotiates to conlinua
to provide high-quality service to our customers: simplify customer interactions; provide our customears with a more
inferconnected shopping expetience: betler address Pro planned purchase needs; and create the fastest, most
efficient delivery nefwork for home improvement products. Failure fo choose the right investments and implement
therm in the right manner and at the right pace could disrupt our cperations. Executing our interconnected retail
strategy requires continual investment in our operations and information technology systems, as well as the
development and execution of new processes, systems and support. Building out our supply chain also invalves
significant real estale projects as we expand our distribution network, requiring us {o identify and secure available
locations with appropriate characteristics needed to support the different types of facilities. If we are unable to
eftectively manage the volume, timing, nature, location, and cost of these investments, projects and changes, our
business operalions and financial resulis could be materially and adversely afiected. The cost and potential
problems, defects of design, and interruptions associated with the implementation of these initiatives, inciuding
these associated with managing third-pariy service praviders, employing new oniine tools and services,
implementing new technologies, implamenting and restructuring support systems and processes, securing
appropriate facility locations, and addressing impacts on inventory levels, could disrupt or reduce the efficiency of
our operations in the near term, lead to product availability issues, and impact cur profitability.

In addition, our stores are a key element of our interconnected retail strategy, serving as the hub of our customers’
interconnected shopping experience. Ws have an aging store base that requires maintenancs, investment, and
space reallocation initiatives to deliver the shopping experience that our customers desire. We also need to identify
and secure availaple locations with appropriate characleristics for new stores 10 ensure we ¢an continue 1o serve
our custamers effectively, Our investments in our slores may not deliver the relevant shopping experience our
customers expect or fully support an interconnected shopping experience. We must also maintain a safe store
environment for our customers and associates, 25 wall as protect against loss or theft of our inventory (also cailed
“shrink™), including as a result of erganized retail crime. High rates of shrink, which we continue to experience, or an
unsafe store enviranment, requires operational changes that may increase costs and adversely impact the custormer
and associate experience,

Qur investments o enhance our interconnected shopping experience and expand our supply chain might not
provide the anticipated benefits, might take longer than expected 10 complele or realize anticipated benefits, or

12 rid




Tabie

might fail altcgether, each of which could adversely impacl our competitive position and our financial condition,
resuits of operations, or cash flows.

if we are unable to effectively manage and expand our alliances and relationships with certain supplisrs of
both brand name and propristary preducts, we may be unable fo offectively execute our strategy to
differantiate aurselves from our competitors.

As part of our focus on praduct differentiation, we have formed strategic alliances and exclusive relationships with
certain suppliers to market products under a variety of well-recognized brand names. We have also developed
relationships with certain suppliers to allow us to market proprietary products that are comparable to hational
brands. Our proprielary products differentiate us from other retailers and generally carry higher margins then
national brand producis. If we are unable to manage and expand these alliances and relationships, maintain
favorable terms with current suppliers, ar Identify allernative sources for comparable brand name and proprigtary
products, we may not be able 1o effectively execute product differentiation, which may Impact our sales and gross
margin resuls,

Our stratagic transactions involve risks, which could have an adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations, and we may not realize the anifcipated banefits of these transactions.

We regularly consider and enter into strategic transactions, including mergers, acquisitions, invesiments, alliances,
and other growth and market expansion strategies. We generally expect that these transactions will result in sales
increases, cost savings, synergies, enhanced capabiliies or various other benefits. Assessing the viability and
realizing the benefits of these transactions is subject fo significant uncertainty. For each of our acquisitions, we need
to determine the appropriate level of integration of the target company's products, services, associates, and
information technelogy, financial, human resources, compliance, and other systems and processes, and then
successfully menage that integration into our corporate structure. Integration ¢an be a complex and time-consuming
pracess, and if the integration is not fully successful or is delayed for a material period of time, we may not achieve
the anticipated synergies or benefits of the acquislion. In addilion, the integration of businesses may create
complexity in our financial systems, intemai controls, technology and cybersecurity systems, and operations and
may make them more difficult to manage. Even if the larget companies are successfully integrated, the acquisitions
rnay fail to further our business strategy as anticipated, expose Us 10 increased competition or challenges with
respect lo our products or services, and expose us to additionai risks and liabilities. Strategic transactions may also
be subject to significant regulatory uncertainty, The changing enforcement landscape may result in additional costs
or delays that affect the anlicipated outcome of a transaction. Any failure in the execulion of a strategic transaction
or invesiment, our approach lo the integration of an acquired asset or business, or achievement of synergies or
other benefits could result in slower growth, higher than expected costs, the recording of an impaiment of goodwill
or other intangible assets, and other aclions which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
resuils of operations.

CPERATIONAL RISKS

Our success depends upon our ability 1o attract, develop and retain highly qualifiad associates to provide
excellent customer service and to support our strategic initiatives while also controlling our labor costs.

Qur customers expect a high level of cusiomer service and product knowledge from our associates. To meet the
needs and expectaifens of our customers, we must attract, develop and retain a large number of highly qualified
associates and mainiain a produclive relationship with those associates. Our ability to meet our labor needs whiie
controlling labor costs is subject to numerous external factors, including increased markel pressures with respect ko
prevailing wage rates, unemployment levels, and health and other insurance cosis; the irnpact of legislation or
regulations governing labor relations, employment, immigration, minimum wage, and healthcare benefits; changing
demographics and expectations among the workforce: public health concarns; and our reputation within the labor
markel. We also compete with other retail businesses for many of our assoclates in houry positions, and we invest
significant resources in training and motivating them to maintain 2 high leve! of job satisfaction. These positions
often have high turmover rates, which can lead to increased training and retention costs, particutarly in a competitive
tabor market. We have faced and may continue io face addiional challenges in recruiting and retaining associates
due fo wage pressure; flexibie scheduling needs; disruptian in the availability of childcare; challenges related to a
remote or hybrid warking environment for associates who work in our siors Support centers; and health and safety
concermns. We are also subject to labar union efforts to organize groups of our associates from time 1o time and, if
successful, those arganizational efforts may decrease our operational fexibility and efficiency, and/or ctherwise
negalively impact our operations or reputation, These faciors, together with growing competition among potential
employers, have resulted in and may continue 16 result in increased salaries, benefits, or ather employee-refated

-
13 v




costs, and/or may impair our ability to recruil and retain associates, which could have an adverse impact on our
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.,

In addition, 1o execule our interconnected retail stralegy, including our supply chain investments, we must attract
and retain a large number of skilled prefessionais, including technology professionals, to implement owr ongoing
technology and other investments. The market for thase professionals is very competitive, An inability to provide
wages and/or benefits, including remaie or hybrid work flexibility, that are competitive within the markets in which we
cperate could adversely affect our ability to retain and atract associates. Further, changes in market compensation
rates may adversely affact our labor costs,

Additionally, our ability to successfully execute organizational changes, including management transitions within the
Company's senior leadership, and to effectively motivate and retain associates is critical to our business success, If
we are unable fa locate, atfract or ratain qusiified assotiates, or manage leadership transitions successfully, our
apifity to effectively manage our stratsgy may be negatively impacted, the guality of service we provide to our
cusiomers may decrease, and our financial performance may be adversely affected.

A Tailure of a key information tachnclogy system or process could adversely affect our business,

We rely extensively on information technaiogy systems and related personnel to coltect, process, retain, manage,
transmit, and protect transactions and data. Some of these systems are managed or provided by third-party service
Providers, including certain cloud platform providers. In managing our business, we also rely heavily on the integrity
of, security of, and consistent access to, operational and financial data for information such as sales, customer data,
supplier data, associate data, job applicant data, partner data, demand forecasting, merchandise ordering, inveniory
repienishment, supply chain management, payment processing, order fulfillment, cusiomer service, and post-
purchase matters. For these information technelogy systems, applications, and processes to operate effectively, we
Or our service providers must maintain and update them, Delays in the mainfenance, updates, upgrading, or
patching of these systems, applicatians ar processes could impair, and on occasion have impaired, their
effectiveness or could expose us to security risks. Our systems and the third-party systems with which we interact
are subject to and on occasion have expenenced damage or interruption from a number of causes, including power
and other critical infrastructure cutages; computer and felecommunications failures; computer viruses: datz or
security breaches; intemmal or external data fheft or misusa; cyber-attacks, including the use of malicious codes,
worms, phishing, smishing, vishing, spyware, denial of service aftacks, and ransomware; responsive containment
measures by us that may invoive valuntarily taking systems offine; natura! disasters and calastrophic events such
as fires, fioods, earthquakes, larnadoes, hurricanes, or other extreme weather events; public health concemns, such
as pandemics and quarantines; military conflicts, acts of war, tefrorism or civil unrest; other systems outages;
inadeguate or ineffective redundancy; and design or usage emors or malfeasance by our associates, contractors or
third-party service providers. in addition, as mare business acliviiies have shifted online, and as many of aur store
Support associates continue to work in a remate or hybrid environment, we face an increased risk due {o the
potential failure of internal ar external information technalogy infrastructure as well as increased cybersecurity
threats and attempts 1o breach our security networks,

Although we and our third-party service providers seek (o maintain our respective systems effectively and to
successfully address the risk of compromise of the integrity, security and consistent operations of these systems,
such efforts are not always successful, As g result, we or our service providers could axpearience emors,
interruptions, delays or cessations of servigs in key portions of our information technology infrastruciure, which
could significantly disrupt our operations or impair data security; irmpact our ability 1o cperate or access
communications, financial or banking systemns; be castly, time-consuming and reseurce-intensive to remedy: and
adversely impact our reputation and retationship with our customers, suppliers, shareholders or regulators.

In addition, we are currently making, and expect fo continue to make, substantial investments in our information
techrnology systems, infrastruciure and personnel, in certain cases with the assistance of stralegic partrers and
other third-party service providers. These investments involve replacing existing systems, some of which are oider,
legacy systems that are less flexible and efficient, with successor systems: outsourcing certain technalogy and
business processas io third-party service providers: making changes to existing systems, including the migration of
applications to the cloud; maintaining or enhancing legacy systems that are nof currently being replaced; or
designing ar cost-effactively acquiring new systems with new functionality. These efforts can resuft in significant

security processes and internal controls, cost overruns, implementation delays or errors, disruption of operations,
and the potential inabiiity to meet business and reporting requirements. Any system implementation and transition
difficulty may result in operational challenges, security failures, reputational harm, and increased costs that could
adversely affect our business operations and resuits of operafions.
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Disruptions in our customer-facing technology systems could impair our interconnected retail strategy and
give rise to negative customer experiences,

Through our information technology systems, we are able to provide an improved overall shopping and
interconnected experience that erpowers our custamers to shop and interact with us from a variety of electronic
devices and digital platforms. We use our digital platforms as sales channels for our products and services, as
methods of providing inspiration, and as sources of produet, project, and other refevant information to cur customers
to help drive sales. We also have multiple online communities, digital ptatforms, and knowledgs centers that aliow
us to inform, assist and interact with our customers. The retail industry is continually evolving and expanding, with 2
significant increase in sales initiated online and via mobile applications. Wa may not be successful 2t managing this
increased volume and related delivery options without interruption in the future. Additionally, we must effectively
respend fo new develepments and changing customer preferances with respect to a digitaf and interconnected
experience. We continually seek to enhance all of our online and digital properties to provide a personalized, user-
friendly interface for our customers. Disruptions, delays, failures or other performance issues with our customer-
facing technology systems, either due fo increased volume, system modifications, or ather factors, or a failure of
these systems to meet our or our customers’ expeclations, could impair the vaiue they provide, adversely impact
our sales, and negatively affect our relationship with our customers,

Disruptions in our supply chain and other factors affecting the availability and distribution of our
merchandise could adversely impact our business,

Disruption within our fogistics or supply chain network, such as the industry-wide supply chain chaflenges rasuiting
from the COVID-19 pandemic, have in the past and may in the future adversely affect our ability to receive and
deliver inventory in a timely manner, impair our ability to mest customer demand for products, and result in lost
sales, increased supply chain costs, and/ar damage 1o our reputation. Such disruptions may result from darmage or
destruction to our distribution or fulfillment centers or thase of our supply chain service providers; weather-related
events; cybersecurity incidents or atlacks; natural disasters; intematicnal trade disputes, trade policy changes or
restrictions, or import- or export-related governmentat sanctions or restrictions; custams actions, including
regulatory enforcement inquiries, holds, detentions, and exclusions; quotas, tariffs or other import-related taxes:
strikes. lock-outs, work stoppages or slowdowns; shortages of supply chain laber, including truck drivers; shipping
capacity conslraints, including sherlages of related equipment; raw material or other shartages; third-party contract
disputes ar inability to maintain favorable contract terms; supply or shipping interruptions or costs; increased costs
or unavaiiability of fuel; military confiicts or acts of war, as well as any related sanctions or other govemment or
private responses; acts of terrorism; public health issues, including pandemics or quarantines {such as the
COVID-18 pandemic) and related shut-downs, re-openings, or other actions by gavemnment regulators or others;
civil unrest; ar ather factors beyond our contral. In recent years, pors in the U.S. and elsewhere have been
impacted by capacity constraints, port congestion and delays, periodic fabor disputes, security issugs, weather-
related events, and natural disasters. Disruptions to our supply chain due to any of the factors iisted above could
negatively impact our financial performance or financial condition,

If cur efforts to maintain the privacy and security of customer, associate, job applicant, business pariner,
and Company information are not successful, we could incur substantial costs and reputational damage
and could hecome subject to litigation and enforcement actions,

Our business, like thal of most relailers, involves the collection, processing, retention, management, fransmission,
and deletion of personal information {including identifiers, intemel activity, preferences, and payment information)
from our customers, associates, job applicants, and business partners, as well as confidential Company information.
We alsc work with third-party service providers that provide technaology, systems and servicas thal we use in
connection with the handling of information. Our information systems, and those of our third-party service providers,
are vilnerable to continually evolving data protection and eybersecurity risks. Unauthorized parties have in the past
gained access, and will continue 1o attempt to gain access, to these systems and data through fraud or other means
of decaiving cur associates or third-party service providers. Hardware, software or applications we develap aor oblain
from third parties may contain expleitable vuinerabilities, bugs, or defects in design, maintenance or manufacture or
other problems that could unexpectedly compromise information securty. We have experienced and continue to
face the ongoing risk of exploitation of our software providers and our sofiware development and implernentation
process, including fram coding and process vulnerabiliies and the installation of so-called back doars that provide
unauthorized access to systems and data, The increased use of a remote workforce has also expanded the
possible attack surface areas. [n addition, the risk of cyber-attacks has increased in connection with Russia's
invasion of Ukraine and the resulting geopolitical confiict. In light of this and other geopolifical events, nation-state
actors or their supporters may launch retaliatory cyber-attacks, and may attempl to cause supply chain and other
third-party service provider disruptions, or take other geopolitically-motivated retaliatary actiors that may disrupt our
-
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business cperations, resuk in data comprorise, or both. Nation-state actors have in the past carmied out, and may in
the fulure carry out, cyber-attacks to achieve their aims and goals, which may include espionage, manetary gain,
disruption, and destruction. To achieve their objectives, natian-state actors and other cyber criminals have used ang
may continue to use numerous attack vectors and methods, including use of stolen passwords, saclal enginesring,
phishing, smishing, vishing, identity spoofing, ransomware or other disruptive and destructive malware, supply chain
compromises, and man-in-the-middle and deniat of service attacks, The methods used to obtain unauthorized
access, disable or degrade service, or sabotage systems are constantly changing and evolving, increasing in
frequency and sophistication, and may be difficult to anticipate or detect for iong periods of ime.

To protect against unauthorized access to or use of data, prevent data loss, preserve data integrity, and protect our
own access to systems, we have implemented and regularly review and update systems, processes, and
procedurss; third-party assessments and lesting; and annual associate training and other specific fralning initiatives.
However, the ever-evolving threals mean that we and our third-party service providers and business partners must
continually evaluate and adapt our respective systems and processes and overal| security environment, as welt as
those of companies we acquire. There is no guarantee that the measures we take wifl be adequaie o safeguard
against ail threats, including vuinerabilities, data security breaches, syslem compromises or misuses of data. As we
gaw in connection with the data breach we expenenced in 2014, any significant compramise or breach of our dala
security, whether external or internal, or misuse of customer, associate, job applicant, busingss partner, or Campany
data, could resull in significant costs, including costs io investigate and remediale, as wall as lost sales, fines,
lawsLits, regulatory investigations, and damage to our reputation. Furthermore, because the techtnigues used to
oblain unauthorized access, disable ar degrade service, or sabotage systems change frequently and may not
immediately produce signs of anomalous aclivity or comprornise, we may be unabls fo anticipate these techniques
or lo implement adequate preventative measures. Additionally, as accurred in the case of the data braach we
experienced in 2014, we or our third-party service providers may not discover any security breach, vulnerability or
cempromise of information for a significant period of time afler the occurrence of 3 security incident,

In addition, data govemance failures can adversely affect our reputation and business. Our business depends on
our customers’, associales’, job applicants’ and business pariners’ willingness to entrust us with their personal
information. Events that adversely affect that trust, including inadequate disclosure to our customers, associates,
job applicants, or business partners of our uses of their information or failing {o keep our information technology
systems and our cuslomers', associzles', job applicants' and business partners’ personal information secure from
significant attack, theft, damage. loss or unauthorized disclosure or access, whether as a result of our action or
inaction {incfuding human error or malfeasance} or that of cur service providers or other third parties, could
adversely affect our brand and harm our reputation. Furthar, the ragulatory enviranment related to data privacy and
cybersecurity is constantly changing, with new and increasingly rigorous requirements applicable io our business,
The implementation of these requirements has also become more complex. Maintaining our compliance with
evolving requirements, including state privacy laws, requires significant effort and cost, requires changes to our
business praclices, and may kit our ability to collect and use certain data to support the customer experience. In
addtion, failure to comply with applicable requirements couid subject us to fines, sanctions, govermnmental
investigations. lawsuits or reputational damage. Additionally, our cyber insurance coverage may not be adequate for
Liabilities or costs actually incurred, z2nd we cannot be cerlain that fnsurance will continue to be available to us on
ecenomicaily reasanable terms, or at all, or that any insurer will not deny coverage of a future claim.

We are subject to payment-related risks that could increase our operating costs, expose us to fraud or theft,
subject us to potential liabllity, and potentially disrupt our business,

We accept payments using a variety of methods, including credit and debit cards, our privaie label credit cards,
cash, checks, PayPal, instaflment loan programs, trade credit, and gift cards, and we may offer new payment
aptions over time. Acceplance of these paymant options subjects us to rules, regulations, contractual obligations
and compliance requirements, including payment network rules and operaling guidelines, data security standards
and cerfification requirements, and rules governing electronic funds transfers, These fequirements may change over
time or be reinterpreted, making compliance more difficult, costly, or uncertain. Fer cartain payment methods,
including credit and debit cards, we pay interchange and other fees, which may increase over time and raise our
aperating costs. We rely on third parlies to provide payment processing services, including the processing of credit
cards, debit cards, and other forms of electronic payment. If these companies become unabte to provide these
services o us, or if their systems are compromised, it could potentially disrupt our business. The payment methods
that we offer, and the selling channels in which we operaie, also subject us 1o potential fraud and theft by threat
actors, who are becoming increasingly more saphisticated, seeking {0 ablain unauthorized access to ar exploit
weaknesses that may exist in our sales, paymenis and payment processing systems. If we fail 1o comply with
applicable rules or requirements for the payment methods we accept, or if payment-related data is compromised
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due {0 a breach or misuse of data, we may be liable fer costs incurred by payment card Issuing banks and other
third parties or we may be subject lo fines andg higher transaction fees, or our ability to accept or facilitate certain
types cf payments may be impaired. In addition, our customers could lose confidence in certain payment ypes,
which may result in a shift o cther payment types or potential changes to our payment syslems that may result in
higher costs. As a resull, cur business and operating results could be advarsely affected.

QOur business is subject to seasonal influences, and uncharacteristic or significant weather sanditions,
climate change, natural disasters, as wall as other catastrophic evants, could impact our operations.

Natwal disasters, such as hurricanes, tropical storms, fires, floods, droughts or water scarcity, tormadoes, and
sarthquakes; unseasonable, unexpected or extreme weather condltions, whether as a resuit of climate change or
otherwise; acts of terrorism or violence, Inciuding active shooter situations; public health concerns, such as
pandemics and quarantines and related shut-downs, re-openings, or ather actions by govemment reguiators or
others; civil unrest; military conflicts or acls of war, as well as any related sanctions ar gther govemrment or privale
responses; or simifar disruptions and catastrophic events can affect consurmer spending and confidence and
consumers' disposable incoms, particularly with respect to home improvement or construction projects, and could
have an adverse effect on our financial performance. These types of events can also adversely affect our work force
and prevent associates and customers from reaching our stores and ather facilitiss, They can alse, temporarily or
on & long-term basis, disrupt or disable operations of stores, support centers, and portians of owr supply chain and
distribution network, including causing reductions in the availability of inventory and disruption of utility services. In
addition, these events may affact cur information systems and digital platforms, resulting In disruption to various
aspects of our operations, including eur ability to transact with customers and fulfil] orders; to communicate with our
stores, facilities, stare support centers or senjor management; or to access financial or banking systems.
Unseasonable, unexpected or extreme weather conditions such as excessive precipitation, warm temperatures
during the winter seasaon, or prolenged or extreme periods of warm or cold temperatures, could render a portion of
our inventory incompatible with customer nesds.

Furthemmore, the long-term impacts of climate change, whether involving physical risks (such as extreme weather
condilions) or transition risks (such as regulatary or technolagy changes) are expected to be widespread and
unpredictable. These changes over time could affect, for example, the availabifity and cast of or demand for certain
cansumer preducts, commuodities, and energy (inciuding utilities), which in turn may impact cur ability 1o procure
certain goods ar services for the operation of our business at the quantities and levels we consider optimai,

As a consequence of these or other calasirophic or uncharacteristic events, we may experience inlerruption to our
operations, increased costs, or losses of praperty, equipment or invenlory, which would adversely affect our revenue
and profitabifity,

If we fail to identify and tevelop relationships with a sufficient number of qualified suppliers, or if our
suppliers experience financial difficulties or other chalenges, our ability to timely and efficiently access
products that meet our high standards for quallty could be adversely affected.

We buy our products from suppliers located around the warld, who in lurn pracure materials from across the globe,
Our ability to continue to identify and develop relationships with qualified suppliers who can salisfy our high
standards for quality and responsible sourcing, as well as our need 1o access products in & timely and fficient
manney, is a significant challenge. Our ability to access products from our suppliers can be adversely affected by
econormic or political instability: civil unrast; military conflicts or acts of war, as well as any related sanctions or other
govemnment or private responses; acts of terrorism ar violence; public health issues (including pandarmles and
related impacts); the financial instability of suppliers; suppliers’ noncompliance with applicable laws; contract
disputes or inability to maintain favorable canlract lerms; trade restriclions: tariffs; currency exchange rates:
disruptivns in our suppliers' logistics or supply chain networks or information technology systems; inability to seli
certain producis due to customs actions, including regulatory enforcement inquiries, holds, detentions, and
exclusions; raw material or other shortages, and other factors beyand our or our suppliers’ control. If we are unable
to access praducts 1o meet our custorners' demands and expectations in a timely and efficient manner, our sales
and gross margin results may be adversely impacted.

Failure to achieve and maintain a high level of protuct and service guality and safety and ensure
compliance with responsible sourcing laws and standards could damage our reputation with customers,
expose us to litigation or enforcemant actions, and negatively impact our sales and results of operations.

Product and service qualily issues cotid negatively impact customer confidence in aur brands and our Company. if
our product and service offerings do not meet applicable product standards or our customers’ expectations
regarding safety or quality, we could experience lost sales and increased costs and he exposed to legal, financial
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and reputational risks, as wel as govemmental enforcement acticns, Aclual, potential or perceived product safety
concems, including health-related concems, could expose us to liigation or government enforcerment actions, and
could result in costly preduct recalls and other liabilities. We may nol be successful in ablaining adequate
contractual indemnification and insurance coverage from our suppliers and service providers, which may resuit in
claims having an adverse effect on cur business, financial condition and results of cperations. Even with adequate
insurance and indemnification, our repulalion as a provider of high-quality products and services, including both
natipnal brand names and our praprietary products, could suffer, damaging our reputation and impacting custamer
loyalty. In addition, we and our customers have expeciations around responsible sourcing, which is an increasing
focus of government regulators as well. All of our suppliers must comply with our responsibie sourcing standards,
which cover a variety of expectations across multiple areas of social compliance, Including supply chain
transparency, health and safety, enviranmental iaws and regulations, compensation, hours of work, and prehibitions
on child and forced labor. We have a responsible sourcing audit process, but we are alsg dependant on our
suppliers to ensure that the products and services we provide to our customers comply with our standards and
applicable law. Actual, potential or parceived supplier nan-compliance could, and in certak instances in the past
has, axpuosed us to litigation or governmental enfarcemant actions or resulted in costly product recalls; inability to
sell certain products due to customs actions, including regulatory enforcement inquiries, holds, delentions, and
exclusions; and/or other Habilities.

Our proprietary products subject us to certain increased risks, incfuding regulatary, produet liability,
intellectual property, supplier relations, and reputational risks.

In addition to other product-reiated risks discussed in this section, as we expand our proprietary product offerings,
we may become subject to increased ricks due to our greater role in the design, manufacturs, marketing and sala of
those products. The risks include greater responsibility to administer and comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, increased potential product liability and product recal) exposure, and increased polential reputational
risks related to the responsible sourcing of those products. Te effectively execute en cur product differentiation
strategy, we musl zlso be able to successfully protect our proprietary rights and sucgessillly navigate and avaid
claims refated lo the proprietary rights of third parties. In addition, an increase in sales of our proprietary products
may adversely affact sales of cur suppliers’ products, which in tum could adversely affect our relationships with
certain of our suppliers. Any failure to approprielely address some or all of these risks could damage our reputation
and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition,

i we are unable to effectivoly Tnanage our installation services business, we could sufer lost sales and be
subject to fines, lawsuits, reputational damage or the loss of our general contractor licenses.

We act as a general contractar to provide installation services ta our DIFM customers through professianal third-
party licensed and insured installers. As such we are Subject to regulatory requirements and risks applicable 1o
general centractors, which include management of background checks, licensing, permitting, and handling of
environmental risks, as well as quality of work performed by our third-pariy installers. We have sstablished
processes and procedures to manage these requirements and manage customer satisfaction with the services
provided by our third-party installers. However, as we experienced In part with our recent EPA investigation and
resulting consent decree in April 2021, if we fail 1o manage these processes effectively, collect the appropriate
documentation, perform regular job site inspections, or provide proper oversight of these services, we could suffer
lost sales, fines, tawsuits, or governmental enforcement actions for violations of regulatory requirements, as well as
claims for property damage or personal injury. In addition, we may suffer damage to our reputation or the loss of our
generz| contractor licenses, which could adversely affecl our business.

LEGAL, FINANCIAL, REGULATORY, GLOBAL AND OTHER EXTERNAL RISKS

Uncertainty regarding the housing market, economic conditlons, political and socfal climate, public healih
issues, and other factars beyond our contrel could adversely affect demand for our preducts and services,
our costs of doing business, and our financial performance.

Qur financial performance depends significantly en the stability of the housing and home improvement markets, as
well as general economic canditicns, including changes in gross domestic product. Adverse conditions in or
uncertainty about these markets, the economy or the political or social climate could adversely impact aur
custorners’ confidence or financial conditicn, causing them fo decide against purchasing home improvement
producls and services, causing them lo delay purchasing decisions, or impacling their ability to pay for products and
services. Other factars beyond our contrel — including unemployment and foreclosure rates; inventory loss due 1o
theft {including as a result of organized retail crime); interest rate fluciuations: inflation or deflation; fuel and other
energy costs; raw material or other shortages; labor and heaitheare cosls; the availability of financing; the state of
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further adversely affect demand for cur producls and services, cur cosls of doing business, and our financiat
performance, A number of merchandise categories have been impacted by higher inflation than that which we have
experienced in recent years due fo, among other things, the continuing impacts of the COVID-19 pandermic, global
supply chain disruptions, and the uncertain economic and geopolitical envirenment, If infiation increases costs
beyard our ability to control our related costs, we may not be able tw adjust prices or use our portfolio strategy to
sufficiently offset the effect without negatively impacting consumer demand or aur gross margin. Furthsr, our MRQ
customers, who have higher spend and longerterm relationships than a typical refai! customer, primarity use trads
credit to finance their purchases, and some of our Pros usa trade credit in order to purchase our products. As a
result, their ability to pay is highly dependent on the economic strength of the industry in their areas. !f these
customers are unable to repay the trade credit from us, we may face greater default risk, which could reduce our
cash flow and adversely affect our results of operations.

Qur costs of doing business could increase as a result of changes in, expanded enforcament of, or
adoption of new federal, state or local laws and reguiations.

We are subject to various federal, state and iocal laws and regulations that govem numeraus aspects of our
business. In recent years, a number of new laws and regulations have been adopted, there has been expanded
enforcement of certain existing iaws and regulations by federal, state and local agencies, and the intarpretation of
certain laws and regulations has become increasingly complex. These laws and regulations, and related
interpretations and enforcement aclivity, may change as a result of a variety of factors, including political, economic
or sociat events. Changes in, expanded enforcement of, or adoption of new federal, state or local laws and
regulations governing minimum wagse or living wage requirements; the classification of exempt and non-exempt
employees; the distinction between employees and contractors: other wage, labor or workplace regulations:
healihcare; data privacy and cybersecurity; the sale, marketing, sourcing, and pricing of some of our products;
transportation, logistics and interstate delivery oparations, including Departmant of Transportation regulations on
vehicles and drivers; international trade; supply chain transparency: taxes, including changes to carparate tax rates;
restrictions on carbon dicxide and other greenhouse gas emissions; competition and antitrust raquirements; ESG
praegrams, transparency and reporting; unclaimed property; energy costs and consumption: or harardous wasie
disposal and cther environmental tatters, including with respect to our instalation services business, could
increase our costs of doing business or impact our sales, operations or profitability,

If we cannot successfully manage the unigue chalenges presented by international markets, we may not be
successful in our international operations and our sales and profitability may be negatively impacted.

Qur ability to successfully conduct retail operafions in, and source products and materiats from, intemational
markets is affected by many of the sarme risks we face in our U.E. operations, as wefl as unigue costs and
difficulties of managing international operations. Our international operations, including any expansion in
international markets, may be adversely affecied by local laws and customs, U.S. laws applicable to foreign
operations and other foreign legal and regulatory constraints, as welt as pelitical, social and economic conditions,
Risks inherent in international cperations also include, among cthers, palential adverse tax consequences:
international trade disputes, frade policy changes or potential tariffs and other import-related taxes and controfs:
inability to sell certain products due to customs actions, including reguiatery enforcement inquiries, holds,
detentions, and axclusions; greater difficuty in enforcing intellectuat property rights; limitations an access to ports;
risks associated with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and local anti-bribery law complianca: military conflicts or
acts of war, as well as any related sanctions or other govemrent or private responses; compliance with forced labor
laws; and chalienges in aur ability to identify and gain access to local suppliers. For example, trade tensions
between the 1.S. and China have ied {0 a series of significant tariffs on the importation of certain product
calegories. As a porlion of our retail praducts are sourced, directly or indirectly, outside of the LS., major changes
in tax or trade policies, tarifls or trade relations could adversely impact the cost of, demand for, and profitabifity of
retail product sales in our U.S. locations. Other countries may also change their business and trade policies in
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The inflation or deflation of commadity and other prices could affect our prices, demand for our products,
our sales and our profit margins.

Prices of certain commadity producis, including lumber and other raw materials, are histarically valalile and are
subject to fluctuations arising from changes in domestic and intermational supply and demand, inflationary
pressures, labor costs, competition, market speculation, government ragulations, tariffs and trade reshictions,
natural disasters, geopalitical coflicts, and periadic delays in delivery. For example, Russia’s invasion of Ukraine
and the related international responses have exacerbated inflaticnary pressures, including causing increases in
commodity prices as well as fuel and other energy costs. Rapid and sigrificant changes in commodity and other
prices, such as changes in lumber prices, and our ability to pass them on 1o our customers or manege them through
our portfolio strategy, may affect the demand for gur products, our sales and our profit margins. if praduct cost
inflation increases beyond our ability to contro) our related cests, we may not be able to adjust prices to sufficiently
offset the effect of the various cost increases witheut negatively impacting consumer demand.

The continuing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic are highly unpredictable, volatile, and uncertaln, and
could adversely affect our business operations, demand for our products and services, our costs of doing
business, availability of labor, access to inventory, supply chain operations, our ability to predict future
performance, our exposure to litigation, and our financlal performance, among other thirgs.

The COVID-18 pandemic has caused significant public health cancerns as well as ecanomic disruption, uncertainty,
and volatility, aif of which have impacted our business. While we have taken numeraus steps fo mitigate the impact
of the pandemic on our resuls of operations, there can be na assurance that these efforts will continue 1o be
successful. While sfforts to address the pandemic, including vaccinations, have fostered progress and many
restrictions have relaxed, due to numerous uncertainties and (actors beyond our centrel, we are unable to predict
the ongoing impact that the pandemic and recavery efforts will have on ocur business, results of operations, cash
flows, and financial condition. These factors and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: .

* theongoing impact of COVID-19, including whelher thers are further “waves” or other continued increases
or spikes in the number of COVID-18 cases in future periods in areas in which we ar our suppliers operate,
and the potential for longer-term impact as COVID-19 becomes endemic;

- the rapidly changing and fluid circumstances caused by the pandemic and efforts to contain and recever
from it and our ability to respond quickly enough or appropriately 1o those circumsiances:

* the duration and degree of governmental, business or other actions in response to the pandemic, including
but not limited to quaraniine or shut-down measures and other governmental orders, or the termination of
those measures; fiscal polioy changeas; or additional measures that may yel be enacted;

= the health of, and longer-lerm effect of the pandsmic on, our associates and our ability to maintain staffing
needs to effectively operate our business;

*  changes in labor markets affecting us and our suppliers, including labor shortages and increased empioyee
turnover,

= evolving macroeconomic factors, including general economic uncertainty, unamployment rates, infiation and
deflation, rising interest rates, and recessionary pressures, and their ongoing impact on consumer
confidence, sconomic weli-being, spending, and shopping behaviors:

= impacis —financial, operational or otherwise — on our supply chain, including en manufacturers or suppiiers
of our products and logistics or transportation providers, and on our service providars, subcontracters, or
other business partners;

* tha effects on our internal cortrol environment and data sacurity as a result of the remote and hybrid work
environment;

+  the impact of requiatory and judicial changes in liability for workers’ compensation:

»  potential increases in insurance premiums, medical claims costs, and workars' compensation claims costs;
and
« the impact of itigation or claims from customers, associaies, suppliers, requlators or other third parties
relating to COVID-19 or aur aciions in respanse therets,
In addition, as fhe pandemic subsides, customers have shifted mare of their spending away from home
improvement and back to olher areas, compared to the historic levels of home impravement spending we saw
during the heights of the pandemic, which may have an adverse impact on our sales.

The above factors and uncertainties, or others of which we are nof curranily aware, may rasult in adverse impacts to
our business, resufts of operations, cash flows, and financial condition. In addifion to the factors above, the
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CQVID-19 pandemic has increased a number of other risks to our business, including but not limited to those
discussed below and elsewhere in these Risk Factors:

Associate and Castomer Safety-Related Risks. The health and safety of our associales and customers are of
primary concern lo our management team. in respanse 1o the COVID-18 pandemic, we took several steps o
support our associales, including expanding certain compensation and benefits fo help alleviate some of the
challenges our associates were facing as a result of COVID-19, and adopted a number of enhanced safety
measures in our slores and other facilities. We have transitioned from these temperary pay and benefits programs,
as wall as many of the enhanced safety measures. However, due to the unpredictable nature of COVID-18 and the
consequences of our actions, we may see unexpecled outcomes from rolfing back safety measures as conditions
evelve, particularly if there are further outbreaks. If we do not fespond appropriately to any further COVID-19
outbreaks, if our customers or associales do nat participate in safety measures, or if rolling back safely measures
resuits in additional outbreaks, the well-being of our associates and customers could be at risk. Furthermare, any
failure to appropriately respond, or the perception of an inadequate response, could cause reputational harm to our
brand and/or subject us to claims and iitigation from associales, customers, suppliers, regulatars or other third
parties. Additionally, we have faced, and may continue to face, periodic labor shortages at our stores due to
COVID-18 and other illnesses like influenza that were lass prevalent during the height of the pandemic, which can
result in modifications ta our operations and negatively impact our business, costs and resulis of operations.

Additionafly, soma jurisdictions have taken measures intanded to expand the availability of workers' compensation
or to change the presumptions applicable 1o workers compensation measuras. These actions may increase our
exposure to workers’ compensation claims and increase our cost of insurance.

Supply Chain-Related Risks. Circumstances related 1o the COVID-19 pandemic significantly impacted the global
supply chain, with restrictions and limitations on business activities ang impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic causing
cost increases, labor shortages, capacity constraints, disruptions and delays, These issues, which may continue or
expand depending on the progression of the pandemic, have placed strain on the domestic and international supply
chain, which has aflected and may continue 1o negatively affect the low or availabitity of cerain produets. Even if
we are able fo find altemate sources for certain products, they may cost more or require us to incur higher
transpartation costs, which could adversely impact aur profitabilty and financial condition. Similarly, increased
demand fer online purchases of products impacted our fulfillment operations, as well as those of aur third-party
carriers, resulting in delays in delivering products to customers. The operation of our distribution and fulfilment
centers is crucial to our business operations. We and our suppliers have experienced, and may cantinue to
experience, labor shortages at some of our distribution and fulfliment centers, and any such |abor shartages,
whether temporary or sustained, may adversely impact the flow or availability of products 1o our stores and
customers. Any of these circumstances could impair our ability ta meet customer demand for produets and result in
lost sales, increased supply chain costs, or darnage to our repulation.

To the extent the COVIO-19 pandemic and related recovery efforts continue to adversely affect the U.S. and global
eccnomy andfor 1o adversely affect our business, results of operalions, cash flows, or financial conditian, they may
also heighten other risks described in this section and other SEC filings, including but not limited to those refated to
consumer behavior and expectalions, competition, brand and reputation, implementation of strategic initiatives,
cybersecurity threals, associate and customer privacy, technology systems disruption, supply chain disniptions,
labor availability and cost, liligation, and regulatory requirements.

We may incur property, casualty or other Josses not covered by our insurance.

We are predaminantly self-insured for a number of different risk calegories, such as general [iability (including
product liability}, workers' compensation, employee group medical, employment practices liability and wags and
hewur claims, automabile claims, and network security and privacy liability, with insurance coverage for certain
catastrophic risks above the self-insurance levels. The types and amounts of insurance may vary from fime to time
based on our decisians with respect to risk retention and regulatory requirements, The occurrence of significant
claims, a substantial rise in costs to maintain our insurance, the failure to maintain adequate insurance coverage, or
disputes with insurers regarding coverage could have an adverse impact on our financial condition and resuls of

operations.

Changes in accounting standards and subjective assumptions, estimates and judgments by management
related to complex accounting matters could significantly affect our financial results or financial condition,

GAAP and related accounting pronouncements, imptermentation guidelines and interpretations with regard 1o & wide
range of matters that are relevant to our business, such as assat impairment, inventories, lease obligations, seli-
insurance, vendor allowances, tax matters, business combinations, and litigation, are complex and involve many
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subjecfive assumptions, estimates and judgments. Changes in accounting standards er their application or
fnterpretation, or changes in underlying assumplions, estimates or judgments, could significantly change our
reported or expected financlal performance or finaricial condition. The implementation of new accounting standards
could also require cerlain systerns, intemal process, internal conirols, and other changes that coukd increase our
aperating costs,

We are involved from time to time in a number of legal, reguiatory and governmental enforcement
proceedings, and while we cannot predict the outcomas of those procesedings and other contingencies with
certainty, some of these outcomes may adversely afect our operations or increase our costs.

We are invalved in a number of legal proceadings and regulatory matters, including government ingeiries and
investigations, and consumer, employment, tort and ather litigation that arise from time to time in the ordinary
course of business. Litigation is inherently unpredictable, and the outcome of some of these proceedings and other
contingencies could require us to take or refrain from taking actions which could adversely affect cur operations or
could result in excessive adverse verdicls, fines, or resulls, Additionally, as we have seen in the past, involvement in
these lawsuits, investigations and inquiries, and other proceedings, as well as compliance with any setllements or
consent decrees that result from those proceedings, can involve significant expense, divert management's attention
and resources from ciher matters, and impact the repulation of the Company.

Mot applicable.

The following table presents the percentage of our owned versus leased faciliiies in operetion at the end of fiscal
2022, along with the total square footage:

Total Squzre
Syuare foctage in milifans Orwnad Leasad Faotage
Stores [V 89 % 1% 2409
Warehauses and distribution centers 4% 86 % 103.1
Offices and other 21% 79 % 5.2
Total 3492

(1) Qur owned stores includs those subject o ground leases
{2l W operated over 400 wershousss and distribution centers 8l the ond of fiscal 2022
(3] Our Store Support Centar (corparate haadguarters) /s located in Atanta, GA.
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The foliowing table presents our U.S. stare locations (includi

ng the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the territories

of the U.S. Virgin islands and Guam) at the end of fiscat 2022
U.S. Stores .S, Stores 1.5, Stores
Alabama 28 Kentucky 14 Chio 70
Alaska 7 Louisiana 28 Oklahoma 16
Arizona 57 Maine 11 Oregon 27
Arkansas 14 Maryland 41 Pannsylvania 70
California 246 Massachusetts 45 Puerto Rico 10
Colorado 45 Michigan 70 Rhode island g
Connecticut 30 Minnesota a3 South Carolina 28
Delaware 9 ississippi 14 South Dakola 1
District of Columbia 1 Missouri Y. Tennessee a9
Florida 156 Montana 6 Texas 182
Georgia aQ Nebraska 8 Utah 22
Guam 1 Nevada 21 Vermont 3
Hawaii 7 New Hampshire 20 Virgin Islands 2
[daho 11 New Jersey &7 Virginia 50
llinois 78 New Mexico 13 Washington 48
Indiana 24 New Yori 101 West Virginia 6
lowa 10 North Carolina 40 Wiscansin 27
Kansas 16 Nerth Dakata 2 Wyoming 5
Total 1.5, 2,007

The fallowing table presents our store iocations outside of the U.S. at the end of fiscal 2022;

Canada Stores Maxico Stores Maxlsa Stoms
Alberta 27 Aguascalientes 2 Nayarit 1
British Columbia 28 Baja Catifornia ] Nuevo Len 13
Manitoba 6 Baja California Sur 2 Daxaca 1
New Brunswick 3 Campeche 2 Fuebla 5
Newfoundfand 1 Chiapas 2 Querétaro 5
Nova Scotia 4 Chihuahua 6 Quintana Roo 3
Ontario 83 Coahuila 5 5an Luis Potosi 2
frince Edward Isfand 1 Colima 2 Sinaloa 8
Quebec 22 Distrito Federal 10 Sonora 4
Saskatchewan 4 Qurango 2 State of Mexico 16
Total Canada 182 Guanajualo 5 Tabasco 1
Guerrera 2 Tamaulipas 5
Hidailgo 1 Tlaxcala 1
Jalisco 9 Veracruz 5
Michoacan 4 Yucatan 2
Morelos 3 Zacatecas 1
Total Mexico 133

The Company is party to various legal proceedings arising
a party to any legal proceeding thal management believes

financial position or cur resulls of operations.
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SEC regulations require us to disclose certain information abaut proceedings arising under federal, state or local
environmentai regulations if we reasonably believe that such proceedings may result in monetary sanctions above 3
stated threshold. Pursuant to SEC regulations, the Company uses a threshold of $1 million for purposes of
determining whether disclesure of any such proceedings is required.

Not applicable,

Since April 19, 1984, our common stock has been listed on the NYSE, trading under the symbol “HD.” We pald our
firsf cash dividend on June 22, 1987 and have paid a cash dividend during each subsequant quarter, While we
currently expect a cash dividend to be paid in the future, future dividend payments wili depend on our eamings,
capital requirements, financial condition, and other factors considered relevant by our Board of Directers.

At March 1, 2023, there were approximately 110,000 halders of record of our commeon stock and approximately
4,938,000 additicnal "street name” holders whose shares are held of record by banks, brokers, and other financial
inafitutions.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph and table balow present our gumulative iotal shareholder retums relative to the performance of tho S&P
Retail Composite index and the S&P 500 Index for the five most recent fiscal years. The graph assumes $100 was
invested at the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE and in @ach index on the last irading day of the
fiscal year ended January 28, 2018 and assumes that ail dividends wers reinvested on the date paid. The points on
the graph represent fiscal year-end amounts based on the Jast trading day in each fiscal year.
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January 28, February 3, February 2, January 31, January 30, January 29,
2018 2018 2020 2021 2022 2023
The Heme Depaot —+— S&P Retail Composite Index B 3&P 500 Index
Fiscal Yoar Ended
J 28, Februeryl, Feb 2, U M1, g 3w, ) i
0 T 202y 200 0s

The Home Depot 3 10000 § 9096 $& 11558 § 14052 $ 19416 § 17186
S&P Retail Composite Index 100.00 105.29 126.99 179.55 180.14 157.48
S&P 500 Index 100.00 96.12 116.83 136,97 T65.71 54.70

| A

24 v




Tabiln (ank

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The following table presents the number and average price of shares purchased in each fiscal month of the fourth
quarier of fiscaf 2022:

Doliar Value of
Average Tatal Number of Shares
Total Number of Price Shares Purchased that May Yt

Shares Pald X as Part of Publicly Ba Purchased
Earled Purchased " Pershare "  Announced Program ™ Under the Program ¥
October 31, 2022 - November 27, 2022 1,989,907 § 307.38 1,984,980 $ 13,384,512799
MNovember 28, 2022 — December 25, 2022 2,797 536 i21.81 2,798,708 12,484 515,553
December 26, 2022 - January 29, 2023 2,242 321.75 — 12,484 515,583

Total 4,789,685 315.80 4,781,688

{1} Thess amounts includa reptrehases pursuani to our Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, as Amanded and Restated May 79, 3022, and our 1957
Cmpibiss Stock Incantve Plan feolfactively, the “Flans”). Undear the Plans, participants may sumender shares as payment of applicable Ly
withholding on the vesting of restncted sfock. Participants in the Plans may also axertise sfock opifons By surandenng shares of common
slock thal the participants already own as payment of the exercise price. Shares so sumendered by participants in the Plans are
repurcised pursvant (o the lerms of the Plans and apoticable awerd agreement and not pursuent fo publicly announcad share repurchesa

Programs,
{2) On Avgust 18, 2022, our Board of Direciars #pproved 8 $15.0 bithon shara repurchase authonzation that replaced the pravious
authorization of 820.0 bition, which wes approved on May 30, 2021, This new authorization does not have a prescribed expiration date.

SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

During the fourih quarter of fiscal 2022, we issued 483 deferred stock units under the Home Depot, Inc.
Nonemployee Directors’ Deferred Stock Compensation Plan pursuant io the exemption from registration provided
by Section 4{a)(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 of the SEC's Regutation D thereunder. The deferred stock
units were credited during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022 1o the accounts of those non-employee directors who
elected to receive ali or a portion of board retainers in the farm of daferred stock units instead of cash, The deferred
stock units convert 1o shares of common stock on a cne-for-one basis fallowing & termination of service as

described in this plan,

During the fourth guarter of fiscal 2022, we cradited 923 defered stock units to participant accounts under the
Restoration Plans pursuant fo an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act for involuntary,
non-contribulory plans. The deferred stock units convert to shares of comman stack en a one-for-one basis
following a termination of service as described in these plans.

The following discussion pravides an analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations from
management's perspsctive and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial staterments and related
notes included in this report. The discussion in this Farm 10-K generally focuses on fiscal 2022 compared to fiscaf
2021. A discussion of our results of operations and changes in financial condition for fiscal 2021 compared to fiscal
2020 has been excluded from this report, but can be found in Pag ||, em 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Frnancial Candition and Results of Operations of our Farm 10-K for fisgal 2021,
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The following table presents highlights of our annual financial resuts:

Flacal Fiscal Fiseal
dolfars in milifons, except per share data 2022 2021 2020
Net sales § 157403 § 151157 § 132110
Net earnings 17,105 15,433 12,886
Diluted earnings per share $ 16.69 % 1553 § 1184
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 14615 & 16571 § 18,839
Payments for businesses acquired, net — 4 7,780
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of discounts 5,942 2,979 7,933
Repayments of long-term debt 2,431 1,532 2.872

We reported net sales of $157.4 billion in fiscal 2022, Net eamings were $17.1 hillion, or $16.69 per diluted share.
During fiscal 2022, we opened two new stores in the 1.8, and four new stares in Mexico, and we lost one store in
the LS. due lo a fire, resuiting in 2 total store count of 2,322 at January 29, 2023. At the end of fiscal 2022, a total
of 315 of our stores, or 13.6% of our tofal store count, were located in Canada and Mexico. Total sales per retail
square foot were $627.17 in fiscal 2022, Our Invenlory tumover ratio was 4.2 limes at the end of fiscat 2022,
compared t¢ 5.2 times at the end of fiscal 2021. The decrease in gur inventory turmover ratio was driven by an
Increase In average inventary levels during fiscal 2022 resulting from slrategic investments to promote higher in-
stock levels and pull forward merchandise in response to ongaing global supply chain disruption, as welt as
continued investment in our new supply chain facllities and camyaver of some spring seasonal inventory.

We generated $14.6 billion of cash flow from operatians and issued $6.9 biflion of fonig-term debt, net of discounts,
during fiscal 2022. This cash flow, together with cash an hand, was used to fund cash payments of $7.9 hillion for
dividends and $€.7 billion for share repurchases. in addificn, we repaid $2.5 billion of long-term debt and $1.0 billicn
of net short-term debt and funded $3.1 billion in capital expenditures during fiscat 2022, In February 2023, we
announced a 10% increase in our quarterly cash dividend to $2.09 per share,

Our ROIC was 44.6% for fiscal 2022 and 44._7% for fiscal 2021, See the N in-GAAP Financial Measures section
below for our definition and ealculation of ROIC, as well as a reconciliation of NOPAT, & non-GAAP financial
measure, to net eamings {the most comparable GAAP financial measure),
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table presents the percenta
consolidated statements of eamings;

ge refationship between net sales and major cateqories in our

Flzcal Flzgal Flzeal
2022 2021 2020
% of Net % of Nei % of Net
dultars in miflions § Sales Sales Sales
Net sales $157,403 $151,157 $132,110
Gross profit 52,778 3358% 50832 336% 44,853 BO%
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 26,284 16.7 25,406 16.8 24 447 18.5
Crepreciation and amnortization 2,455 1.6 2,386 1.8 2,128 1.6
Total operaling expenses 28739 18.3 27,7492 184 26,575 20.1
Cperating income 24,039 15.3 23,040 152 18,278 13.8
Interest and other (income) expense:
Interest income and other, net {55) — {44) — (47) —
Interest expense 1,617 1.0 1,347 0.9 1,347 1.0
Inierest and othar, nel 1,562 1.0 1,303 .9 1,300 1.0
Earnings before provision for income taxes 22477 14.3 21,737 14.4 16,978 12.9
Provision for income taxes 5,372 34 5,304 35 4,112 3.1
Ne&t eamnings § 17,105 10.9 % $ 16433 10.8 % § 12,866 8.7 %
Nofe: Carisin percantages may not sum 16 tolals due io rounding.
% Change
Fiscal Fiscal Flscal Fiscal Fiseal
Selected financial and sales data: 2022 2021 2020 2022 vs. 2021 2021 vs, 2020
Comparable sales {% change) 31% H4% 197% NiA, N/A
Comparable customer transaciions (% change) " 54)%  (0.1)% 86 % N/A N/A
Comparable average ticket (% change) " Ba&% M7% 105% N/A N/A
Customer lransactions {In millions) " 16664 17597 1,756.3 {5.3)% 0.2 %
Average ticket ' $00.36  $83.04 §74.32 8.8 % 1.7 %
Sales per retail square foot (' $627.17 $604.74 $543.74 37 % 11.2%
Diluted eamings per share $1669 51553  $11.84 7.5% 301 %

{1) Does notinclude results for HD Suppfy, incfuding the legacy Imanine Brands business, which was integrated inlp HD Supply during the

fourth quartar of fiscal 2021.

{2
os it represents a primary drver in rreESLIng salas performancs.

3

Avarage lickal raprasonts (he Bvarage price paid per iranseclion and is used by

management! fo moniar the perfarmance of the Company,

Salas per refad square fool regressnrs sales givided by ralad store square foolage. Seles per ratai Equare fool is a measure of ihe

affeiancy of sefes besed on the fotai squere foplage of aur slores and is used by management (o manifor the performance of the
Campany's relail aperations a3 an indicator of the productivity af owned and leased square footage for thesxe ratail operations

Sales

We assess our sales performance by evaluating both net sales and comparable sales.
Net Sales. Net sales for fiscal 2022 increased $6.2 billion, or 4.1%, to $157.4 billian, The increase in net sales for

fiscal 2022 primarily reflected the impact of positive comparable sales driven by an
ticket, partially offset by a decrsase in comparable customer transactions,

impacted net sales by $339 million in fiscal 2022,
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Oniine sales, which consist of sales generated oniine through our websiles and maobile applications for protiucts
picked up at our stores or delivered to customer locations, represented 14.2% of nat sales and grew by 7.4% during
fiscal 2022 compared to fiscal 2021. The increase in online sales in fiscal 2022 was a result of customers continuing
to leverage our digital platforms and reflecis our ongoing investments to anhance these platforms and related
fulfilmeni capabilities, which support our interconnected retail strategy.

Comparable Sales. Comparabie sales is a measwre that highlights the performance of our existing locations and
websites by measuring the change in net sales for a period over the comparable prior-period of equivalent length,
Comparable sales includes sales at ali locations, physicai and onfine, open greater than 52 weeks (including
remodels and relocations) and sxcludes closed stores. Retail stores become comparable on the Monday following
their 52™ week of operation. Acquisitions are typically included in comparable sales after they have been owned for
more than 52 weeks. Cornparabie sales is intended enly as supplemental information and is not a substitute for net
sales presented in accordance with GAAP

Total camparable sales increased 3.1% in fiscal 2022, reflecting an B.8% increase In Comparable average ticket,
partiaily offset by a 5.4% decrease in comparable custamer transactions compared to fiscal 2021. The increase in
comparable average ticket was primarily driven by infiation, as well as demand for new and innovative products.
The decrease in comparable customer {ransactions reflects the impact of macroeconomic factors during fiseal 2022,
inctuding indications of price sensitivity to the broader inflationary enviranment and a gradual shift in consumer
spending from goods back to services, resulting in fransactions trending towards fiscal 201g, pre-COVID-19
pandemic levals,

For fiscal 2022, 10 of our 14 merchandising depariments posted positive comparahle sales, led by Building
Matenials, Piumbing, Millwork, Paint, Hardware, and Kitchen and Bath, which posted comparable sales above the
Company average. Our Indoor Garden, Outdoor Garden, Appliances, and Flocring departments posted negative
cormparable sales.

Gross Profit

Gross profitincreased $1.9 bilfion, or 3.8%, to $52.8 billion in fiscal 2022, Gross profit s & percent of net sales, or
gross profit margin, was 33.5% in fiscal 2022 comparad to 33.6% in fiscal 2021. The decrease in gross profit margin
was primarily driven by higher product and transportalion costs, pressure from shrink during the second half of the
year, and investments in our supply chain network, offset by the benefit fram higher retail prices, along with
favorable product mix,

Operating Expenses
Our operating expanses are composed of SG&A and depreciation and amortization,

Selling, General & Administrative. S3G&A increased $878 million, or 3.5%. 1o $26.3 hillion in fiscal 2022 As 2
percent of net sales, SG&A was 16,7% in fiscal 2022 compared 1o 16.8% in fiscal 2021, primarily reflecling leverage
from a pasitive comparable sales environment and lower incentive compensation, partially offset by wage
investments for hourly associates and increased operational costs, including planned investments designed to drive
efficiencies in our stores,

Depreciation and Amortization, Depreciation and amortization increased $69 million, or 2.9%, to $2.5 billion in
fiscal 2022, As a percent of net sales, depreciation and amortization was 1.6% in hoth fiscal 2022 and fiscal 2021,
reflecting feverage from a positive comparable sales environment, offset by increased depreciation expense from
strategic investments in the business.

Intarast and Other, net

interest and other, net increased $259 million, or 19.9%, to $1.6 billion in fiscal 2022, As a percent of nat sales,
interest and other, net, was 1.0% in fiscal 2022 compared to 0.9% in fiscal 2021, primerily refiecting higher interest
expense due to higher debt balances and increased variable rate interest on floating rate debt resulting from interest
rate swaps, partially offsat by leverage from a positive comparable sales environment.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our combined effective income tax rale was 23.9% in fiscal 2022 compared to 24.4% in fiscal 2021, The decrease
in our effective income tax rate in fiscal 2022 was driven by cerlain discrele tax benefits recognized in fiscal 2022,
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Diluted Eamnings per Share

Diluted earnings per share were $16.69 in fiscal 2022 compared to $15.53 in fiscal 2021, The increase in difuted
earnings per share for fiscal 2022 was primarily driven by higher net eamings during fiscal 2022, as weil as fower
diluted shares due to share repurchases,

To provide clarity on our operating performance, we supplement our reporting with certain non-GAAP financial
measures. However, this supplementa) information should not be considered in isolation or as a substityte for the
refated GAAP measures. Non-GAAF financial measures presenled herein may differ from similar measures used by
other companigs.

Retumn on Invested Capital

We Lelieve ROIC is meaningful far inveslors and management because it measures haw effectively we deploy our
capital base. We define ROIC as NOPAT, a non-GAAP financial measure, for the most recent twelve-month period,
divided by average debt and equity. We defire average debt and equity as the average of beginning and ending
long-term debt (including cumrent installments} and equity for the mast recent twelve-month period.

The following table presents the calculation of ROIC, together with a reconciliation of NOPAT o nel earnings (the
most comparable GAAP measure);

Fiseal Fiscal Fiscaf

dolers in miflions 2022 2021 2070
Nat samings $ 17105 § 16433 35 12866
Interest and other, net 1,562 1,303 1,300
Provision for Incoms taxes 5,372 5,304 4,112

Operating incoma 24,039 23,040 18,278
lncome tax adjustment | (5,745) {5,622) {4,423}

NOPAT $ 18,204 $ 17418 § 1 3,855
Average debt and equity $§ 41055 § 38846 § 33964
ROQIC 446 % 44,7 % 40.8 %

{1} fncome laxr agustimen s defined as operating income multiplied by our efective tay rats for the tralling twalve monifs,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At January 29, 2023, we had 32.8 billion in cash and cash equivalents, of which $825 millich was held by our
foreign subsidiaries. We believe that our current cash pasition, cash flow generated from aperations, funds available
from our commercial paper program, and access 1o the long-term debt capital markets should be sufficient not only
for our operating requirements, any requirad debt payments, and satisfaction of other contractual obligations, but
also to enable us te invest in the business, fund dividend payments, and fund any share repurchases through the
next several fiscal years. In addition, we believe we have the ability 1o obtain altemative sources of financing, if
necessary.

Our material cash requirements include contractual and other obligations arising in the normal course of business,
These sbligations primarily include {ong-terrn debt and relaled interest payments, operating and finance iease
obligations, and purchase obligations. In additior to our cash requiremenis, we foliow a disciplined approach to
capital allecation. This approach first prioritizes investing in the business, followed by paying dividends, with the
intent of then returning excess cash to shareholders in the farm of share repurchases. For fiscal 2023, we plan to
invest approximately $3 billion back inta our business in the form of capital expendilures, in line with our expectation
of approximately two percent of net sales on an annual basis. However, we may adjust our capital expenditures to
Support the operaticns of the business, o enhance long-term strategic positioning, or in respoense to the economic
enviroenment, as necessary or appropriate. Capital expenditures were $3.1 billion in fiscal 2022,
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During fiscal 2022, we paid cash dividends of $7.8 billion to shareholders. In February 2023, we announced a 10%
increase in our quarterly cash dividend from $71.90 to $2.09 per share. We intend to pay a dividend in the futura;
howaver, any future dividand is subject to declaration by the Board of Directors based on our EAMings, capita
requirements, financial condition, and other faclors considered relevant by our Beard of Directors.

In August 2022, aur Board of Directors approved a $15.0 billion share repurchase authorization that replaced the
previous authorization of $20.0 billion, which was approved in May 2021, This new authorization does not have 2
prescribed expiration date. As of January 28, 2023, approximately §12.5 billion of the $15.0 billion share repurchase
authorization remained available, During fiscal 2022, we had cash payments of $6.7 billion for repurchases of our
common stack through open market purchases.

I July 2022, we expanded our commercial paper pragram from $3.0 billion to $5.0 billion te further enhance our
financial flexibility. AH of our short-term corrowings in fiscal 2022 ware under our commercial paper program, and
the maximum amount outstanding at any time was $2.7 bifiion. In connection with our program, we have back-up
credit facilities with a2 consortium of banks. In July 2022, we also expanded the borrowing capacity under these
back-up facilities from $3.0 biflion to $5.0 billion by entering into a five-ysar $3.5 hillion credit facility scheduled to
expire in July 2027 and a 364-day $1.5 billion credit facility scheduled to expire in July 2023, These facilitiss
replaced our previcusly existing five-year $2.0 hillion credit facility. which was scheduled ta expire in December
2023, and our 364-day $1.0 billion credit facility, which was scheduled to expire in December 2022, At January 29,
2023, there were nc horawings outstanding under our commerciai paper program, and we were in compliance with
all of the covenants contained in our cradit faciliies, none of which are expected to impact our liquidity or capital
resources,

We also issue senior noles from time to time as parl of our capital management stralegy. In March 2022, we issued
$4.0 billion of senior notes. The net proceeds from this issuance were used for general corperate purposes,
inctuding repayment of outstanding indebtedness and repurchases of shares of our common stock. In September
2022, we issued an additional $3.0 billion of senior notes, The nel proceeds from this issuance were used for
general corporate purposes, including repurchases of shares of cur common stock. During fiscal 2022, we repaid
$2.25 billlon of senior notes. At January 28, 2023, we had an aggregate principal amount of senior noles
outstanding of $41.2 hillion, with $1.0 billion payable within 12 manths. Fulure inferest payments associated with
these senior notes total $24.9 billion, with $1.7 billion payable within 12 months, based on current interest rates,
which include the impact of our active interest rate swap agreements.

The indentures governing our seniar notes do not generally iimit our ability to incur additional indebtedness or
require us to maintain financial ratios or specified levels of net worth or kiquidify. The indentures governing the notes
contain various customary covenants; however, none are expecled to impact our liquidity or capital resources, See
Note 4 to our conselidated financial statements for further discussion of our debt arrangements.

We use operating and finance keases largely to fund a partion of our real estate, including our stores, distribution
centers, and store support centers. At January 29, 2023, we had 2ggregate lease cbligations of $14.7 biltion, with
$1.5 billion payable within 12 months. Aggregate lease obligations include $2.1 billion of obtigations related to
leases not yet commenced. See Note 3 to our cansolidated financial statements for {further discussion of our
operating and finance leases.

Purchase obligations include all legaily binding contracts such as firm commitments for inveniory purchases, media
and sponsorship spend, software and license commitments, and legally binding service contracts. We issue
inventory purchase orders in the ordinary course of business, which are typically cancellable by their terms,
therefore we do not consider purchase orders that are cancellable to be firm inventory commitments. At January 29,
2023, we had aggregate purchase cbligations of §1.8 billion, with $847 miliion payable within 12 monihs.

At January 29, 2023, we had aggregate iiabilities for unrecognized tax benefits totaling $643 million, none of which
are expected to be paid in the next 12 manths. The timing of payment, if any, associated with our long-term
unrecognized tax benefit iabilities is unknown. See Nole 5 to our consolidated financial statements for further
discussion of our unrecognized tax benefits.

We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements,
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Net cash provided by Net cash used in Net cash used in
operating activities invasting aclivilies financing activities
W Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021 Fiscaf 2020
Operating Activities

Cash flow generated from operations provides us with a significant source of liquidity. Our aperating cash fiows
result primarily from cash received from our custamers, offsel by cash payments we make for products and
services, associate cornpensation, operations, occupancy costs, and income taxes. Cash provided by or used in
operating activities is also subject to changes in working capital. Working capital at any point in time is subject to
many variables, including seasonality, invenlory management and category expansion, the timing of cash receipts
and payments, vendor payment terms, and fluctuations in foreign exchanga rates.

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $2.0 billion in fiscat 2022 compared to fiscal 2021, primarily
driven by changes in working capital, slightly offset by an increass in net earnings. Changes in working capital were
driven by inveniory management actions and the related timing of vender payments. These inventory managernent
actions, which began in fiscal 2021 and moderated during the second haif of fiscal 2022, reflect strafegic
fnvestments in inventory to support the demand environment, pramote higher in-stock levels, and pull forward
merchandise for seasonal events in response to global supply chain disruption, as weil as investments in our new
supply chain faciities.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activilies increased by 5171 millicn in fiscal 2022 compared to fiscal 2021, primarily resulting
from increased capital expenditures, partially offset by cash paid for an acquired business during fiscal 2021.

Financing Actlivities

Cash used In financing activilies in fiscal 2022 primarily refiected $7.8 billion of cash dividends paid, $6.7 billian of
share repurchases, $2.5 bilfion of repayments of long-ierm debt, and $1.0 billion of net repayments of shor-term
debt, partially offset by $6.9 billian of net praceeds from long-term debt.

Cash used in financing activities in fiscat 2021 primarily reflected $14.8 billion of share repurchases, $7.0 billion of
cash dividends paid, and $1.5 tillion of repayments of long-term debt, partiafly offset by $3.0 billion of nel proceeds
from long-term dabt and $1.0 hillion of nel proceeds from short-term debt. Fiscal 2021 reflected elevated share
repurchase aclivity following the temporary suspension of repurchases during fiscal 2020 in order to enhance our
liguidity position at the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of our consolidated financiai statements in accordance with GAAP requires that we make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reparied amaunts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assels and
liabilities, and the reporied amounts of ravenues and expenses. Actual results eould differ from those estimates.

Our signiffcant accounting policies are disclosed in Nots | to our consolidated financial statements. The following
discussion addresses cur mast critical accourting estimates, which are those that are both important to the
reprasentation of our financiaf condition and results of operations, and thal require significant judgment or use of
significant assumptions or complex estimales,

We value the majority of our inventory under the retail inventory methad, using the first=in, first-out method, with the
remainder of our inventories valued under a cost method. Under the retail inventary method, inventories are stated
at cost, which is determined by applying a cost-lo-retail ratio to the retait value of inventaries,

The retail value of our inventory is adjusied as needed to reflect current market conditions. Because these
adjustments are based on current prevailing market conditions, the value of our inventory approximates the lower of
cost or market. The valuation under the retaijl inventory method is based on a number of faciors such as markups,
markdewns, and inventory losses {or shrink). As such, there exists an inherent uncerlzinty in the final determination
of inventory cost and gross profit. We determine markups and markdewns based on the consideration of a variety of
factors such as current and anticipated demand, customer preferences and buying trends, age of the merchandise,
and weather conditions.

We calculate shrink based on actual inventery losses identified as a result of physical invenlory caunts during each
fiscal period and estimated inventary losses between physical inventory counts, The estimate for shrink accurming in
the interim period between physical inventory counts is calcuizted on 3 store-specific basis and is primarily based
an recent shrink results. A 10% increase in the shrink rate used to estimate aur invenlory shrink reserve would nave
increased cost of sales by approximately $113 million for fiscal 2022 Historically, the diference between estimated
shrink and actual inventory losses has not been material to our annual financial resuits.

We do not beligve there is a reascnable likelincod for & material change in the estimates or assumptions we use to
value our inventary under the ratail inventory method. We believe that the retail inventory method provides an
inventory valuation which approximates cost and résults in valuing our inventory at the lower of cost or market,

For information o our accounting policies and on accounting pronouncements that have impacted or are expected
to materially impact our financial condition, results of aperations, or cash flows, see Note 1 1o our consolidatad
financial siatements.

INTEREST RATE RISK

We have exposure to interest rate risk in connectian with our feng-term debt pertfolio. We use interest rate Swap
agreements to manage our fixedfeating-rate debt portfolto, nane of which are for trading or speculative purpcses.
At January 29, 2023, after giving consideration to our interest rate swap agreements, floating-rate debt principal was
$5.4 hillion, or approximately 13% of our sanior notes portfalio, Our interest rate Swap agreements were in an
aggregate liability position of $778 million at January 29, 2023, The changes in the fair values of our interest rate
swap agreements offset the changes in the fair value of the hedged long-term debt, Based on our January 29, 2023
fioating-rate debt principal, a one percentage point increase in the interest rate of floaling-rate debt would increase
our annual interest expense by approximalely $54 million.

The United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authority announced the phased cessation of publication of LIBOR
beginning after 2021 and continuing through 2023, While the discontinuance of LIECR tenars that are schedtled to
oceur in 2023 will impact our interest rate swaps, we do not anficipate the transition to a new refarence rate will
have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.
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Tabig of Conte

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE RISK

We are exposed to risks from foreign currency exchange rate fiuctuations on the translation of our foreign
operations into U.S. dollars and on the purchase of goods by these foreign operations that are not dencminated in
their local currencies. We use derivative instrurnents to hedge a portion of cur foreign currency exchange rafe risk,
none of which are for trading or speculative purposes. Our foreign currency related herdging arrangements
outstanding at the end of fiseal 2022 were not material.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

We experience inflalion and dsflation ralated to our purchase of certain commaodity products. This price volatility
could potentiafly have a material impact on our financial condition and/or our results of operations. In order fo
mitigate price volatility, we manitor commodity price fluctuations and may adjust cur selfing prices accordingly:
however, our abilily to recover higher costs through increased pricing may be limited by the competitive environment
in which we operate. We currently do not use derivative instruments to manage these risks.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACGCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors
The Home Depot, Inc.:

Opinion on the Consoiidated Financiai Statements

Wa have audited the accompanying consolidated bakance sheets of The Home Depot, Inc. and subsidiaries {the
Company) as of January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022, the related consclidated statements of eamings,
comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for sach of the fiscal years in the three-year period
ended January 29, 2023, and the related notes {collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinian,
the consolidated financial siatements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as
of January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the fiscal
vears in the three-year pericd ended January 29, 2023, in conformity with .S, generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States} (PCAOB), the Company's inlernal control over financial reporting as of January 24, 2023, hased on criteria
established in Infernal Controi — intaegrated Framework {2013) issued by the Commitiee of Sponsaring
Organizations of the Treadway Gommission, and our report dated March 15, 2023 expressed an unqualified apinion
on the effectiveness cf the Company's internal controf over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These consalidated financial statements are the respansibility of the Company's management. Qur resporsibility is
t¢ express an opinion on these consalidated financial statsments based on our audits, We are a public accounting
firm registered with the PCAOB and are required 1o be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with
the U.5. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We genducted our audits in accordarce with the standards of the PCAOB, Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the consalidaied financial stalements are free
of matertal misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures (o assess the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to errer or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such pracedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audils alse included evaiualing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that aur audits provide a reasonable basis for our
apinion,

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is & matter arising frem the current period audit of the consolidated
financiaf statements thal was communicated or required io be communicated to the audit committee and that: {1)
relates ip accounts or disclosures that are malerial to the consalidated financial statements and (2} involved our
especially challenging, subjective, ar complex judgments. The communication of a critical audit matier does ngt alter
In any way our opinion on the consclidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the crilical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures ta which it relates,

Estimation of stare shrink

As discussed In Note 1 10 the consolidated financial slatements, the majority of the Company’s U.S. merchandise
inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first out) or market as determined by the retail inventory
method, which is based on a number of factors such as markups, markdewns, and inventory losses (or shrink}.
Shrink is the difference between the recorded amount of inventery and the physical inventory count. The
Company calculates shrink based on actuai frventory losses identified as a resuil of physical inventory counts
during each fiscal period and estimated inventory lasses between physical inventary counts. The estimalte for
shrink occurring in the interim period between physical inventory counts is calculated on a store-specific basis
and is primarily based on recent shrink results.

We idenlified the evaluation of the estimation of store shrink occurring in the period between physical inventory
counts and fiscal year-end as a critical audit matter. Evaluating the Company's estimation of shrirk at the end of
the fiscal year using interim inventery loss experience in U.S. retail stores involved auditor judgment.
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The foliowing are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the
design and tested the operating effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the process of developing the
estimate of store shrink. We evaluated the appropriateness of the Company using interim physical inventory
counts to estimate inventory losses in U.S. retail stores at the end of the fiscal year by:

« Evaluating the method and certain assumpfions used;

*  Testing the application of the methad and certain assumptions used:
- Peiforming a current year frend analysis; and

* FPerforming a sensitivity analysis over the shrink resenve estimats.

is{ KPMG LLP

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1979,
Atlarta, Gecrgia

March 15, 2023
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THE HOME DEPOT, ING.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in miilons, except per share data
Assets
Currenl assats:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Merchandise invantories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Nat property and equipment
Operafing lease right-of-use asseis
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Shart-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and related sxpenses

Sales taxes payable

Defared revenue

Income faxes payable

Current instaliments of long-term debt

Current operating lease kabilities

Other accrued axpensas

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, excluding current instaliments
Long-lerm operating Iease liabifities
Defened income taxes
Other leng-term liabilities
Toial liabilities

Commitments and contingencies {Note 11)

Common stock, par value $0.05; authorized: 10,000 shares; issued: 1,794 shares
at January 29, 2023 and 1,792 shares at January 30, 2022; outstanding: 1,016

shares at .January 29, 2023 and 1,035 shares at January 30, 2022
Paid-in capital
Retained eamings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock, at cost, 778 shares at January 29, 2023 and 757 shares et
January 30, 2022

Total stackholders’ equity (deficit)
Tolal liabilities and stockhalders' equity

See accompenying notes fo consolidaled financial slatermants.
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January 23, Januwary 30,
2023 2022

$ 2757 § 2,343

3,317 3,426
24,885 22,088
1,511 1,218
32 4771 29,055
25,631 35,199
6,941 5,958
7,444 7,449
3,958 4,205
§ 76445 § 71,878
5 — § 1,035
11,443 13,462
1,991 2,426
528 848
3,064 3,596
50 158
1,231 2.447
945 830
3,858 3,891
23,110 28,693
41,962 36,604
6226 5,353
1,019 809
2,566 2,013
74,883 73,572
%0 80
12,592 12,132
76,896 67,580
(718) (704)
{87,298 (80,794)
1,562 (1,698)
$ 76445 § 71,876
|




THE HOME DEPOT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Flscal Flzcal Fiscal
in millicns, excep! per share dats 2022 201 2020
Net sales ¥ 157403 3 151,157 § 132,110
Cost of sales 104,625 100,325 87,257
(Gross profit h2,778 50,832 44 853
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 26,284 25406 24,447
Depreciation and amortization 2,455 2,366 2,128
Total cperating expenses 28,739 27,792 26,575
Operating income 24,039 23,040 18,278
Interest and other {income) expense:
Interest income and other, net (65) (44) 47}
Interest expense 1,617 1,347 1,347
Interest and other, net 1,562 1,303 1,300
Earnings befora provision for income taxes 22477 21,737 16,978
Provision for income taxas 5372 5,304 4,112
Mat samings $ 17105 § 16433 § 12,866
Basic weighted averaga common shares 1,022 1,054 1.074
Basic eamings per share 3 16.74 & 15.5¢ § 11.98
Diluted weighted average commoen shares 1.025 1,058 1,078
Diluted earnings per share 3 1662 § 1h53 % 11.84

See accompanying noles fo consolidated francial Statements.




THE HOME DEPOT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Flacal Flgcal Fiscal

in miitions 2022 2021 2020
Net eamings 3 17,105 % 16433 § 12,866

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Foreign currancy translation adjustments {22} (77) €0
Cash flow hedges 9 9 8
Other {1) 35 —
Total other comprehensive (lass) income, net of tax {14} (33) 68
Comprehensive income $ 17,001 5 18,400 § 12,934

Ses accomperying noles lo consafidated fnancial slatamerys.

i .
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THE HOME DEPOT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

i miflions

Common Stock:

Balance at beginning of year

Shares issued under employes stock plans, net
Balance at end of year

Paid-n Capital:
Balance at beginning of year
Shares [ssued under employee stock plans, net
Slock-based compensation expense
Balance at end of year

Retainad Earmings;
Balance at beginning of year
Net earnings
Cash dividends
Other

Balance at end of year

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Balance at beginning of year
Foreign currency franslation adjustments, net of tax
Cash flow hedges, net of tax
Other, net of tax

Balance at end of ysar

Treasury Stock:
Balance at beginning of year
Repurchases of common stock
Balance at end of year
Total slockholders’ equity (deficit)

See sccompantying rotes (o consolidaied fnancial slatsmants
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Fizeal Fiscal Fiscal

2022 2021 2020

$ 90 5 B9 § 89
— 4 —

a0 50 88

12,132 11,540 11,001

94 194 229

366 398 310

12,592 12,132 11,540

87,580 58,134 51,729

17,105 16,433 12,866
{7,789} {6.985) {6.451)
= {<) {10)

76,896 67,580 58,134
(704) {671) (739)

(22) (77) 50

9 g B

(1) 35 —
{718} {704) (671)
(80,794) (65.793) (65,198
(6,504) (15,001) (597)
(87,298} (80,794) {65.793)

$ 1562 & {1686} & 3,299




THE HOME DEPOT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

i mittions
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net eamings
Recondiliation of net earings to net cash Provided by operating
aclivitias:
Depreciation and amartization
Stock-based compensation expense
Changes in receivables, ret
(-hanges in merchandise inventaries
Changes in other cumrent assets
Changes in accounts payabie and accrued ceXpenses
Changes in deferred revenue
Changes in income taxes payable
Changes in deferred income taxes
Other operaling activities
Net cash provided by operating aclivities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Paymenis for businesses acquired, net
Other investing activities

Net cash used in investing aclivities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
{Repayments of) praceeds from shart-term debt, net
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of discounts
Repayments of long-term dabt
Repurchases of common stock
Proceeds from sales of common siock
Cash dividends
Other financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supgplemental Disclosures:

Cash paid for income taxes

Cash paid for interest, net of interest capitalized
Nen-cash capital expendituras

Sea accompanying nolss fo consoiidaisd financial Statemenis.
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Fiscal Fiseal Flseal
2022 2021 2020
% 17,105 § 16,433 § 12,866
2,975 2,862 2,519
366 399 310
111 (435) (465)
{2.830) (5,403) {1,657)
{311) {330) 43
(2,577) 2,401 5.118
(526) 775 702
{107) (51) (149}
138 {276) (585)
271 196 121
14,615 16,571 18,839
(3,119) (2,566) (2,463)
o (421) (7.780)
{21) 18 73
{3,140) {2,968) {10,170)
{1,035) 1,035 (874)
6,942 2,978 7,933
(2.491) (1,532) {2,872)
(6,696) (14,809) (7an)
264 337 326
(7,789) {6,985) (6,451)
{188) {145 {154)
(10,893} {19,120) {2.883)
482 (5.518) 5,686
(€8) (34) 76
2,343 7,895 2,133
3 2757 8 2343 3 7,895
3 5435 § 5504 3 4,654
1.449 1.269 1,241
351 431 274
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THE HOME DEPOT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business

The Home Depal, Inc., together with its subsidiaries (the “Company,” “Home Depot,” ‘we,” “our” or “us™), is a hame
improvemeant retailer that sells a wide assortment of building materials, home impravernent products, lawn and
garden products, décar items, and faciiities maintenance, repair and operations products, in slores and online. We
aiso provide a number of services, including home improvement installation services and tool and equipment rental.
We operate in the L.5. (including the Commonwaalth of Puerte Rico and the terriories of the U.S. Virgin Islands
and Guam), Canada, and Mexico.

Consolidation and Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements inciude our accounls and those of our wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Cur fiscal year is a 52- or 53-week pariod
ending on the Sunday nearest to January 31*, All periods presented include 52 weeks.

Use of Estimates

We have made a number of estimales and assumptians relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reparted amounts of revenues and expenses in preparing these
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. While we belisve these estimates and assumplions are reasonable,
actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities
of three months or less.

Receivables, net
The following table presents components of receivabies, nat:

) . J:nunr; 28, January 30,
in millfons 202 1022
Card receivables ] 1,008 § 1,028
Rebate receivables 948 1,170
Customer receivables 871 703
Other receivables 495 525
Recsivables, net 3 337 8 3,426

Card receivables consist of payments due from financial institutions for the settiement of credit card and debit card
transactions. Rebale receivables represent amounts due from vendors for volume and co-0p advertising rebates.
Customer receivables relate ta credit extended directly to certain customers in the ordinary course of business. The
valuaticn allowance refated to these receivables was nat material lo our consolidated financial stalements at the
end of fiscal 2022 or fiscal 2021

Merchandise Inventories

Inventory cost includes the amount we pay lo acquire inventory, including freight and import costs, as well as
operating costs and depreciation associated with our sourcing and distribution network, and is net of certain vendor
aflowances. The majority ¢f our merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost {first«in, first-out) ar markat,
as determined Dy the retail inventery method, which is based on a number of factors such as markups, markdowns,
and inventery losses (or shrink). As the inventory retail value is adjusted regularly to reflect market conditions,
inventory valued using the retail method approximates the lower of cost or market, Certain subsidiaries, including
retail operations in Canada and Mexico, and distribution centers, record merchandise inventories at the lower of
cost or net realizable value, as determined by a cost method. These merchandise inventories represent
approximately 42% of the total merchandise inventories balance. We evaluate the inventory valued using a cost
method at the end of each quarter to ensure thal it is carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value, and the
adjustments recorded to merchandise inventaries valued under a cost method were not material to our consolidated
financial statements at the end of fiscal 2022 or fiszal 2021.
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Physical inventory counts or Cycle counts are taken on a reqular basis in each store and distribution center to
ensure that amounts reflecied in merchandise inventories are properly stated. Shrink {ar in the case of excess
inventory, swell) is the differance betwaen the recorded amount of inventory and the physical inveniory count. We
calculate shrink based on actual inventory losses identified as a resuk of physical inveniory counts during each
fiscal period and estimatad inventory lusses between physical inventory counts. The estimate for shrink occurring in
the inferim period between physical inventory counts is calculated on a store-specific basis and is primarily based
an recent shrink results. Historically, the difference between estimated shrink and actual inventory losses has not
baen material to our annual financiai results,

Property and Equipment

Buildings and relzated impravements, furniture, fixtures, and equipment are recorded al cost and deprecialed using
the straighi-line method over their estimated useful lives. |.easehold improvements and assets held under finance
leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the original term of the lease or the usefu! lifa of the asset,
whichever is sharter.

The following table presenis the estimated usedful lives of our property and equipment;
Lie

e —————y.
Buildings and improvements 5—45 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipiment Z2—20 years
Leasehold improvements 5—45 years

We capitalize certain costs, including interest, related to construction in progress and the acquisition and
development of software. Costs assaciated with the acquisition and development of software are amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the softwars, which ranges from three to SBvEN yoars,
Certain development costs nat meeling the criteria for capitalization are expensead as incurred.

We evaluate our long-lived assets each quarter for indicators of potentia impairment, Indicators of impairment
include cument perind losses combined with a histary of losses, our decision to relocate or close a store or gther
location befare the end of its previously estimated useful life, or when changes in olher circumsiances indicate the
carrying amount of an assef may not be fecoverable. The evaluation for long-lived assels is performed at the lowest
level of identifiable cash flaws, which is generally the individual store level. The assets of a store with indicators of
Impairment are evaluated for recoverability by comparing their undiscounted future cash flows with their camying
value. if the camying value is greater than the undiscounted future cash flows, we then measure the asset group's
fair value to determine whether an impairment foss should be recagnized. If the resulting fair value is less than the
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the carrying value and the estimated fair
value, Impairment losses an property and equipment are recorded as a component of SG&A, Impairment charges
for long-lived assets were not materiat 1o our consclidated financial statements in fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, or fiscal
2020,

Leases

We anter into contraciual arrangements for the utilization of certain non-owned assets which are evaluated as
finance or operating leases upon cormmencement, and are accounted for accordingly. Specifically, a contract is or
contains a lease when (1) the contract contains an explicitly or implicitty identified assel and {2) we oblain
substantially al! of the aconomic benefits frorn the use of that underying asset and direct how and for what purpose
the asset is used during the term of the contract in exchange for cansideration. We assess whether an arrangement
is or conlains a lease at inception of the contract,

Qur leases include certain retail locations, warehouse and distribution Space, office space, equipment, and vehicles.
A substantial majority of our leases have remaining lease terms of ane 1o 20 years. Cur real estale leases typicaly
provide the option to extend the ease for five-year terms, and scme of our leases may include the aplicn to
terminate in iess than five years, The lease term used to calculate the right-of-use asset and |ease liability at
commencement includes the impacts of options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably cartain that
we will exercise that option, When determining whether it is reasonably certain that we will exercise an option at
commencement, we consider various existing economic factors, including market conditions, real estatg strategies,
the nature, fength, and terms of the agreement, as well as the unceriainty of the zonditian of leased equipmant at
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The discourit rate used to calculate the present value of lease payments is the rate implicit in the lease, when
readily determinabie. As the rate implicit in the lease is rarely readily determinable, we use a secured incremental
borrowing rate, which is updated on a quarlerly basis, as the discount rate for tha presant value of lease payments,

Real estate taxes, insurance, maintenance, and operating expenses applicable 1o the leased asset are generally
our abligations under our lease agreements. In instaricas where these paymenis are fixed, they are included in the
measurement of our lease liabilities, and when variable, are excludad and recogrized in the pericd in which the
obligation for those payments is incumed. Certain of our lease agreements also incfude rental paymenis based on
an index or rate and others include rental payments based on a percentage of sales. For variable payments
dependent upon an index ar rate, we apply the active index ar rate as of the lease commencement date. Variable
tease paymenlts not based on an index or rate are net included in the measurerment of our lease liabillies as they
cannot be reasonably estimated, and are recognized in the period in which the abligaticn for those payments is
incurmed.

Leases that have a term of twalve months or less upan commencement are considered short-term in nature. Short-
term leases are not included on the consalidated balance sheets and are expensed on a straighldine basis over the
igase lerm. We have alsc elected to not separate lease and non-Jease components for cerlain classes of assels
including real estate and ceriain equipment.

Our Iease agreements do not contain any material residual vaiue guarantees ar material restriclive covenants,
Business Combinations

The assets and liabiiities of acquired businesses are recorded at their fair values al the date of acquisition. The
excess of the purchase price over the fair values of the identifiable assels acquired and liabilities assumed is
recarded as goodwil. During the measurement period, which is up to one year from the acquisition date, we may
record adjustments to the assets acquired and lizbilities assumed with the torresponding offset to goodwikl. Upon
canclusion of the measurement period, any subsequent adjustments are recorded 1o eamings.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over ihe fair value of net assets acquired. We do not amortize
goodwill, but assess the recoveratility of gogdwill in the third quarter of each fiscal year, or more oflen If indicators
warrant, by determining whether the fair value of each reporting unit supports its carmying value. Each fiscal year, we
ray assess qualitative faclors to determing wheker it is more likely than not that the fair vaiue of each reporting
unit is less than its camying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to complete quantitative
impairment assessments, with a quantitative assessment completed as facts and circumstances warrant. We
completed our last guantitative assessment in fiscal 2019 and conciuded that the fair value of our reporting units
substantially exceeded their respective carrying values, including goadwill.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2022, we completed our annual assessment of the recoverability of goodwill for aur
U.3., Canada, and Mexico reparting units based on qualitative factors. We performed a qualitative assessment 1o
determine if there were any indicators of impairment and concluded that while there have been evenis and
circumstances in the macro-environment that have impacled us, we have not experienced any entity-specific
indicators that wouid indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of any of our reporting unils were lass
than their carrying amounts. There wera no impairment charges related to goodwill for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021 , or
fiscal 2020,

The foliowing 1able presents the changes in the carrying amount of aur goodwill:

Flscal Fiscal
in millfens mz22 2021

Goodwil, balance at beginning of year $ 7449 § 7126

Acquisitions " - 323

Other'® (5) —

Goodwill, baiance at end of year 3 7444 % 7,448
{1} Represents gaodwill from a smail astuisition compielad during the second quarter of Fiscal 2021

(2] Reflects ihe net impact of foreign currency transfation
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Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are included in ather assats on the consolidated balance sheets. We amortize
the cost of definite-lived inlangible assets on a straight-line basis over their estimaled usefu lives, which range up to
20 years, as this approximates the pattern of expected economic benafit, Intangible assets with indefinite lives are
tested in the third quarter of each fiscaf year for impairment, or more often if indicators warrant. During the third
Quarter of fiscal 2022, we completed our annual assessmant of the recoverability of our indefinite-ived intangible
assels based on quantitetive factors and concluded no impairment losses should be recognized. There were no
impairment losses related to intangible assets for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020,

The following table presents information regarding our iniangible assets:

January 28, 2023 January 30, 2022
Gross Grogs
fir millfons iﬂ?&:’f ﬁ:mgﬂ;: Nlﬁﬁ:ﬁ:ing m:? ﬁﬂm "mﬁing
Definite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Customer relationships B 3034 5 (495) § 2539 % 3034 § (326} 8 2,708
Trade narnes 151 {186) 135 151 (8} 143
Other 12 (12} = 12 {9) 3
indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Trade names 649 649 §49 648
Total Intangible Assets T 3846 % (523) 8 3322 £ 3848 § {343} $ 3,503

Qur intangible asset amortization expense was immaterial for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020.

The following table presenis the estimated fuiure amortization expense related 1o definite-ived intangible assets as
of January 29, 2023;

Amortizatlon

In mitifens Expenss
Fiscal 2023 ] 178
Fiscal 2024 178
Fiscal 2025 178
Fiscal 2026 178
Fiscal 2027 167
Thereafter 1,795

Total § 2,674

Debt

Wa record any premiums or discounts associated with an issuance of long-term debt as a direct addition or
deduction ta the carrying value of the related senior notes. Wa alsa record debt issuance costs associated with an
tssuance of long-term debt as a direct deduction 1o the carrying value of the refaled senior nates. Premium,
discount, and debt issvance costs are amortized over the term of the respective nolas using the sffective inlerest
rate methad,

Derivative Instrurments ang Hedging Activitles

We use derivalive instruments in the management of aur inferest rate exposure or long-term debt and our exposure
ta foreign currency fluctuations. We enter into derivative instruments for risk management purposes only; we do not
enter info derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. All derivative instruments are recognized at
their fair values in either assets or fiabilities al the balance sheet date and are classified as eilher current or nor-
current based on each contract’s respective maturity. While we enter into masler netting arrangements, our palicy is
fo present the fair value of derivative instruments on a gross basis in our consolidated balance sheets.

Changes in the fair values for derivative instruments designaled as cash flow ar net investment hedges are
recognized in accumulated cther comprehensive income (loss) until the hedged iterm is recognized in famings,
which for net investment hedges is upon sale or substantial liquidation of the underlying net investment, Changes in
fair value of outstanding fair value hedges and the offseiting changes in fair values of the hedged itam are
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recognized in earnings. We record realized gains and losses from derivative instruments in the same financial
statement Iine itern as the hedged item.

Cerivative instruments thal are not designated as hedges, if any, are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains or
iosses reparled in eamings each periad in the same financial staterment line item as the hedged iten. Cash flows
from the setliement of derivalive instruments appear in the consclidated slaiements of cash fows in the same
categories as the cash flows of the hedged item.

Self-Insurance Reserves

We are szlif-insured for certain josses related o general liability (including product liability), workers' compensation,
employee group medical, and automobile claims. We recognize the expecied vitimate cost for claims incurred
(undiscounted) at the balance sheet datz 25 g fiability. The expected ultimate cost for claims incurred is estimated
based upon analysis of historical data and actuarial estimates. Our selfSnsurance Mabifities, which are included in
accrued salaries and related expenses, other actrued expensas and other leng-term liabllities in the consolidated
balance sheets, were §1.3 biilian at both January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022.

We also maintain network security and privacy liability insUrance coverage to limif our exposure 1o losses such as
those that may be caused by a significant compromise or breach of our data security.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is reflected as a reduction of stockholders’ equity at cost. We use the weighled average purchase
cast to determine the cost of treasury stock that is reissued, if any.

Met Szles

We recognize revenue, net of expected refums and sales 1ax, al the fime the customer takes possession of
merchandise or when a service is performed. Qur liability for sales retumns is estimated based on historical retum
levels and our expectation of future returns, We also recognize a relum asset, and comresponding adjustment to
cost of sales, for our right to recaver the goods returmed by the custormer, measured at the former carrying amount
of the gocds, less any expected recovery cost. At each financial reporting date, we assess our estimates of
expected retums, refund liabilities, and ratum assets, Adjusiments related to changes in relurn estimates were
immaterial in fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020.

Services revenue is generated through a variety of instalfation, home maintenance, and professional service
programs. in these programs, the customer selecis and purchases material for a project, and we pravide or arrange
for professicnal instaliation. These programs are offered through our stores, online, and in-home sales programs.
Under certain programs, when we provide or arrange for the installation of a project and the subcontracter provides
material as part of the instaltation, both the materfal and labor are included in services revenue. We recognize
services revenue when the service for the customer is complete, which is not materially different from racognizing
the revenue over the service period as the substantial majority of our services are completed within ane week.

Fer products and services sold in stores or gnline, payment is typically due at the point of sale. When we receive
payment from customers belore the customer has taken possessicn of the merchandise or the service has beer
performed, the amount received is recorded as deferred revenue until the sale or service is complete. Such
performance obligations are part of contracts with expected original durations of typically three months or less. As of
January 28, 2023 and January 30, 2022, deferred revenue for products and services was $2.0 biilion and $2.6
billion, respactively.

We further record deferred revenue for the sale of gift cards and recognize the associaled revenue upan the
redemption of those gift cards, which generally occurs within six months of gift card issuance. As of January 29,
2023 and January 30, 2022, our performance obligations for unredsemed gift cards were $1.1 biflicn and $1.0
bitlion, respectively. Gift card breakage income, which is our estimate of the portion of our gift card balance not
expected 1o be redeemed, is recognized in net sales and was immaterial in fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020.

We also have agreements with third-party service providers who directly extend cradit to cusiomers, manage our
PLCC program, and own the related receivables. We have evaiuated the third~party entitfes holding the receivables
under the pregram and conclitded that they should riot be consolidated. The agreement with the primary third-party
service provider for our PLCC program expires in 2028, with us having the option, but no obligation, to purchase the
existing recsivables al the end of the agreement. Deferred interest charges incurred for our deferred financing
programs offered to these customers, interchange fees charged to us for their use of the cards, and any profit
sharing with the third-party service providers are included in net sales.
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Cast of Sales

Cost of sales inciudes the aciual cost of merchandise scld and services performed; the cost of ransportation of
merchzndise from vendors to our distribution network, stores, or customers; shipping and handling costs from our
stores or distribution network to customers; and the operating cost and depreciation of cur sourcing and distribution
network. Vender allowances that are not reimbursements of specific, incremental, and identifiable costs are alsg
included within cast of sales,

Vandor Allowances

Vendor allowances primarily consist of volume rebates that are eamed as a result of attaining certain purchase
levels and co-op advertising allowances for the pramotion of vendaors' products that are typically based on
guarantesd minimum amounts with addiffional amaunts being eamed for attaining certain purchase levals. Thesg
vendor allowances are accrued as eamed, with those allowances received as a result of attaining certain purchase
levels accrued over the incentive period based on estimates of purchases. Volume rebates and certaln co-op
advertising allowances reduce the camying cost of inventary and are recognized in cost of sales when the related
inventary is sold.

Selling, General and Administrative

Seliing, general and administrative expenses include compensation and benefits for retall and store support center
associales, occupancy and operating costs of refail locations and stare support centers, insurance-relaled
expenses, advertising costs, credit and debit card processing fees, and other administrative costs.

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs, including digital, television, radio and prnt, are expensed when the advertisement first appears.
Certain co-op advertising allowances that are reimbursements of specific, incremental, and identifiable costs
incurred to gremote vendors' products are recorded as an offset against advertising expense.

The following table presents net advertising expense included in SG&A:

Fiscal Flacal Fiacal
in mitilons 2023 2021 2020
Net adveriising expense $ 1,085 3§ 1048 3 909

Stock-Based Compensation

We are currentiy authorized to issue incentive and nonqualified stock options, slock appraciation rights, restricted
stock, restricled stock units, performance shares, performance units, and deferred shares to certain of our
associates and non-employee directors under certain stock incentive plans. We measure and recognize
compensation expense for all stock-based payment awards made to associates and non-employee direciors based
on estimated fair values. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expacted 1o vest is recognized as
stock-based compensation expense, on a straight-line basis, aver the requisite service period or as restrictions
lapse. We include estimated forfeitures expected to occur when calculating stock-based compensation expense.
Additianal information on our stock-based payment awards is included in Nole 8.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. We pravide for federal, state, and foreign
income taxes currently payable, as well as for those deferred due to timing differences between reporing income
and expenses for financial statement purposes versus tax purposes. Deferred 1ax assats and Labilitiss are
recognized for the fulure tax conseguencas attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amouris of existing assets and labilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax asssts and liabilities
are measured using enacled income tax rales expacied to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be racovered or settled. The effect of a change in income tax rales is
recognized as income or expense in fhe period that includes the enactment date. We routinely evaluate the
likelihood of realizing the benefit of our deferred iax assets and may record a valuation allowancs i, based on all
avaifable evidence, we determine that it is more likely than not that some portion of the tax benefit will not be
realized.

We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those pasitions are more likely than not of baing sustained.
Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of heing
realized. Changas in recognition or measurament ate reflected in the period in which the change in judgment
oUcurs,
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We flle a consolidated LS. federal income tax return which includes certain eligible subsidiaries. Non-Li.S.
subsidiaries and certain U.S. subsidiaries, which are consolidated for financial reporting purposes. are not eligible to
be included in our consolidated U.S. federal income tax return. Separate provisions for income taxes have heen
determined for these entilies. For unremitted earmings of our non-U.S. subsidiaries, we are required to make an
assertion regarding reinvesiment or repatriation for tax purposes. For any eamings that we do not make a
permanent reinvestment assertion, we recognize a provision for deferred income taxes. For eamings where we
have made a permanent reinvestment asserlion no pravision is recognized. See Nola 5 for further discussion.

We recognize interest and penalties reiated 1o income tax matters in interest expense and SG&A, respectively, on
our consclidated statements of earnings. Accrued interest and penalties related to income tax matters are
recegnized in other accrusd expenses and ather iong-lerm liabilities on our consolidated balancs sheets.

We are subject to global intangible low-taxed income {"GILTF) tax, an incremental tax on foreign income. We have
made an accounting election 1o record this tax in the period the tax arises.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive incame indudes net garings adjusted for cerlain gains and losses thal are excluded from net
eamings and recognized within accumulaled other comprehensive loss as a component of equity, which consist
primerily of foreign currency translation adjustments. Accumulated other comprehensive loss also includes nat
losses on cash flow hedges that were immaterial as of January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022. Reclassifications
from accumulated other comprehensive loss into earnings were immaterial in fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal
2020,

Foreign Currency Translation

Assels and liabllities denominated in a foreign currency are translated into LS. dollars at the current rate of
exchange on the jast day of the reporting period. Revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange
rates for the period and equity transactions are transiated using the actuai rate on the day of the transaction.
Cumulative foreign currency transfation adjustments recorded in accumulsted other comprehensive loss as of
January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022 were losses of $597 million and $575 miflion, respectively.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

ASU No. 2621-19. In November 2021 » the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-1 0, “Governmant Assistance {Topic 832)" to
improve the transparency of govemment assistance received by business entites that are accounted far by
applying either the Intemational Accounting Standards 20 grant model or Accounting Standards Codification
958-605 contribution model by analogy. Topic 832 requires disclosure of the nature of the transactions and the
related accounting policy used, the fine items an the balance sheet and income statement that are affected and the
amounts applicable to each financial statement line item, and significant terms of the fransactions. Cn January 31,
2022, we adopted ASU No. 2021-10 with no impact to our financial statements or related disciosures as the
transactions in scope of this guidance were immaterial.

Rezently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

ASU No. 2022-04. in September 2022, the FASE issued ASU No. 2022-04, “Liabllities—Supplier Finance Programs
(Tepic 405-50) - Disclosure of Supplier Finance Frogram QObligations,” to enhancs the transparency of supplier
finance programs used by an entity in connection with the purchase of goods and services. The standard requires
entities that use supplier finance programs lo disclose the key terms, including & description of payment terms, the
confirmed amount outstanding under the program at the end of each reporting period, a description of where thase
chligations are presented on the bajanca shest, and an annual roliforward, including the amount of obligations
confirmed and the amount paid during the period. The guidance does not affect the recognition, measurement, or
financial statement presentation of obligations covered by supplier finance programs. ASU No. 2022-04 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after Decembar 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiseat years, excepl far the
requirement cn rollforward information, which is effactive for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, Early
adoption is permited. We are cumentiy evaluating the impact of the standard on our conselidated financial
statement disclosures,

ASU No. 2020-04, In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848):
Facilitation of the Effects of Referance Rate Reform an Finangial Reporting,” which provides practical expedients
and exceptions for applying GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships, and other transactions affected by reference
rate reform i certain criteria are metl. The expedients and exceptions provided by the amendments in this updale
apply only lo contraets, hedging relationships, and other transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference
rate expected io be discontinued as a result of reference rate reform. ASU No. 2020-04 is effective as of March 12,
W
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2020 and may be applied o contract modifications and hedging relationships from the beginning of an interirm
period that includes or is subsequent to March 12, 2020. This guidance was subsequently amended by ASU No,
2022-06, "Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset Dale of Topic 848,” which was effective Lpon
issuance in December 2022 and extended fhe temporary relief provided by Topic 848 through December 31, 2024,
While the discontinuance of LIBOR will impact our interest rate swap agreements, we do nol anticipate the transition
to a new reference rate and adoption of this standard will have a material impact on our consolidated financiai
condition, resuits of operations, or cash flows,

Recent accounting pronouncements adopted or pending adoption not discussed above are either not applicable or
are not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition, results of uperstions, or cash
flows,

We curmently conduct our retait operations in the U.S., Canada, and Mexico, each of which represents ane of aur
three operating segments. Cur operaling segments reflect the way in which internally-reported financial information
is regularly reviewed by our chief aperating decision maker to analyze performance, make decisions and allogate
resources. For disciosure purposes, we aggregate these three operating segments into one reporiable segment due
to the similar nature of their operations and economic characteristics,

The following table presents net property and equipment, classified by geography:

January 29, January 3, January 31,
2055 20 A

in miflions 2021

Net property and equipment - in the U.S. $ 23057 § 22696 & 22205

Net property and equipment - outside the LS. 2,574 2,503 2,500
Net property and equipment $ 25631 § _25193 § 24705

No sales to an individual customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue during any of the last three fiscal years,
The following lable presents net sates, classifieg by geography:

Fiseal Fiscal Fiscal

irr mjifions 2022 2021 2020
Net sales — in the U.S. § 144840 § 138920 3 122,158
Net sales — outside the U.S. 12,563 12,237 8.952
Net sales $ 157403 § 151,157 3§ 132,110

The following table presents net sales by products and servigas:

Fiscal Fiscal Flscal

in millions 2022 2021 2020
Net sales — products % 151,804 § 145745 §  1278M
Met sales - sarvices 5,589 5412 4,435
Net sgles $ 157,403 § 151,157 % 132,110

The following table presants Major product lines and the ralated merchandising departments (and related services)

Major Praduet Line Me:rchandising Dapartments

Building Materials Buiiding Materials, EleciricaliLighting, Lumber, Miliwark, and Plumbing
Deécor Appliances, Décor/Storags, Flooring, Kitchen and Bath, and Paint
Hardlines Hardware, indoor Garden, Outdeor Gardsn, and Tools
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The following table presents net sales by major product line (and related services):

Fiscal Fiscal Fi=cal

i miifions 2022 2021 2020
Building Materials $ 59533 § 54990 3 46521
Décor 52,322 80,437 43,415
Hardlines 45,548 48,730 42,174
Net sales $ 157403 5 151157 g 132410

The following table presents net sales by merchandising department {and related services):

Fiscal Flscal Fiscal
2022 2021 2020
doflars in miliions S:allaets Hsfsnaflas 51:1.:5 Nez‘sgflas SP:I.:S nu%sz:n
Appiiances $ 14461 92% § 14,232 94% $ 11,865 9.0%
Buiiding Materizls 11,298 7.2 92823 6.5 8,656 66
Décor/Storage 6,357 4.0 8,095 4.0 4,959 3B
ElectricaHLighting 13,746 87 13,473 8.9 11,178 8.5
Flooring 8,222 b3 8225 6.1 8,156 6.2
Hardware 8,104 51 7.873 52 7.312 5.4
Indoor Garden 14,990 8.5 15,546 103 14,649 11.1
Kitchen and Bath 11,102 71 10,432 8.5 B 383 6.3
Lumber 13,460 8.6 13344 2.8 11,309 8.6
Miflwork 8423 5.4 7412 449 6,460 49
Qutdoor Garden 10,078 6.4 10,317 6.8 9,602 7.3
Paint 11,180 7.1 10,453 6.9 10,052 7.8
Plumbing 12,606 a.0 10,938 7.2 8,918 5.8
Tools 12,376 7.9 11,994 7.9 10,611 8.0
Total § 157,403 100.0 % § 151,157 1000 % § 132,110 100.0 %

Mote: Certan parceniages may net sum io lofals dus to rounding,

Net Property and Equipment
The following tabie presents components of nel property and egquipment;

in miflions
Land
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Leasehold improvernents
Construction in progress
Finance leases
Property and equipment, at cost
Less accumuiated depreciation and finance lease amortization
Net property and equipment
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January 29, January 30,
2023 022

% 8719 % 8,617
18,430 19,173
16,564 16,441

2,130 2,016

1,297 1,139

4,135 3,043

52,275 51,329
26,644 26,130

§ 25631 % 25,199




The following table presents depreciation and finance lease amortization expense, including depreciation and
finance lease amortization expense included in cost of sales:

Fizcal Fiscal Fiscal
in milions 2022 2024 2020
Cepreciation and finance lease amortization expense 5 2,756 3 2650 % 2425

Leases

The foliowing table presents ths consclidated balance sheet location of assats and liabilties related to operating
and finance leases:

i " ) Januirg 29, January 30,
n milfions Consoiidated Balance Shast Clasaifisation 202 222
Assets:
Operaling lease assets Operating lease right-of-use assets b3 6,941 § 5,968
Finance lease assets " Net property and equipment 2,899 2,866
Total iease assets 3 9840 § 8.864
Liabillties:
Current:
Operating lease liabiiities Current operating lease liabilities 3 845 § 830
Finance lease liabilities Current instzllments of long-term dabt 23 198
Long-term:
Operating lease liabilities Long-term operating lease liabilities 6,226 5,353
Firance lease fiabilities Long-term debt, excluding cument installments 3,054 3,038
Total lease liabilities § 10,456 5 9!41 g

{1} Fmance fease assels are recordad net of sccumulaied amartization of $1 2 bithon as of January 29, 2023 and $1.0 bthon as of January 30,
26822

The following table presents components of lease cost, excluding shori-term lease cost and sublease income which
are immaleriak

Cansolidated Statament of Eamings Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

in millons Classifiestion 2022 2021 2020
Operating lease cost Seliing, general and administrative § 1,169 § 1084 § 782

Finance |ease cost:

Amoartization of leased assets Depraciation and amartization 282 250 187
Interest on lease liabilities Interest expense 125 127 112
Variable lease cost Seliing, general and administrative 470 425 277
Total tease cost $ 2046 % 1886 % 1,338

(7} Cosis associated with our FOUrTingG snd gistrioution natwork are recondad in cos! of sales, with the exception of mtarest on finance lagss
fiabiities.

The following table presents weighted average remaining lease terms and discount rates:

-.lanzu'?g 29, Jnn;l;zr; an,

Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term (Years):

Qperating leases 9 g

Finance leases 14 15
Weighted Average Discount Rate:

Operating leases 3.2% 2.7 %

Finance |leases 4.3 % 4.7 %
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Tabis of Conta

The following tabie presents approximate future minimum payments under operating and finance leases at
January 28, 2023

Qperating Financa

in millfons Laases Lsasas
Fiscal 2023 3 1,152 & 347
Fiscal 2024 1,186 364
Fiscal 2025 1,032 406
Figcal 2028 200 297
Fiscat 2027 769 278
Therzafter 3,446 2449
Total lease paymenis 8,485 4141
Less: imputed interest 1,314 856
Present value of lease liabilities $ 7171 § 3,285

Note: We hawe exciuded approximstely 32 1 bilfion of 2ases {undiscounied basis) that hava not yet commenced. Thesa leasas #ne axpactad fe
commience primanly it fisca 2023 with feass iarms of ug {0 30 years.

The following table presents supplemental cash fow information related to leases:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
in mitilens 2022 2021 2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabiities:
Operating cash flows — cperating leases 5 1,157 § 1,080 § 1,022
Operating cash flows — finance leases 125 127 112
Financing cash flows — finance leases 241 182 122
Supplemental non-cash information:
L.ease assets obtained in exchange for new cperaling iease liabilities 1,991 984 869
Lease assels obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities 322 &72 1,730

Short-Term Debt

In July 2022, we expandad our commercial paper program from $3.0 billion to $5.0 billion 1o further enbance our
financial flexibiiity. All of our shortlerm borrowings in fiscal 2022 and fiscal 2021 were under our commercial paper
pregram. In connection with our program, we had back-up credit facllities with a consortium of banks for borrowings
up to $5.0 billion at January 29, 2023, which censisted of & five-year $3.5 hillion credit facility scheduled to expire in
July 2027 and a 364-day $1.5 billion credit facility scheduled to expire in July 2023. These facilities replaced our
previously existing five-year $2.0 billion credit facility, which was scheduled to expire in December 2023, and our
364-~day $1.0 billion credit facility, which was schedulad to expire in December 2022,

At January 29, 2023, we had no borrowings outstanding under our commercial paper program, and at January 30,
2022, we had $1.0 billion of borrawings outstanding under our commerefal paper program with a welghted-average
interest rate of 0.1%.

The following table presents additional information on borrowings under our commercial paper program during fiscal
2022 and fiscal 2021:

Fiszal Fizeal

in miltions 022 2024
Maximum amount outstanding during the period 3 2,748 % 1,368
Average daily short-term borowings 263 45
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Long-Term Debt

The following table presents details of the compenents of our long

i1 millions
Floating rate senfor nates due March 2022
3.25% Senior noles due March 2022
2.625% Senior notes due June 2022
2.70% Senior notes due April 2023
3.75% Senior noles due February 2024
2.70% Senior nates dus April 2025
3.35% Sanior notes dus September 2025
4.00% Senior notes dug Septembar 2025
J.00% Senior notes due April 2028
2.125% Senior notes due September 2026
2.B75% Senior notes due Aprl 2027
2.50% Senicr nofes due April 2027
2.80% Senlor notes due September 2027
0.90% Senior notes due March 2028
1.50% Senior notes dus September 2028
3.90% Senior notes due December 2028
2.95% Senior notes due June 2029
2,70% Senior notes due Aprl 2030
1.375% Senior notes due March 2031
1.875% Senior notes due September 2031
3.25% Senior notes due Aprii 2032
4.50% Senior notes due September 2032
5.875% Senior notes dus Dacember 2036
3.30% Senior notes due April 2040
5.40% Serior notes due Septemnber 2040
5.95% Senicr notes due April 2041
4.20% Senior notes due Apri| 2043
4.875% Senior notes due February 2044
4.40% Senior noles due March 2045
4.25% Senior noles due April 2046
3.90% Senior notes due June 2047
4.50% Senior nutes due December 2048
3.125% Senior notes due December 2040
3.35% Senior notes due April 2050
2.375% Senior notes due March 2051
2.75% Senicr notes dua September 2051
3.625% Senior notes dus April 2052
4.95% Senior notes due September 2052
3.50% Senior notes due September 2056
Totai senior notes

Finance lease obligations; payable in varying

instaliments through April 30, 2076
Total long-term debt
Less gurrent instaliments of long-term dent

Long-term debt, excluding current installments

-term debt:

Carrylnyg Amount '

{1) Includes unamarfized disgounts, pramiums, debt issuance costs, and tha effects of fair valve hedges.

Pagable Amoum, gy Januany o,
Quarierly $ ~ 8 — % 300
Semi-annually — - 700
Semi-annuaily - —-— 1,249
Semi-annually 1,000 1,800 809
Semi-annually 1,100 1,089 1,088
Semi-annually 500 498 —_
Seml-arnually 1,000 asg 998
Semi-annually 750 748 —
Semiannually 1,300 1,295 1,293
Semi-annually 1,000 994 932
Semi-annually 750 744 —
Semi-annuaily 750 745 744
Semiannually 1,000 979 1,001
Seml-annually 500 436 485
Semi-annually 1,000 983 o092
Semi-annually 1,000 877 1,035
Semi-annually 1,750 1,675 1,768
Semi-annually 1,600 1,347 1,422
Semi-annually 1,250 1,170 1,210
Semi-annually 1,000 842 981
Semi-annually 1,250 1,237 -—
Semi-annually 1,250 i.242 —
Semi-annually 3,000 2,874 2916
Semi-anmually 1,250 1,075 1,164
Semi-annually 500 496 496
Semi-annually 1,000 930 580
Semi-annually 1,000 939 977
Semi-annually 1,000 881 981
Semiannually 1,000 980 579
Semi-annually 1,800 1,586 1,586
Semi-annually 1,150 1,144 1,144
Semi-annuaily 1.500 1,464 1,464
Semi-annually 1,250 1,178 1.214
Semi-annuaily 1,000 1472 1.471
Semiannuazlly 1,250 1,156 1,201
Semi-annually 1,000 983 882
Semi-annually 1,500 1,458 —_
Semi-annually 1,000 980 —
Semiannually 1,000 973 a73

] 41,150 3§ 39,5808 35,815
$ 3285 % 3,236
43,183 39,051
1,231 2,447
5 41962 § 36,604
r
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Tabie | niant

Seplember 2022 Issuance, In Sepiember 2022, we issued three franches of senfor notes,

* Thefirst tranche consisted of $750 million of 4.00% senior notes due Seplember 15, 2025 at 5 discount of
$0.3 miltion. Interest on thesa notes is due semi-annuslly on March 15 and September 15 of each year,
beginning March 15, 2023,

+ The second tranche consisted of $1.25 Gillion of 4.50% senior notes due Seplember 15, 2032 al a disgount
aof $1 million. Interest on these notes is due semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year,
beginning March 15, 2023

*  The third tranche consisted of $1.0 billion of 4.95% senior notes due Seplember 15, 2052 at a discount of
$14 million. Interest on these notes is due semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year,
beginning March 15, 2023,

* Issuance tosts totaled $15 million.

March 2022 Issuance. In March 2022, we issued four tranches of senior notes.
= Thefirst tranche consisted of 5500 million of 2.70% senior notes due April 15, 2025 at a discount of
$1 million. Interest on these notes is due semi-annually on April 15 and Octeber 15 of each year, beginning
Cclober 15, 2022,

* The second tranche consisted of $750 million of 2.875% senior noles due Aprii 15, 2027 at a disceunt of
$4 miliion. Interest on these nates is due semi-annually on Aprit 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning
Oclober 15, 2022,

* Thethird tranche consisted of $1.25 billion of 3,25% seniar notes due April 15, 2032 at a discournt of
36 million. Interest on these notes is dus serni-annually on April 15 and Qetober 15 of each year, beginning
October 15, 2022.

*  The fourth tranche consisted of $1.5 billion of 3.625% senicr nates due April 15, 2052 at a discount of
$32 million. Interest on these notes is due semi-annually on April 15 and Celobar 15 of each year, beginning
October 15, 2022.

* Issuance costs totaled $22 million.

Repayments. In March 2022, we repaid our $700 million 3.25% senior notes and $300 million floating rate senior
notes at maturity. In May 2022, we repaid our $1.25 billion 2.625% senior notes, which had a maturity daie of June
2022, at the Par Call Date for the noles,

Redemption. Ali of our senior notaes may be redeemed by us at any time, in whole or in part, al the redemption
price plus accrued inferest up to the redemption date. With respect fo the 5.875% 2036 notes, the redemption price
is egual to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the notes to be redeemed, or {2} the sum of the
present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the notes to be redeemed that
would be due after the relaled redemption dale. With respect to all other notes, prior to the Par Cali Date, as defined
in the respective nates, the redemplion price is equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the notes
to be redeemed or (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and inleresi
to the Par Call Date. On or after the Par Cail Date, the redemption price is equal 1o 100% of the principal amount of
the noles. Additionally, if a Change in Control Triggenng Event DoeUrs, as defined in the noles, holders of all such
hotes have the right {o require us to redeem those notes at 101% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes
plus accrued interest up ta the redemption date.

The indentures governing the notes do not generally limil our ability {o incur additional indebtedness or require us io
maintain financial ratios or specified levels of net worth or liquidity. The indentures govarning the notes contain
various customary covenants; howaver, none are expected to impact aur fiquidity or capital resources,
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Maturities of Long-Term Debt. The Tollowing table presents our long-term debt maturities, excluding finance
leases, as of January 29, 2023:

tn miflions Principal
Fiscal 2023 $ 1,000
Fiscal 2024 1.100
Fiscal 2025 2,250
Fiseal 2028 2,300
Fiscal 2027 2,500
Thereafler 32,000
Total ¥ 41,150

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activilies

We use derivative instrumenis as part of aur normal business operations in the management of our exposure {g
fluctuations in foreign currancy exchange rates and interest rates on certain debt. Qur objective in managing these
expasures is to decrease the volatility of cash flows affected by changes in the underlying rates and minimize the
risk of changes in the fair value of our senior noles,

Fair Value Medges. We had outslanding interest rate swap agresments with combined notional amounts of $5.4
biflion at January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022. These agresments were accounted for as fair value hedges that
swap fixed for variable rate interest to hedge changes in the fair values of certain senior notes. At January 29, 2023,
the fair values of these agreemsnts totaled $778 million, all of which is recognized in cther iong-term liabilities on
the consalidated balance sheet. At January 30, 2022, the fair values of these agreements totaled $191 million, with
$58 million recognized in other assets and $248 million recogrized in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheet. All of our interest rate swap agreements designated as fair value hedges meet the shorteut method
requirements under GAAP. Accordingly, the changes in the fair values of these agreements offset the changes in the
fair value of the hedged ong-term debt.

We also settled forward-starting interest rate swap agreements in prior years, which were used to hedge the
variability in future interest payments attributable to changing interest rates on forecasted debt issuances.
Unamortized losses on these forward-starting swaps, which were designated as cash flow hedges, are being
amortized to interest expense aver the fife of the respective noles. Unamortized losses recognized on these swaps
remaining in accumulated cther comprehensive loss were immaterial as of January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022,
as were the losses recognized within interest expense for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020,

We expect an immaterial amount recerded in accumulated other comprehensive Joss gs of January 29, 2023 ta be
reclassified inlo earnings within the naxt 12 moenths,

Net investment Hedges. During fiscal 2022, we issued foreign currency forward contracts accounted for as nel
investment hedges, which hedged against foreign currency exposure on aur net investment in certain subsidiarias,
These foreign currency forward contracts were immaterial and were settled in fiecal 2022, The related foraign
currency franstation adjustment amounts recorded in accumulated other cornprehensive luss upon setlerment were
also immaterial. There were na arrangements accounted for as net invesiment hedges outstanding as of

January 29, 2023 or January 30, 2022,

Collateral. We generaily enter into master netting arrangements, which are designed to reduce credil risk by
permitting net settfement of transactions with the same counterparty. To further limit our credt risk, we enter infg
collateral security arrangements that provide for colfateral to be received or Posted when the net fair valve of certain
derivalive instruments exceeds or fafls below contractually established thresholds, The cash collateral posted by the
Company related to derivative instruments under our collateral security arangements was $634 million as of
January 29, 2023, which was recarded In ather current assets on the consclidated balance sheat. We did not hold
any cash collateral as of January 29, 2023, and cash collateral both held and posted was immaterial as of

January 30, 2022,
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Pravision for Income Taxes

The follawing table presents our earnings before the provision for income taxes:

Fiseal Fiscal Fiscal
in miflians 2022 2021 2020
United Stales 5 20950 § 20320 3% 16,013
Forsign 1,487 1,817 965
Total 3 22477 § 21737 § 16,978
The following table presents our provision for income taxes:
Flacal Fiscal Fiscal
in milifons 2022 2021 2020
Current:
Federal 3 3518 § 4066 & 462
Stale 880 81 928
Fareign 436 511 328
Total current 5,234 5,558 4,719
Deferred:
Federai 102 (155) {404)
Stale B1 (11 (208)
Fareign (25) {68} 6
Tolal deferred 138 (254) {607)
Provision for income taxes g 5372 § 5304 § 4,112

The following table presents aur compined federal, stale, and foreign effective tax rales:

Fizcal Fiscal Fiscal
2022 2021 2020
Combined federal, state, and foreign effective tax rates 23.9% 24.4 % 242 %

The following table presents the reconciliation of our Provision for income taxes at the federal statulory rale of 21%
{o the actual tax expense:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

in mitlisns 2022 2021 2020
Income taxes at federal statutory rate g 4720 % 4565 $ 3,565
State income taxes, net of federal income tax berefit 743 766 568
Other, net {81} (27) (21)
Total § 53712 § 5304 % 4,112

On August 16, 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 {"2022 Tax Act") was enacied into law. The key tax
provisions include a 15% minimum tax on adjusted financial statement income. We do not expect any impact ta the
Company's effective tax rale as a resuit of the new 15% minimur tax under the 2022 Tax Act.
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Deferred Taxes

The following tabie presenis the lax effects of lempoarary differences that give rise to significant portions of our
defemed tax assels and deferred tax liabilities:

January 29, January 30,
in raflions 2023 2022
Assets:
Deferred compansation 3 23 3 471
Accrued self-insurance Eabiliiies 276 272
State income taxes 149 138
Merchandise inventories 0 —_
Non-deductible reserves 38 250
Net operating losses 115 150
Lease liabilities 1,878 1,528
Dieferred revenue 148 121
Other 56 67
Total deferred 1ax assets 3200 2,997
Valuation allowance {5) (10)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 3,202 2 987
Liabilities:
Mearchandise inventories — {14)
Property and equipment {992) {902}
Goodwill and cther intangibles (353) {985)
Lease right-of-use assets {1,799) {1,473)
Tax on unremitted eamings {63) {74}
Other (95) {104)
Total deferred tax liabilies {3.802) (3,552)
Net deferred tax liabilities ¥ {700 § 585

The following table presents our nancurrent deferred tax assets and noncurrent deferred tax liabilities, netted by tax
Jurisdiction, as presented on the consclidaled balance shests:

January 289, January 30,
in millions Consnlidated Balance Sheet Classification 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets Other assels 3 318 % 344
Deferred tax liabifities Deferred income taxes {1.019) {909)
Net deferred tax liabilities 5 570[12 $ (565)

As of January 28, 2023, we recorded deferrad tax assets af $115 million for net operating losses, primarily related to
state jurisdiclions. These losses expire sl various dates beginning in 2023. We have concluded that it is more likely
than not that tax benefits related to substantially all net operaling losses will be realized hased upan the expeciation
that we will generaie the necessary laxable income in future perinds.

Reinvestment of Unremitted Earnings

Substantially all of our current year foreign cash eamings in excess of working capital and cash needed for strategic
investments are not iniended to be indefinitely reinvested offshore. Therefore, the tax effects of repatriation for
applicable state taxes and foreign withholding taxes of such cash eamings have been pravided for in the
accompanying consolidated statements of eamings. We have the intent and ability fo reinvest substantially all of the
$4.1 biliion of non-cash unremitied earnings of our non-U.5. subsidiaries indefinitely. Accardingly, no provision for
state taxes or fareign withholding taxes was recorded on these unremitted earnings in the accompanying
consolidated statements of eamings. It is impracticable for us to delermine the amaunt of unrecognized deferred tax
liabilities on these indefinitely reinvestad earnings due to the tomplexities associaled with the hypothetical
caiculation.
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Tax Return Examination Status

Our income tax returns are routinely examined by U.S. federal, state and ioeal, and forelgn tax authorities. As of
January 29, 2023, the Company 1s no longer subject to 4.5. federal examinations by tax autherilies for years before
fiscal 2010. Our U.S. federal tax retums for fiscal vears 2010 through 2021, with the exception of 2015, are currenily
under examination by the IRS. Witk respect to the fiscal years 2010 to 2014, the IRS has issued a proposed
adjustment rejating fo transfer pricing between our entities in the U.S. and China. We are defending our pasition
usfng all available remedies. There are also angoing LS. state and local audits and other foreign audits covering
fiscal years 20113 through 2020. We do not expect the resufts from any ongeing income tax audit 1o have a material
impact on our consolidated financial condition, results of aperations, or cash fiows.

Over the next tweive months, il is reasonably possible that the resoiwtion of federal and state tax examinations, as
well as the expiration of statuies of limitations, could reduce our unrecognized tax benefits by an immaterial amount,
We oo not anticipate the resalution of these matters will result In 2 material change to our consolidated financial
condition or results of operatians.

Unrecognized Tax Bansfits

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending amaunt of our gross unrecognized tax benefits:

Fiscal Flscal Fiscal
in mitfions 2422 2621 2020
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at beginning of fiscal year 3 are % 540 5 473
Additions based on lax positions related to the current year 75 80 =]
Additions for tax positions of prior years 22 24 72
Reductions for fax positions of prior years {7) (49 (53)
Reductions due to settfenents {1) (29) {22)
Reductions due to fapse of statute of limitations (16) (5) {5)
Uniecognized tax benefits balance at end of fiscal year 5 643 § 970 % 540

Unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect our annual effective intome tax rate on net 83aMings wers
$537 million, §479 million, and $458 mitlion at January 29, 2023, January 30, 2022, and January 31, 2021,
respectively.

interest and Penalties

Net adjustmenls to aceruals for interest and penclties associated with uncertain tax positions were immalerial in
fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020. Our tolal accrued interest and penalties associaled with uncerlain tax
positions were immaterial as of January 28, 2023 apd January 30, 2022,

Stock Roliforward

The following table presents a reconciliation of the number of shares of our common stack outstanding and cash
dividends per share:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
shares In mitijons 2022 2021 2020
Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year 1,792 1,789 1,786
Shares issued under employee stock plans, net 2 &| 3
Balance at end of year 1,794 1,792 1,789
Treasury stock:
Balance at beginning of year (757) {712) (705}
Repurchases of comman stock {21) {45} {3)
Balance st end of year (778) (757) (712)
Shares vuistanding at end of year 1,016 1,035 1,077
Cash dividends per share 3 760 § 660 % 6.00
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Share Repurchases

In August 2022, cur Beard of Directors approved a $15.0 hillion share repurchase authorization that replaced the
previous autharization of $20.0 billion, which was appraved in May 2021. This new authorization does not have a
prescribed expiration date. As of January 29, 2023, approximately $12.5 billion of the $45.0 billion share repurchase
authorization remained avaifable.

tn March 2020, we suspended our share repurchases te enhanca our liquidity position as a result of the COVID-13
pandemic. We resumed share repurchases in the first quarler of fiscal 2021

The following table presents information about our repurchases of common stock, ail of which were compiated
through open market purchases:

Fiacal Fiscal Fiscal
in milflens 2022 2021 2020
Total number of shares repurchased 21 45 3
Total cost of shares repurchased $ 6504 § 15001 % 597

These amounts may differ from the repurchases of common stock amaunts in the consolidaled stalements of cash
flows due o unsettied share repurchases at the end of a period.

The fair value of an assst is considered to be the price at which the asset could be sold in an arderly ransaction
between unrefated knowlsdgeable and willing parties. A kability's fair valus is defined as the amount that would be
paid to fransfer the liabilty 10 a new obligor, rather than the amount that would be paid to settle the liability with the
creditor. Assets and liabiiities recorded at fair value are measured using a three-tier fair valug hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inpuls used in measuring fair value, The levels of the fair vaius hierarchy are:

= Level 1: observable inpuls such as quoted prices in active markets for identical asseis or liabilities;
= Level Z: inputs other than quoted prices in active markets in Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly
observable; and
*  Level 3: unobservable inputs for which little ar no market data exisls, therefore requiring management
judgment 1o develop the Company's own models with estimates and assumptions.
Assets and Liabilities Measured ¢ Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tabie presents the assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on 3 racurring basis:

January 78, 2023 Janvary 30, 2022
i millions Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Lowei 1 Levaf 2 Lavel 3
Derivative agreements - assets & - § — 8 - § — 3 58 §$ -
Derivalive agreemants - ligbilitiss —_ (778) — — (249} —
Total $ — {778) % o A 3 =i $ ;191! 3 B AN

The fair values of our derivative instruments are determined using an income appraach and Level 2 inputs, which
include the respective interest rate or foreign currency forward curves and discount rates. Qur derivative

instruments are discussed further in Note 4
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Long-lived assets, goodwill, and ather intangible assets are subject to nonrecuiring fair value measurement for the
assessment of impairment. We did not have any material assets or liabilitfes that were measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis during fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, or fiscal 2020,

Other Fair Value Disclosures

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, shori-tarmm debt, and accounts payable
approximate fair value due fo their short-term nature,

58 .rx




Tabde of eais

The following table presanis the aggregate fair values and carrying values of our senior notes:

January 29, 2023 January 30, 2022
Falr Wal C Falr Val Carryl
In millions {T.erv:ll %e ‘3’:.!{:: 5 (I..JWT ':I ]. V;?u: ¢
Senior notes ] 38537 % 39808 3 38,397 % 35,815

Ommnlbus Stock Ingentive Plans

The Home Depot, Inc. Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated May 19, 2022 (the *Omnibus
Plan”) and The Home Dspot, inc. 1997 Omnibus Stack Incentive Plan {the *1997 Plan” and collectively with the
Omnibus Plan, the *Plans”) provide that incanlive and nonqualified stock options, stack appreciation rights,
restricled stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, parfformance units, deferred shares, and ofer stock-
based awards may be issuved to certain of our assoclates and nan-employee direciors. Under the Omnibus Plan, the
maximum number of shares of our commen stock aulhorized for issuance is 80 million shares plus a number of
shares (not to exceed 10 million) related to underlying awards oulstanding as of May 19, 2022, which can be
returned to the share pool if those awards are subsequently terminated or expire unexercised, or are cancelled,
forfeited or lapse for any reason, with any award other than a stock optian or stack appreciation right reducing the
number of shares available for issuance by 2.71 shares. At January 29, 2023, there were approximately 80 million
shares available for future grants under the Omnibus Pian, No additional equity awards could be issued from the
1997 Plan after May 26, 2005.

The following table presents tota! stock-based compensation expense, net of estimated forfetures, including
expense related to our ESPPs, and related income tax banefit;

Fiscal Fiseal Fleeal
tn millfons 022 2021 2020
Fre-tax stock-based compensation expense $ 367 § 403 § 310
Income {ax benefit {73) {BE) {58}
After-tax stock-based compensation expense g 294 % 317 3 252

At January 79, 2023, there was $424 million of Lnrecognized stock-based compensation expense, which is
expected o be recagnized aver a weighted average period of two years,

The award types issued under the Plans are as follows:

Stock Options. Under the terms of the Plans, incentive stack options and nongualified stack options must have an
exercise price at or above the fair market valus of our stock en the date of the grant. Typically, nonqualified stock
options vest at the rate of 25% per year commencing on the second anniversary date of the grant and expire on the
tenth anniversary date of the grant. Additionally, a majority of cur stack options may become non-forfeitable upon
the associaie reaching age B0, provided the associate has had five years of continuous service. No incenfive stock
options have been issued under the Ornibus Plan,

We estimate the fair value of stock option awards on the dale of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
Our determination of fair value of slock option awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
madei is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of variables.

The follewing table presents the per share weighted average fair value of stock options granted and the
assumptions used in determining fair value at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes aption-pricing model;

Fiscal Flseal Fiscat
2022 2021 2020
Per share weighted average fair value $ 7021 § 85771 % 3677
Risk-free interest rate 2.5% 1.0 % D6 %
Assumed volatility 270 % 6.5 % 239 %
Assumed dividend yield 24 % 22 % 31 %
Assumed iives of options B years & years & years
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The following table presents a summary of stock option aclivity by number of shares and weighled average exercise
price during fiscal 2022;

Number of Weighted Averags

shares in thousands Shares Exsrclse Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 3,641 § 150.30
Granted 302 316.08
Exorcised {292) 98.68
Forfeited (25} 238.56
Outstanding at end of year 3,626 167.66

The following table presents the tolal intrinsic value of siock options exercised:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
in millions 2022 2021 2020

Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised 3 61 § 237 & 217

The fellowing tabie presents details regarding outstanding and exercisable stock options at January 29, 2023:

Weighted Waighted
shares in thousands, doflars in mitijons, excep! for per share Numbar of Intrinsic Average Avaraga
amounts Shares Value Remaining Life  Exarcise Price
Qutsianding 3626 § 541 46ysars § 167.66
Exercisable 2,448 457 3.2 years 130.00

Shares of commen stack issued from stock option exercises may be issued from autharized and unissued common
stock or treasury stock.

Restricted Stock and Performance Share Awards. Restrictions on ihe restricted stock issued under the Plans
generally lapse aver various periods up to five years, At the grant date of the award, recipients af resiricted stock
are granted voling rights and genersily receive dividends on unvested shares, paid in the form of cash on each
dividend payment date. Dividends paid on unvested shares were immaterial for fiscal 2022, fscal 2021, and fiscal
2020, Additionally, the majority of aur restricted stock awards may becocme nan-forfeitable upon the associats's
altainment of age 60, provided the associate has had five years of continuous service.

We have also granied performance share awards under the Plans. These awards provide for the issuance of shareg
of our common stack at the end of the three-year performance cycie based upon our performance against target
average ROIC and operating profit over that performance cycle. Additionally, the awards become non-forfeitable
upen the associate's attainment of age 60, provided the associate has had five years of continuous service and
minimum performance targets are achieved. Recipients of performance share awards have no voting rights until the
shares are issued following completion of the performance period. Dividend equivalents accrue on the performancs
shares (as reinvesied shares) and are paid upon the payout of the award based upon the actual number of shares
earned. The fair value of the restricted stock and performance shares is based on the closing stock price on the
date of grant and is expensed over the period during which the restrictions lapse.

Restricted Stock Units. Each restricled stock unit entitles the associale 1o one share of camman stock to be
received upan vesling up to five years after the grant date. Additionally, the majorily of these awards may become
non-forfeitable upon the associate reaching age 60, provided the associate has had five years of continuous
service. Recipients of restricted slock units have ne voting rights until the vesting of the award. Recipients receive
dividend equivaienis that accrue on unvested units and are paid out fn the form of additional shares of stock an the
vesting date. The fair value of the restricted stock units is based on the closing stoek price on the date of grant and
is expensad over the period during which the units vest.
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The following table presents a summary of restricted stock, performance shares, and resfricted stock unit activity
during fiscai 2022:

Number of Welghted Avarags
shares in thovsands Sharas Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested at beginning of year 3709 % 218.60
Granted 1,441 304 57
Vested (1.516) 191.82
Forfeited (275) 260.13

MNonvested at end of year 3,359 261.66

The following table presents the total fair value of restricted stock, performance shares, and restricted stock unils
vested:

Fiscal Fiscal Flseal
in mififons 2022 2021 2020

Total fair value vested $ 479 & 406 % 27

Deferred Shares. We grant awards of deferced shares to non-employee directors under the Plans. Each deferred
share eniitles the non-employee director to one shara of common stack o be received following termination of
Beard service. Recipients of deferred shares have no voting rights and receive dividend equivalents that accrue and
are paid out in the form of additional shares of stock upon payolt of the undertying shares following termination of
service. The fair value of the deferred shares is hased on the closing stock price on the date of grant and is
expensed immediately upon grant.

The foilowing table presents deferred shares granted to non-employee directers:

Flscal Fiscal Fiscal
2022 2021 2020
Deferred shares granted to non-employee direclors 19,000 15,000 18,000

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

We maintain two ESPPs: a U.S. and a non-U S, plan. The plan for U.8. assooiates is 2 tax-qualified plan under
Section 423 of the Intemal Revenue Code. The non-U.S, planis not 2 Section 423 plan. At January 29, 2023, there
were approximately 16 millfion shares available under the U.S. plan and approximately 18 mifiion shares available
under the non-L1.S. plan. The purchase price of shares urnder the ESPPs is equal to 85% of the stack’s fair markat
value on the lasi day of the purchase period, which is a six-month pericd ending on December 31 and June 30 of
each year. During fiscal 2022, there were approximately 1 million shares purchased under the ESPPs at an average
price of 5247.86. Under the outstanding ESPPs at January 28, 2023, associates have ceniributed $22 million to
purchase shares at 85% of the stock's fair market value on the last day of the cuirent purchase period, June 30,
2023.

We maintain active defined contribution retirement plans far our associates fthe “Berefit Plans"). All associates
satisfying certain service requirements are eligible to participate in the Benefit Plans. We make cash cantributions
aach payrolf perod up 1o specified percentagas of associates’ contributions as approved by cur Board of Directars.

We also mainiain the Restoration Plans to provide certain associates deferred compensation that they would have
received under the Benefit Plans as a matching contrbution if not for the maximum compensation limits under the
Internat Revenue Code. We fund the Restoration Plans through contributions mads to grantor trusts, which are then
used to purchase shares of our common stock in the open market.

The following table presents our contributions to the Bensfit Plans and the Restoration Pians:

Fiscal Fiseal Fiacal
in miflions 2022 2021 2020
Conlributions {o the Benefit Plans and the Restaration Plans % 280 % 278 & 267

At January 28, 2023, the Benefit Plans and the Restoration Plans held @ total of 5.3 million shares of our comrmon
stock in frusts for plan participants.
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The following table presents the reconeiliation of our basic to diluted weighted average common shares;

Flecal Fiseal Fiscal
in mittions 2022 2021 2020
Basic weighted average common shares 1,022 1,054 1,074
Effect of potentially dilutive securities " 3 4 4
Diluted weighted average common shares 1,025 1,058 1,078
%
Artidiluiive securities exclitded from diluted weighted average
common sharas 1 o -

(1) Represents ihe dilutive impact of stock-besad awerds

Al January 29, 2023, we had outstanding letters of credit totaling $486 million, primarily related to certain business
fransaclions, including insurance programs, trade contracts, and construction contracts.

We are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. In management’s opinion, any such litigation is
not expecled lo have a maleria) adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of vperations, or cash
flows,

On November 16, 2020, we announced that wa entered into a definitive agresment to acquire HD Supply, a leading
national distributor of MRO products to multitamily, hospitality, healthcare, and governmant housing facilities, among

The following table summarizes tota) purchase consideration:

in miliions

Total cash consideration for oulstanding shares -] 8,637

Value of stock-based awards attributed 1o services akeady rendered (! 55
Total purchase consideration 5 8,602

(1) In conmection with the compisiron af tha acqusiion, alf HD Supply stock-based awards ware cash setisg for an aguregate value of
117 millian. As the setifement of the awsards was at the discration of the Company, the portion of the far value of the awards altnbuled fo
Senices previously providad of 855 millian was inciyded as par! of purchase consigeration, with the remaining $56 sillion recognized a5
post-tombimation expanse within SG&A I our consolidaled staterment of eamings for fiseal 2620,

The total purchase consideration of $8.7 billion, less cash acquired of $917 million, resulted in a net cash outfiow of
$7.8 billion on the cansolidated staterent of cash flows in fiscal 2020,

Nel sales and net earnings for fiscal 2020 attributable to HD Supply after the completion of the acquisition were
Imrnaterial. Pro forma results of operations would not be materially different as a resull of the acquisifion and
therefare are not prasented,

Mal

Mot applicable,
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DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Wa maintain disclosure controls and proceduras as defined in Rule 13a-15{2) under the Exchange Act that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reparted within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information
is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Oicer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure,

that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have conciuded that, as of the eng of the
period covered by this repar, our disclosurs controls and procedures were effective.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Rule 13a-1 5(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act. Under the suparvision and with the
participation of our Mmanagement, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an
evaiuglion of the effectiveness of our internal control aver financial reporting as of January 29, 2023 based on the
framework in Internal Conirof — integrated Framewark {2073} issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaiuation, our management concluded that our fntemnal control aver
financial reporfing was effective a3 of January 29, 2023 in providing reasonable assurance regarding the reliabifity
of firancial reporting and the preparatian of financial statements for external PUrposss in accordance with GAAP.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial repoiting as of January 29, 2023 has been audited by KPMG
LLF. an independent registered puhlic accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We are in the process of an ongoing business fransformatian initiative, which includes upgrading and migrating
certain accounling and finance systems. We pfan o continue to rigrate additional business processes over the
course of the next few years and have madified and will continue to modify the design and implementation of certain
internal cantrol processes as the transformation continues.

Except as described above, there were no other changes in cur intemal control aver financial reporting during the
fiscal quarter ended Jaruary 28, 2023 that have matertally affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal controf over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Direclors
The Home Depat, Inc.:

Opinion on Intermal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited The Home Depet, Inc. and subsidiaries {the Companyy) internal cantral over financial réporting as
of January 28, 2023, based on criteria established in Intermal Control — Imtegraled Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In our opirion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2023, based on criteria
eslablished in Interal Controf - Intagrated Framewark {2013) issued by tha Committee of Spansoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Cormnpany as of January 29, 2023 and January 30, 2022,
the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, stockhoiders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended January 29, 2023, and the related notes {collectively, the
consalidated financial statements), and our report dated March 15, 2023 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consalidzted financial statements.

Easis for Opinion

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal contraf over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal contral over financiat reporting, included in the accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to EXpress an opinion on
the Company's internal cantrel over financial reporting based on cur audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accardance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commissicn
and the PCAQB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCADB. These standards require that we plan and
perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that & material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed tisk. Qur
audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinian,

Deffnition and Limitations of Intermari Controf Over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal control aver financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpeses in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company, (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepled accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of fanagement and directors of the company: and {3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a materiz} effect on the financial statements.

Because of ils inherent limitations, intemal contral over financial reporting may not prevent or detect missiatements,
Alsa, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness Io future perieds are subjest to the rsk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or
procedurss may deteriorate.

s/ KPMG LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
March 15, 2023
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I ¥8. Othe
Not applicabla.

Not applicable.

informaiion required by this item, other than the irformation regarding the executive officers set forth below, is
incorporated by reference to the sections entitled “Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,” “General,” and
“Audit Committee Report" in our Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders {"Proxy Statement").

Executive officers are appainted by. and serve al the pleasure of, the Board of Directors. Qur executive officers are
as follows:

WILLIAM D. BASTEK, age 56, has been Executive Vice President — Merchandising, since March 2023, From
January 2019 to Mareh 2023, Mr. Bastek served as Senior Vice Presidant of Merchandising, Hardlines for the
Company, respansible for merchandising and marketing strategies for hardware and garden. Frior o that role, he
was Merchandising Vice President of hardware and taois from December 2013 to January 2019. Mr. Bastek began
his career in 1989 at HD Supply, formerly known as Maintenance Warehouse, which was originally acquired by the
Company fn 1997. Mr. Baslek has served in vartous roles of increasing responsibility, including Global Product
Merchant, Senior Merchant, Divisional Merchandise Manager and Merchandising Vice President for building
malerials,

ANN-MARIE CAMPBELL, age 57, has heen Execulive Vice President - U.3. Stares and international Operaticns
since October 2020, From February 2016 lo October 2020, she served as Executive Vice President - U.S, Stores,
from January 2009 1o February 2016, she served as Bivision President of the Southem Division, and from
Drecember 2005 io January 2009, she served as Vice President ~ Vendor Services, Ms. Campbell began her career
with The Heme Dapot in 1985 as 2 cashier and has held roles of increasing responsibility since she joined the
Company, including vice president roles in the Company's operations, merchandising, and marketing depariments,
She serves as a director of Workday, inc.. a financial and human capital management software vendor

MATTHEW A. CAREY, age 58, has baen Executive Vice President — Cusiomer Experience since April 2022, Ha
served as Executive Vice Prasident and Chief information Officer from September 2008 tg April 2022, From January
20086 through August 2008, ha served as Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer at eBay Inc.. an onling
commerce piatfarm, Mr. Carey was previously with Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., a general merchandise retailer, from June
1985 to December 2005. His final position with Wal-Mart was Senior Vice President and Chief Technclogy Officer.
He serves as a director of Chipotte Mexican Grill, Inc.. which owns and operates restaurants in the U.S. and
Internalicnally.

JOHN DEATON, age 49, has been Executive Vice President - Supply Chain & Product Development since
November 2021. From April 2021 (o October 2021, he served as Senior Vice President — Qperations, from May
2017 to April 2021, he served as Senior Vice President — Supply Chain, from July 2011 to Apri! 2017 he served as
Senior Vice President — Brand and Product Development, and fram April 2007 to June 2011 ha served as Vice
Prasident — Supply Chain.

EDWARD P, DECKER, age 60, has served as our Chair since October 2022, and as our Fresident and Chief
Executive Officer since March 2022, He served as our President and Chief Operating Officer from Cclober 2020
through February 2022, From August 2014 to October 2020, he served as Executive Vice President —
Merchandising, and from October 2008 through July 2014, he served as Senior Vice President — Retail Finance,
Pricing Analytics, and Assortment Planning. Mr. Decker joined The Home Depot in 2000 and held various stralegic
planining roles, including serving as Vics President — Strategic Business Development from November 2002 to April
2006 and Senior Vice President — Strategic Business and Asset Development from April 2006 1o September 2008,
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Deckar held various Positions in strategic planning, business development,
finance, and treasury at Kimbery-Clark Corp. and Scott Paper Co., both of which are cansumer products
companies.
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TIMOTHY A. HOURIGAN, age 686, has besn Executive Vice President — Human Resources since June 2047. From
February 2016 through June 2017, he served as Division President of the Southern Division. Prior 1o his role as
Division President, Mr. Hourigan served in various human resources rales with the Company, including Vice
President - Human Resources, U,S, Stares and Operalions from Seplember 2013 to Febniary 2016; Vice President
— Compensation and Benefils from February 2007 to September 2013; and Vica President — Human Resources
from July 2002 to February 2007,

RICHARD V. McPHAIL, age 52, has been Exacutive Vice President and Chief Financia! Officer since September
2019. From August 2017 through August 2018, he served as Senior Vice President, Finance Conlrol and
Administration of the Company, and was responsible for enterprise financial repcrting and operations, financial
planning and analysis, treasury, payments, tax, and interniaticnal financial operations. From Augusi 2014 to
September 2017, he served as Senior Vice President, Finance, with responsibility for .8, Retail finance, strategic
and financial planning, and business development activity. Mr. McPhail served as Senior Vice Prasident, Global
FP&A, Siralegy. and New Business Develapment, from March 2013 to August 2014; Vice President, Strategic
Business Development, from January 2007 to March 2013; and director of Strategic Business Development from
May 2005 to January 2007. Prior to joining the Company in 2005, Mr. McPhail served as executive vice prasident of
corporate finance for Marconi Corporalion ple in London, England. Prior 1o Marconi, Mr. McPhail held positions with
Wachovia Securities and Arthur Andersen.

HECTOR PADILLA, age 48, has been Executive Vice President - Oulside Sales & Service since May 2021. He
previously served as Division President of the Southern Division from June 2017 te May 2021, and Senior Viee
President — Operations from Novembear 2014 to Jurie 201 f. Mr. Padilla began his career with The Home Depot in
1994 as a store associate and has held roles of increasing responsibility since he joined the Company, Serving in
various management roles with oversight of fisld operations and services.

TERESA WYNN ROSEBOROUGH, age 64, has been Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Carporate
Secretary since November 2011. From April 2006 through November 2011, Ms. Roseboreugh served in several
legal positions with MetLife, [ne., a provider of insurance and other financial services, including Senior Chief
Counsel — Compliance & Litigation and most recently as Depuly General Counsel, Prior to joining MetLife, Ms,
Raseborough was a partner with the law firm Sutheriand Asbill & Brennan LLP from February 1996 through March
2006 and a Depuly Assistant Attorney General in the Office of Legal Counsel of the United States Depariment of
Justice frem January 1994 through February 1996, Ms. Raseborough serves as a director of The Hartford Financial
Services Group, Inc., an investment and insurance company.

FAHIM SIDDIQUI, age 56, has been Execufive Vice President and Chief Information Officer since April 2022, He
previously served as Senior Vice President of Information Technology from December 2018 to April 2022. Before
joining The Home Depot, Mr. Siddiqui served as Senior Vice President and Chief information Officer — eCommearce
and Digital at Staples lnc. from May 2017 through November 2018, Pricr to that role, he served in varioug
technelogy, product and engineering leadership roles in the retail, energy and telecem sectors.

The information reguired by this item is incorporated by refarence to the sections antitled “Executive
Compensation,” “Director Compensation " and “Leadership Development and Compensation Commitiee Report” in
our Proxy Statement; provided that the section entitied “Executive Compensatian - Pay Versus Performance” in our
Proxy Statement is not incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this item is incorporaled by reference o the sections entitled “Beneficial Cwnership of
Common Stock” and “Execulive Compensation — Equity Cormpensation Plan Information™ in our Proxy Statement.

r 1 1

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitied “Corporate Govemance” in
our Proxy Statement.

it Frincipal Fg

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sectian entitled “Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm's Fees” in our Proxy Statement,
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PART IV

The following docurnents are filed as part of this report;

1. Financial Statements
The fallowing financiatl statements are set forth in lem & hereaf:

* Report of Independent Registered Pubiic Accounting Firm (KPMG LLF, Atlants, GA, Auditar Firm 1D: 185);
*  Consclidated Balance Sheets as of January 28, 2023 and January 30, 2022;
Consoiidated Staternents of Earnings for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020:
= Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income fer fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020;
+ Consolidated Statements ef Stockholders' Equity for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020
+ Consdfidated Staternents of Cash Flows for fiscal 2022, fiscal 2021, and fiscal 2020 and

= Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents,

2. Financia! Statement Schegules

All schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in cur

consalidated financial statements or related notes,

3. Exhibits

Exhibits not filed ar furnished herewith are incorporated by reference to exhibits previously filed with the SEC, as
reflected in the table below. Qur Current, Quarterly, and Annual Reports ars filed with the SEC under File

No. 1-8207, Our Registration Statements have the file nmuimbers noted wherever such stalements are identified in
the following list of exhibits. We will fumish a copy of any exhibit to sharehokders without charge upon written
request to Investor Relations, The Home Depot, Inc., 2455 Paces Ferry Road, Atlanta, Georgia 30339, via the
internet at hitp:/fir.homedepot.com, or by calling Investor Relations at (770) 284-2871.

Reference

Exhibht Descriptlon

21 Agreement and Plan of Merger. dated as of
November 15, 2020, by and among The Home
Depot. Inc.. Coronado Acquisition Sub Inc. and
HD Supply Holdings. Ing

3.1 ﬂ'nﬂ_[ldﬁﬂ andg F'.'r-‘if“_]h: ] { -t_f-'"l"r- ale of
Incorporation of The Home Depot. In

3.2 By-Laws of The Home Depot, Inc. (Amendad and
Restated Effective February 23. 2023)

4.1 Indanture. datad as of May 4. 2005, between The
Home Deoct Inc. and The Bank of New York
Melion Trust Company. N.A. (fka The Bank of

L. as Trusiee

42 \ndenture. dated as of August 24, 2012, between
The Home Depot. Inc. and Deytsche Bank Trust
Lompany Americas. as Trusiee

4.5 af S.675% Senior Note due December 1¢
2038

4.4 Fomn of 5.40% Senior Note due September 15,
2040

4.5 Eorm of 5.95% Senior Note due Agril 1. 2041

4.6 Eorm of 2.700% Senior Note due April 1. 2023

4.7 Eorm of 4.200% Senior Note due April 1, 2043

4.8 Egzmaf_ 1.750% Senior Note due February 15,
2024

4.9 Form of 4,875% Senior Note due February 15,
2044

4.10 Eorm of 4.40% Senior Note due March 15, 2045

67

Form 8-K filed November 18, 2020, Exhibit 2.1

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31,
201, Exhibit 3.1

Form 8-K filed February 28, 2023, Exhibit 3.2

Form 5-3 (File Na. 3331 24699) filed May 8,
2005, Exhibit 4.1

Form 5-3 (File No. 333-183621) filed August 29,
2012, Exhibit 4.3

Form 8-K filed Decernber 19, 2008, Exhibit 4.3
Form 8-K fled September 10, 2010, Exhibit 4.2

Form B-K fifed March 31, 2011, Exhibit 4.2
Form 8-K filed Apri| 5, 2013, Exhibit 4.2

Form 8-K filed April 5, 2013, Exhibil 4.3

Form 8-K filed September 10, 2013, Exhibit 4.3

Form 8-K filed Seplember 10, 2013, Exhibit 4.4

Form 8-K filed June 12, 2014, Exhibit 4.3
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Exhihit Dezeription Reference
4.11 Form of 4.250% Senior Note due April 1. 2046 Form 8-K filed June 2, 2015, Exhibit 4.3
412 Form af 3.35% Note due Seplember 15, 2025 Form 8-K filed Septamber 15, 2015, Exhibii 4.3
4.13 Fomm of 2.000% Senior Note due April 1. 2026 Form 8-K filed February 12, 2018, Exhibit 4.3
4.14 Form of 4.250% Senior Note due April 1. 2046 Farm 8-K filed February 12, 2018, Exhibit 4.4
4.15 Form of 2.125% Note due September 15. 2026 Form 8-K filed September 15, 2076, Exhibit 4.2
4.16 Eomn of 3.500% Note due September 15, 2056 Form B-K filtec September 15, 2016, Exhibit 4.3
4.17 Earm of 3.900% Note due June 15. 2047 Form 8-K fled June 5, 2017, Exhibit 4.4
4.18 Eorm of 2.600% Note due September 14, 2027 Farm 8-K filed September 14, 2017, Exhibit 4.2
4.19 Eorm of 3.900% Note due December 6. 2028 Form 8-K filed December 6, 2018, Exhibit 4.4
420 Eorm of 4 500% Note due December 6, 2048 Form 8-K filed December 8, 2018, Exhibit 4.5
4.21 Form of 2.950% Note due June 15, 2029 Form 8-K filed June 17, 2019, Exhibit 4.2
4.22 Form af 3. 900% Nole due June 15, 2047 Form 8-K filed June 17, 2019, Exhibit 4.3
423 Earm of 2.950% Nole due June 15. 2029 Form 8K filed January 13, 2020, Exhibit 4.2
4.24 Form of 3.125% Nole due December 15, 2049 Form 8-K filed January 13, 2020, Exhibit 4.3
4.25 Eorm of 2.500% Nole due April 15, 2027 Form 8K filed March 30, 2020, Exhibi 4.2
4.26 Eorm of 2.700% Note due April 15, 2030 Farm 8-K filed March 30, 2020, Exhibit 4.3
4.27 Eoim of 3.300% Note due April 15, 2040 Form 8-K filed March 30, 2020, Exhibit 4.4
4.28 Farm of 3.350% Note due April 15, 2050 Form B-K filed March 30, 2020, Exhibit 4.5
4.29 Eorm cf 0.900% Note due March 15. 2028 Form 8-K filed January 7, 2021, Exhibit 4.2
4.30 Form of 1.375% Note due March 15. 2031 Fommn 8-K filed January 7, 2021, Exhibit 4.3
4.3 Form of 2.375% Note due March 15, 2051 Farm 8-K filed January 7, 2021, Exhivit 4.4
4.32 Fomn of 1.500% Nole due Seplember 15, 2028 Form 8-K filed September 21, 2021, Exhibit 4.2
4.33 Eorm of 1.675% Mole due September 15. 2031  Form 8-K filed September 21, 2021, Exhibit 4.3
4.34 Eorm of 2.750% Note due September 15, 2051 Form 8-K filed Septermber 21 . 2021, Exhibit 4.4
4.35 torm of 2.700% Note due April 15, 2025 Form 8-K filed March 28, 2022, Exhibit 4.2
4.36 Form of 2 875% Note due Apdl 15, 2027 Form 8-K filed March 28, 2022, Exhibit 4.3
4.37 Form of 3,250% Note due April 15, 2032 Form 8-K filed March 28, 2022, Exhibit 4.4
4.38 Form of 3.625% Note due April 15, 2052 Form 8-K flled March 28, 2022, Exhibit 4.5
4,39 Form of 4,.000% Note due September 15. 2025 Form 8-K flled September 19, 2022, Exhibit 4.2
4.40 Earm of 4,500% Note due September 15. 2032  Form 8-K fled Seplembar 19, 2022, Exhibit 4.3
4.41 Form of 4.950% Note due Seplember 15,2052 Form 8-K filed September 19, 2022, Exhibil 4.4
442 Rescription of Securties Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2,
2020, Exhibit 4.33
104 t The Home Depol. Inc. 1997 Omnibus Stock Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August 4,
Incentive Plan 2002, Exhibit 10,1
102 1 Form of Executive Employment Death Benefit Form 10-K for the fiscal yaar ended February 3,
Agreement 2013, Exhibit 10.2
10.3 t The Home Depot Deferred Compensatian Plan Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007, Exhibsit 10.1
for Officers (As Amended and Restated Eflective
January 1, 2008)
10.4 2 e De 2 fe Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended danuary 31,
2Nsano ,'- \cars ? 5 Amen 2010, Exhibit 10.4
10.5 t Amendment No. 2 to The Home Depol Deferred  Famn 10-K for the fiscal year ended Jaruary 31,
Compensation Plan for Officers (As Amended 2021, Exhibil 10.5
and Restated Effective January 1, 2008)
10.6 t The Home Depol. Inc. Omnib Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31,

us Stock Incentive
Plan. as Amended and Restated May 19, 2022
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2022, Exhibit 10.1
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Referance

16.7
108

10.9
10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.1%

10.20

10,21

10.22

10.23

t qumniEmsun_ &_Qm;mEQMLuMﬂ

Agreement (Nongualified Stock Option) Pursyant

m_miﬂmﬁﬁmi_mmaﬂa Restated
2005 Omnibys Stock Incentive Plan

T Earm_of Deferred Share Award (Nanempl

M&Emuanmlnnﬂoma Depot, an 2005

Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007, Exhibit 10.2

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2,

2014, Exhibit 10.8

Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007, Exhibit 10.3

Form 8-K filed May 24, 2022, Exhibit 10,1
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Aprit 29,

2012, Exhibit 10.4

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Qclober
31, 2004, Extibit 10,1

Form 8-X filed November 15, 2007, Exhibit 10.1

Form 8-K filed March 2, 2011, Exhibit 10.1

Form 8-K filed March 8, 2013, Exhibit 10.1

Form 8-K filed March B, 2016, Exhibit 10.1

Form 8-K filed March 8, 2016, Exhibit 10.2

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29,

2017, Exhibit 10.21

Form 8-K filed February 28, 2018, Exhibit 10.2

Form B-K filed February 28, 2018, Exhibit 10.3

Form 8-K filed March 4, 2019, Exhibit 10.2

Form 8-K filed March 4, 2018, Exhibit 10.3
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Exhibit

Referenca

10.24

10.25

10.26

1027

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

21
23
319
312

321

RIIEI DeIWaa

|I--m'll.'—'¢- pl |

Qctober 16, 2014

t Eﬂlﬂlﬂlﬂ]ﬂm&mﬂgﬁmﬁm&&h&e&ﬂ.ﬂﬁlﬂﬂ_
Menear and The Home
F

Depot, Inc., dated

d pursuant Section 906

ol the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Form 8-K filed March 2, 2020, Exhibit 10.1

Farm 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November
1, 2020, Exhibit 10.4

Form 8-K filed March 1, 2021, Exhibit 10.1

Form 8-K filed May 24, 2022, Exhibit 10.2

Form 8-K filed May 24, 2022, Exhibit 10.3

Form 8-K filed May 24, 2022, Exhibit 10.4

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 1,
2022, Exhibit 10.1

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November
1, 2020, Exhibit 10.1

Form 10-Q for ihe fiscal quarier ended November
2, 2014, Exhibit 10.2

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 1,
2022, Exhibit 10.2

Form 10-Q fer the fiscal quarter ended November
1, 2020, Exhibit 10.3

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 1,
2022, Exhibit 10.3
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Exhibit Description

Reference

32.2 + Cerification of Executive Vice P
Chief Financial Officer fumnished pursuant to _
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acl of 2002

10%INS ' XBRL inslance Document - the instance
document does not appear in the interactive Data
file because its XBRL tags are embadded within
the Inline XBRL. document

101.8CH * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkhase
Docurment

101.DEF * XBRL Taxonomy Exiension Definition Linkbase
Docurnent

101.LAB * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
Docurment

101.PRE * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbase Document

104 Cover Palge Interactive Dafa File (formatted as
infire XBRL and contained in Exhibit 1 1)

t Management contracl ar compensatory plan or arangement
N Fila) ferawith

s Fumishad (and not fled) herewith pursuant o ftem 601 (hIf32)(ii of the SEC's Reguigtion 5-K

Neone.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed an its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secu

Slgnature

rities Exchange Act of 1934, this feport has been si

fallowing persons un behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated as of March 15, 2023.

THE HOME DEPOT, INC.

(Registrant)

By: /s EDWARD P. DECKER
Edward P. Decker, Chair, President and Chief
Executive Cfficer

Date: March 15, 2023

Tille

gned below by the

{s! EDWARD P. DECKER

Edward P. Deckar

s/ RiCHARD V. MCPRAL

Richard V. McPhail

/s{ STEPHEN L. Glegs

Stephen L. Gibbs
/s{ GERARD J, ARPEY

Gerard J. Arpey

/s/ ARt Boussig

Ari Boushib

/sf JEFFERY H. Bovh

Jeffery H. Boyd

/sf GREGURY D). BRENNEMAN

Gregory D. Brenneman

/sl 4. FRANK BROWHN

J. Frank Brown

/sf ALBERT P, Carpy

Albert P. Carey

s/ LINDA R. GDOOEN

Linda R. Gopoden

15/ WAYNE M. HEWETT

Wayne M. Hewati

/8! MANUEL KADRE

Manuel Kadre

/s STEPHANIE C. LINNARTZ

Stephanie C. Linnartz
/8] PAULA A, SANTHL

Paula A. Santilli

Is/ CARYN SE\DMAN-BECKER

Caryn Seidman-Becker

Chair, President and Chief Exacutive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

Exscutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financiaf Officer)

Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Comporale Contrafier
{Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

Director

Cirector

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Directar

Director
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

-
ba
fl
A

)

Edward P Decker
Chair, President and Chiaf
Executive Cfficer

Director since 2022

Jeftery H. Boyd

Former Chairman and Chiaf
Exscuttive Officer, Booking
Holdlngs, Inc.

Diractar since 2016
2.4

Albert P, Carey
Executive Chairman,
Unit, Jne.,

Director since 2008
3.4

Manual Kadre
Chairman and Chisf
Executive Officer, MBB
Auto Group

Directar since 2018
1,2

Caryn Seidman-Backer
Charr and Chief Execitive
Officer, GLEAR Securs, Inc.

Diracigr sinca 2022
3,4

i D

Garard J. Arpey
Fartner, Emerald Creek

Group, LLC

Direclor since 2015
2.4

Gregory D, Brenneman
Exaculva Chairman,
CCMP Capytal
Advizors, LP

Girector since 2000
Lead Director

Linda R. Gooden

Former Executive Vice
Presidant, Information
Systemns & Giobal Solutions,
Lockhead Martin Corporation

Director since 2015
Financial Expart
1,3

Stephanie C, Linnartz
Presidant, Chiaf Executive
OHficer and Director, Under
Armour, ine,

Director since 2018
1,3

Ari Baushib

Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, lgvia
Holdings, Inc.

Diretor since 2007
1.2

J. Frank Brown

Former Managing Director
and Chief Risk Officey,
General Aflantic LLG

Director since 2011
Finanicia! Experr
1.2

Wayne M. Hewstt
Chayman, Gambrex
Corporation

Director since 2014
1,3

Paula Santitli

Chief Executive
Oificer, Latin America,
PepsiGo, Inc.

Directar since 2022
2.4

Board of Diractars Committes Memnbership as of 2022 fiscal Yéar and:
1. Audit 2, Finence 3. Leaderahip Development & Comparnsation

4, Nominating & Comorate Governance




FOCUS ON
OUR PECPLE

S0% of our us.
store [eaders started as

HOURLY ASSOCIATES

INCREASED
REPRESENTATION

of female and undemrepresented
minerity groups across our
managers and above cohort
in the U.S.

VINI

R

VALUES

OPERATE
SUSTAINABLY

Dacreased

ELECTRICITY

CONSUMPTION

by 50% in our U.S. stores
since 2010

Recycted more than

320,000 METRIC TONS

of nonhazardous waste

NYSE: HD

The Home Repot, Inc.

2455 Paces Ferry Road, Atianta, GA 30339-4024
(770)433-8211

http://ir.homedepot.com

STRENGTHEN OUR
COMMUNITIES

Since 2018, our

PATH TO PRO

program helped train over
38,000 paricipants and
introduced over 132,000

people to the skilled trades

Qur associate volunteer force,

TEAM DEPOT,

volunteered nearly

1.4 MILLION HOURS

in service 1o veterans since 2011




